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IMPORTANT: You must read the following disclaimer before continuing. The following disclaimer
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agree to be bound by the following terms and conddns, including any modifications to them from time
to time, each time you receive any information as aesult of such access. You acknowledge that this
electronic transmission and the delivery of the Prgpectus is confidential and intended only for you rad
you agree you will not forward, reproduce or publi this electronic transmission or the Prospectus tany
other person.

THE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE REGISHRED UNDER THE US SECURITIES
ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THESECURITIES ACT). SUBJECT TO CERTAIN EXCEPTIONS,
SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR DELIVERED WHIN THE UNITED STATES OR TO
US PERSONS. ANY FORWARDING, REDISTRIBUTION OR REPROCTION OF THE PROSPECTUS
IN WHOLE OR IN PART IS UNAUTHORISED. FAILURE TO CORLY WITH THIS NOTICE MAY
RESULT IN A VIOLATION OF THE SECURITIES ACT OR THEAPPLICABLE LAWS OF OTHER
JURISDICTIONS.

NOTHING IN THIS ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION CONSTITUTESN OFFER OF SECURITIES FOR
SALE IN THE UNITED STATES OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTIOMVHERE IT IS UNLAWFUL TO DO
SO. THE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN AND WILL NOT BE RHSTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES
ACT OR WITH ANY SECURITIES REGULATORY AUTHORITY OFANY STATE OR OTHER
JURISDICTION OF THE UNITED STATES AND MAY NOT BE GFERED OR SOLD WITHIN THE
UNITED STATES OR TO, OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OR BENEFIDF, U.S. PERSONS EXCEPT
PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTIONNOT SUBJECT TO, THE
REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT ANBPPLICABLE STATE OR LOCAL
SECURITIES LAWS.

Confirmation of your representation: The Prospectus is delivered to you at your recaredton the basis that
you have confirmed to J.P. Morgan Securities pleutSche Bank AG, London Branch, Goldman Sachs
International, HSBC Bank plc, Banco Bilbao Vizcay@entaria, S.A. and Commerzbank AG (¥lanagers,
SES S.A. (thdssuer) and SES Global Americas Holdings GP (Gwarantor) that you are located outside the
United States and not a U.S. person (as defin&kgulation S under the Securities Act), and youaaperson
into whose possession the Prospectus may lawfellgdhivered in accordance with the laws of thesplidtion

in which you are located.

The Prospectus has been made available to you ialeatronic form. You are reminded that documents
transmitted via this medium may be altered or ckdnduring the process of electronic transmissiod an
consequently neither the Issuer, the GuarantorM&ugagers nor any of their respective affiliatesepts any
liability or responsibility whatsoever in respedtamy difference between the Prospectus distribtiegbu in
electronic format and the hard copy version. Byeasing the linked Prospectus, you consent to riecgitin
electronic form.

In addition, in the United Kingdom, the attacheddprectus is being distributed only to and is deeainly at
investors: (a) who are persons who have professexperience in matters relating to investmentiguwithin
Article 19(5) of the Financial Services and Markatg 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005, as ateen
(theOrder); or (b) who are high net worth entities fallinghin Article 49 of the Order, and (c) other persda
whom it may otherwise lawfully be communicated unttee Order (all such person together referredsto a
relevant persons Any investment or investment activity to whicdtetattached Prospectus relates is available in
the United Kingdom only to relevant persons and élengaged in only with such persons.
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accordingly disclaim all and any liability whetharising in tort, contract or otherwise which theyght
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verification or sufficiency of the information sait in the Prospectus.
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A

(incorporated as a société anonyme under the laiseémboury
€550,000,000 Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rate Resddia Securities
guaranteed on a subordinated basis by

SES Global Americas Holdings GP

(established as a general partnership under the lafibe State of Delawaye

Issue Price:99.304 per cent.

The €550,000,000 Deeply Subordinated Fixed RatetRese Securities (th8ecuritied will be issued by SES S.ASESor thelssuer) on
29 November 2016 (thssue Daté and, subject toTerms and Conditions of the Securities — Subsiitutif Guarantor and termination of
Guarante&, unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed osu@ordinated basis by SES Global Americas HoldBStheGuarantor and
theGuaranteerespectively).

The Securities will bear interest on their prin¢igemount from (and including) the Issue Date tot @xcluding) 29 January 2024 (tR@st
Reset Datpat a rate of 5.625 per cent. per annum, payaiheally in arrear on 29 January in each year, exibep the first payment of
interest, to be made on 29 January 2017, will begpect of the period from (and including) theues®ate to (but excluding) 29 January
2017 and will amount to €9.375 per €1,000 in ppatiamount of the Securities. Thereafter, unlessipusly redeemed, the Securities will
bear interest from (and including) the First Ré&3ate to (but excluding) 29 January 2029 at a rateapnum which shall be 5.401 per cent.
above the 5 year Swap Rate (as defined in the @ong)) for the Reset Period (as defined in the Gandi), payable annually in arrear on
29 January in each year. From (and including) 2®idey 2029 to (but excluding) 29 January 2044 Sbeurities will bear interest at a rate
per annum which shall be 5.651 per cent. abové tyear Swap Rate for the Reset Period payable dypmuarrears on 29 January in each
year. From (and including) 29 January 2044, thaiSies will bear interest at a rate per annum Wwtsball be 6.401 per cent. above the 5
year Swap Rate for the relevant Reset Period payafhually in arrear on 29 January in each yehgsaimore particularly described in
“Terms and Conditions of the Securities—Interestritays.

If the Issuer does not elect to redeem the Seeariti accordance with Condition 9(g) thereof follegvthe occurrence of a Change of
Control Event (as defined in the Conditions), thentlprevailing interest rate per annum (and eactsemu®ent interest rate per annum
otherwise determined in accordance with the Comuij shall be increased by 5 per cent. per annumeffect from (and including) the
date on which the Change of Control Event occursssh Terms and Conditions of the Securities—InterestniRays—Step-up after
Change of Control Eveht

The Issuer may, at its discretion, elect to defeomapart of any payment of interest on the Se@esias more particularly described in
“Terms and Conditions of the Securities—Optionaérigt Deferrdl. Any amount so deferred, together with furthetenest accrued
thereon (at the interest rate per annum prevafliog time to time), shall constitute Arrears ofdrest (as defined in the Conditions). The
Issuer may pay outstanding Arrears of Interestyliole but not in part, at any time in accordancwhie Conditions. Notwithstanding this,
the Issuer shall pay any outstanding Arrears ofrbdt, in whole but not in part, on the first ocomigrMandatory Settlement Date (as
defined in the Conditions) following the Interestyifhent Date on which a Deferred Interest Paymentiéined in the Conditions) arose,
all as more particularly described iérms and Conditions of the Securities— Optiontrst Deferral—Mandatory Settlemeént

The Securities will be perpetual securities in eesf which there is no fixed redemption date,dhatll be redeemable (at the option of the
Issuer) in whole but not in part on any Call Dags (lefined in the Conditions), at the principal amaf Securities, together with any
accrued and unpaid interest up to (but excludingh<ate and any outstanding Arrears of Interesaddition, upon the occurrence of an
Accounting Event, a Capital Event, a Change of @briEvent, a Substantial Repurchase Event, a TaluGi®n Event or a Withholding
Tax Event (each such term as defined in the Comditiahe Securities shall be redeemable (at thieropf the Issuer) in whole but not in
part at the prices set out, and as more partigutsscribed, in Terms and Conditions of the Securities—Redeniption

The Issuer may, upon the occurrence of an Accogriivent, a Capital Event, a Tax Deduction Evera @¥ithholding Tax Event, at any
time, without the consent of the holders of theusiges, either (i) substitute all, but not somdyomf the Securities for, or (ii) vary the
terms of the Securities with the effect that thesnain or become, as the case may be, Qualifyingriies, in each case in accordance with
Condition 10 thereof and subject to the receipthgyFiscal Agent of the certificate of the directofshe Issuer and any relevant opinions
referred to in Condition 11 thereof.

Subject to certain preconditions which are setimtiferms and Conditions of the Securities — Subgiitutif Issuet, the Issuer may at any
time substitute for itself as the principal debtwder the Securities, the Guarantor or any othenipee of the Group or a successor in
business of the Issuer. Further, the Deed of Gteeafas defined in the Conditions) contains provisiwhich (i) allow the Guarantor at
any time to substitute itself for another entitytire Group or a successor in business of the Gtaaraand (ii) for so long as SES Global
Americas Holdings GP remains Guarantor, permitraiteation of the Guarantee where (I) an order islenby any competent court or
effective resolution passed for the winding up issdlution of SES Global Americas Holdings GP ahguch winding up or dissolution
is for the purposes of or pursuant to an amalgamateorganisation or restructuring while solvemt pursuant to which SES S.A. assumes
all of the assets, liabilities and obligations &S5 Global Americas Holdings GP, with any such teration pursuant to (ii) above
becoming effective upon the relevant winding up dissolution taking effect. The Guarantor may onlgce to effect any such
substitution or termination if certain preconditioeet out in Terms and Conditions of the Securities — Subsiitutf Guarantor and
termination of Guarantéeare satisfied.



The Securities will be unsecured securities oflseer and will constitute subordinated obligatiofshe Issuer, all as more particularly
described in Terms and Conditions of the Securities—Stasunsl “Terms and Conditions of the Securities—Subordin&tibhe payment
obligations under the Guarantee will constitutecsdimated obligations of the Guarantor, all as muadicularly described inTerms and
Conditions of the Securities—Status of the Guaegirted “Terms and Conditions of the Securities—Subordinaticthe Guarantée

Payments in respect of the Securities and undeBtlaantee shall be made free and clear of, artutitwithholding or deduction for, or
on account of, taxes of Luxembourg or the Uniteatet, unless such withholding or deduction is meglby law. In the event that any such
withholding or deduction is made, additional amaumiay be payable by the Issuer or the Guarantbjesuto certain exceptions as are
more fully described inTerms and Conditions of the Securities—Taxdtion

Application has been made to tBemmission de Surveillance du Secteur Finan@le¥CSSH in its capacity as competent authority under
the Luxembourg Act dated 10 July 2005 on prospestdar securities, as amended, for the approvétiefProspectus for the purposes of
Article 5.3 of Directive 2003/71/EC, as amendece (rospectus Directive Application has also been made to the Luxembd@itark
Exchange for the Securities to be admitted to tifieial list of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (tBéficial List) and to be admitted
to trading on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange’s @ga market (thélarket). References in this Prospectus to the Securiteing
“listed” (and all related references) shall meaat tthe Securities have been admitted to the OFfidist and admitted to trading on the
Market. The Market is a regulated market for theppses of Directive 2004/39/EC of the Europeani®@aent and of the Council on
markets in financial instruments. By approving tRi®spectus, the CSSF gives no undertaking asetedbnomic and financial soundness
of the transaction or the solvency of the Issuelinia with the provisions of article 7 (7) of thertembourg Act dated 10 July 2005 on
prospectuses for securities, as amended.

The Securities will initially be issued in registdrform and represented upon issue by a registpobdl certificate which will be registered
in the name of a nominee for a common depositarpemalf of Euroclear Bank SA/N\E(roclear) and Clearstream Bankingpciété
anonyme(Clearstream, Luxembourgon or about the Issue Date. Securities in défimiform will be issued only in limited circumstars
(as described inThe Global Certificat§.

The Securities are expected to be rated BB+ bydatan& Poor’s Credit Market Services France SS&afdard & Poor'd and Bal by
Moody’s Investors Service LtdMoody’s) (each, &Rating Agency. Each of Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s is estitdd in the European
Union (theEU) and is registered under Regulation (EC) No. 12809 (as amended) of the European Parliament atitedZouncil of 16
September 2009 on credit rating agencies. A ra§mgpt a recommendation to buy, sell or hold séi@srand may be subject to suspension,
reduction or withdrawal at any time by the assigniating agency.

Investing in the Securities involves a high degreef risk. Prospective investors should have regard to tb®ra described under the
section headedRisk Factor§in this Prospectus.

Sole Global Co-ordinator and Structuring Agenthe tssuer and the Guarantor and Joint Bookrunner

J.P. Morgan

Joint Bookrunners

Deutsche Bank Goldman Sachs International HSBC

Co-Managers

Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. Commerzbank

The date of this Prospectus is 25 November 2016



This Prospectus comprises a prospectus for theopespof the Prospectus Directive and for the perpds
giving information with regard to the Issuer, theaBantor, the Issuer and its subsidiaries takenwalsole (the
Group) and the Securities which, according to the paldic nature of the Issuer, the Guarantor and the
Securities, is necessary to enable investors teraaknformed assessment of the assets and ledifinancial
position, profit and losses and prospects of theelsand the Guarantor. The Issuer and the Guaraatapt
responsibility for the information contained ingHProspectus. To the best of the knowledge andflalithe
Issuer and the Guarantor (each of which has takemeasonable care to ensure that such is the ,ctse)
information contained in this Prospectus is in adance with the facts and does not omit anythikglyi to
affect the import of such information.

This Prospectus is to be read in conjunction withh& documents which are incorporated hereindfgrence
(see Documents Incorporated by Referet)ce

This Prospectus does not constitute an offer ofroivitation by or on behalf of the Issuer, thea@ntor or
the Managers (as defined iSubscription and Saldelow) to subscribe or purchase, any of the Stesar The
distribution of this Prospectus and the offeringhaf Securities in certain jurisdictions may bdrieted by law.
Persons into whose possession this Prospectus @mmesquired by the Issuer, the Guarantor antiteagers
to inform themselves about and to observe any eesthictions.

For a description of further restrictions on offarsd sales of the Securities and distribution o Brospectus,
see ‘Subscription and Saldelow.

No person is authorised to give any informationcomake any representation not contained in thisgactus
and any information or representation not so caethimust not be relied upon as having been auétbhg or
on behalf of the Issuer, the Guarantor or the Marmad\either the delivery of this Prospectus ngrsale made
in connection herewith shall, under any circumstancreate any implication that there has beerhaage in
the affairs of either the Issuer or the Guaraniticesthe date hereof or that there has been nasalghange in
the financial position of either the Issuer or thefantor since the date hereof or that the infaonatontained
in it or any other information supplied in conneatiwith the Securities is correct as of any timessguent to
the date on which it is supplied or, if differetite date indicated in the document containing #mees

To the greatest extent permitted by law, the Marsagecept no responsibility whatsoever for the eotst of
this Prospectus or for any other statement madguquorted to be made by a Manager or on its behalf
connection with the Issuer, the Guarantor or teeasand offering of the Securities. Each Manageordingly
disclaims all and any liability whether arisingtort or contract or otherwise (save as referreabtmve) which it
might otherwise have in respect of this Prospeatusy such statement.

The Securities have not been and will not be reggst under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as aexbifthe
Securities Act and are subject to U.S. tax law requirementsjestiho certain exceptions, the Securities may
not be offered, sold or delivered within the Unif&dtes or to U.S. persons.

The Securities may not be a suitable investmenalfanvestors. Each potential investor in the $#i@s must
determine the suitability of that investment inhligof its own circumstances. In particular, eactieptal
investor should:

@) have sufficient knowledge and experience to naakeaningful evaluation of the Securities, theitser
and risks of investing in the Securities and tHerimation contained or incorporated by reference in
this Prospectus or any applicable supplement;

(b) have access to, and knowledge of, appropriatdytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in Bexurities and the impact the Securities will hawe
its overall investment portfolio;



(c) have sufficient financial resources and liquidity bear all of the risks of an investment in the
Securities;

(d) understand thoroughly the terms of the Seasitind be familiar with the behaviour of the retva
financial markets and of any financial variable whiolght have an impact on the return on the
Securities; and

(e) be able to evaluate (either alone or with thle bof a financial adviser) possible scenarios émnemic,
interest rate and other factors that may affedhitestment and its ability to bear the applicaisks.

The Securities are complex financial instrumentsamath instruments may be purchased by potentiaktovs
as a way to reduce risk or enhance yield with aserstood, measured, appropriate addition of riskhéir
overall portfolios. A potential investor should riotest in the Securities unless it has the exge(gither alone
or with a financial adviser) to evaluate how theusities will perform under changing conditions, tiesulting
effects on the value of the Securities and the ahftas investment will have on the potential inee's overall
investment portfolio.

Prospective investors should also consult their tevadvisers as to the tax consequences of thehase,
ownership and disposition of the Securities.

The credit ratings assigned to the Securities noayeflect the potential impact of all risks relatedstructure,
market, additional factors discussed above, aner dtttors that may affect the value of the SeiasitA credit
rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or Hedgturities and may be revised or withdrawn byrtiimg

agency at any time. A credit rating is not a statehas to the likelihood of deferral of interesttba Securities.
Holders have a greater risk of deferral of intesments than persons holding other securitiels siihilar

credit ratings but no, or more limited, interestedeal provisions. In addition, each of the Ratifsgencies, or
any other rating agency may change its methodddgierating securities with features similar te Becurities
in the future. This may include the relationshipwaen ratings assigned to an issuer’s senior sesiand
ratings assigned to securities with features smtdathe Securities, sometimes called notchinghéf Rating
Agencies were to change their practices for rasunch securities in the future and the ratings efSkecurities
were to be subsequently lowered, this may havegative impact on the trading price of the Secwsitie

The investment activities of certain investors subject to legal investment laws and regulationsgaiew or
regulation by certain authorities. Each potentiakestor should consult its legal advisers to deieenwvhether
and to what extent (1) the Securities are legatstments for it, (2) the Securities can be usetblateral for
various types of borrowing and (3) other restricti@pply to its purchase or pledge of any of theuBtes.
Financial institutions should consult their legalvisers or the appropriate regulators to deternthme
appropriate treatment of Securities under any agblé risk-based capital or similar rules.

The following cautionary statements identify immt factors that could cause the Group’s actualltseeso
differ materially from those projected in the fomgddooking statements made in this Prospectus. Any
statements about the Group’s expectations, bep&dss, strategies, objectives, assumptions orduguents or
performance are not historical facts and may bedod-looking. These statements are often, but vedyss,
made through the use of words or phrases such #islikely result,” “are expected to,” “will contine,”
“believe,” “anticipated,” “estimated,” “intends,"ekpects,” “plans,” “seek,” “projection” and “outlkb These
statements involve estimates, assumptions and tantées, which could cause actual results to difiaterially
from those expressed in them. Any forward-lookitejesnents are qualified in their entirety by refemto the
factors discussed throughout this Prospectus. lapbfactors that could cause these differencdsidiec but
are not limited to: general economic and businesslitions; industry trends; competition; launchaysl or
failures; satellite anomalies, damage, failuresdestruction; risks relating to insurance; exposiorekey
customers; inability to renew existing contractscassfully; changes in technology; changes in guaent and

LTS



other regulation; changes in political and econostability; currency fluctuations and other risks;luding
those described irRisk Factors beginning on page 2 of this Prospectus.

Because the risk factors referred to in this Prasecould cause actual results or outcomes terdifaterially
from those expressed in any forward-looking statemmade in this Prospectus by the Group or oGtioeip’s
behalf, investors should not place undue reliamcarty of these forward-looking statements.

Furthermore, any forward-looking statement speakg as of the date on which it is made, and theu@ro
undertakes no obligation to update any forward-logkstatement to reflect events or circumstancts dfie
date on which the statement is made or to refleetoccurrence of unanticipated events. New ristofaawill
emerge in the future, and it is not possible fa &roup to predict such factors. In addition, theup cannot
assess the impact of each factor on the Groupiméss or the extent to which any factor, or comtiamaof
factors, may cause actual results to differ materfiaom those described in any forward-lookingtetaents.

In connection with the issue of the Securities, J.Morgan Securities plc (theStabilising Managej (or any
person acting on behalf of the Stabilising Managerjnay over-allot the Securities or effect transactios
with a view to supporting the market price of the ®curities at a level higher than that which might
otherwise prevail. However, there is no assurancéat the Stabilising Manager (or any person acting o
behalf of the Stabilising Manager) will undertake gabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may kegin
on or after the date on which adequate public disokure of the terms of the offer of the Securitiesimade
and, if begun, may be ended at any time, but it mti€nd no later than the earlier of 30 days after th issue
date of the Securities and 60 days after the datd the allotment of the Securities. Any stabilisatia action
or over-allotment must be conducted by the Stabiliag Manager (or any person acting on behalf of the
Stabilising Manager) in accordance with all applichle laws and rules.
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RISK FACTORS

Any investment in the Securities involves a higjrade of risk. Prospective investors should catgfubnsider,

in light of their own financial circumstances anéstment objectives, the following risks befoeking an

investment decision with respect to the Securiiemy of the following risks actually occur, theould have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s busingsantial condition, results of operations and figprospects
and the market value of the Securities may beradleaffected.

The risks discussed below are those that the Isandrthe Guarantor believe are material, but theisks

and uncertainties may not be the only risks thatlssuer, the Guarantor and the Group face. Addél risks
that are not known to the Issuer, the Guarantortter Group at this time, or that are currently keled to
be immaterial, could also have a material adveefiect on the Issuer’'s and/or the Guarantor’'s andfe

Group's business, financial condition, result®pgrations, future prospects and the value of gmufties. The
order in which the following risks are presentechi intended to be an indication of the probapitif their
occurrence or the magnitude of their potential e@ffe

For the purposes of the Risk Factors, referenceg&8and to theGroup are to SES and its subsidiaries.

Risks Relating to the Group’s Business

The Group may experience a launch delay or failuve other satellite damage or destruction duringulach,
which could lead to a total or partial loss of trsatellite.

Including predecessor companies, since 1988 thepGhas launched more than 60 satellites, threghath
resulted in launch failures and some of which eepeed launch delays. SES is planning to launclsatiellites
between the date of this Prospectus and the eRf1af, each of which is subject to the risk ohletudelay or
failure. Launches may be delayed for a varietyra#sons including the late availability of the Heigefor
shipment to the launch site, the late availabiitythe launch service or last-minute technicabj@gms arising
on the satellite, the co-passenger satellite ofathiecher. Launch failures can occur due to a ranrnbfactors,
including technical failure of the launch vehieled/or human error.

A launch delay or failure could result in signifitadelays in the deployment of satellites becafighe need to
secure another launch opportunity and, in the oif&lure, to construct a replacement satelliteiol involves
significant replacement cost (which may or maylm®tovered by insurance) and may take two yedinger.
Moreover, while it may be possible in some casdsatiosfer the launch to another launch serviceigesythe
limited number of launch service providers and pnecess of scheduling a replacement launch mayhiavo
further delay and limit SES’s options. Failuredetays could also potentially cause the losseaxfency rights
at certain orbital positions, reduced satelliteetiihe in the case of an incorrect orbit injectiseduced
functionality of the satellite, total loss of a imn and, to the extent that there are no othetlisas that can be
readily redeployed to carry the traffic that haérmeontracted for the satellite that was lostayiein the onset
of projected revenue streams or loss of revenue.

In addition, since satellite capacity agreemergaesl ahead of launch generally include provis@mlisving a
customer to terminate the agreement if the lauadh ér delays or failures are not remedied beforeagreed
date, any launch failure or delay could cause tfmisto lose customers to competing satellite atpes. Even
where launch failures or delays are remedied, $aittres or delays could damage the Group’s refuat
Satellite launch and in-orbit insurance policienegrally do not compensate for lost revenue dubddoss of
customers to competitors because of interruptmmservices or for consequential losses resultiogn fany
launch delay or failure.

The occurrence of launch failures and launch detaydd therefore have a material adverse effecthen
Group's business, financial condition and resofitsperations.



The Group’s satellites may experience in-orbit destion, damage or other failures or degradatiors
performance that could impair the satellites’ comns&@l performance.

Due to the nature of the environment in which tbpgrate, satellites are subject to significantrajpenal risks
while in orbit. One or more of the Group’s satellitmay suffer an in-orbit failure ranging from artial
impairment of commercial capabilities to a totaldmf the asset. Satellite malfunctions, commeoelgrred to
as anomalies, can occur as a result of:

» the satellite manufacturer’s error, including ametected design, manufacturing or assembly defect
the use of a new technology that proves to be faulty;

e problems with the satellite’s power systems, iditlg circuit failures or other array degradation
causing reductions in the power output of the solar arrays on the satellites;

e problems with the satellite’s control systems; or
e general failures, including premature componeifiiria

Certain of the Group’s satellites have experienead] may in the future experience, anomalies iurés,
which could lead to:

e adegradation in commercial performance;

* areduction in transmission capacity;

* areduction in the satellite’s operational life;

*  outages;

e areduction in the quantity of operating transpwspor
» the total loss of a satellite,

any of which could result in lost revenue untileplacement satellite is launched as well as ineckazpenses
to replace the satellite. In addition, to the ekténat the Group has multiple satellites with samitesigns,
problems experienced with one satellite may be reepeed with other satellites. For further inforinatabout

the health of the Group’s satellites, please Szaeilite Fleet - Satellite Healttbelow.

In the event of a satellite failure, the Group may be able to continue to provide service ta@itstomers from
the same orbital position or at all, which coulttrh the Group’s reputation and adversely affectlidity to

retain existing customers or attract new customieng Group has an in-orbit backup strategy atageitey
orbital positions where customers of an impairaiklite can be transferred to another satellittha Group’s
fleet. In addition, the Group has in place a medion agreement with another satellite operatasymnt to
which customers on an impaired satellite may pbgdie transferred to another satellite in that Itte
operator’s fleet in order to protect continuitysarvice. However, there is no guarantee that thesgations
will be effective, especially in the event of tladldre of several satellites.

The occurrence of any of the risks above could lzan®terial adverse effect on the Group’s busjHesmcial
condition and results of operations.

The actual lives of the Group’s satellites may bwsger than their estimated design lives.

The expected design life of a satellite is typicdlh years. The value of a satellite is normallgrdeiated on a
straight-line basis over this period. In the evefithanges in the expected fuel life of the satgllin-orbit
anomalies or other technical factors, its actual thay be shorter than its design life. Depreamtisay be



accelerated as well as the lifetime revenue geegtraiduced, leading to a reduction in the returmeastment
for the asset.

The Group relies on a limited number of launch pridkers to launch its satellites.

There are a limited number of commercial launchvigigrs. Historically, SES has been reliant on tvey k
launch providers, Arianespace S.AArianespacg and International Launch Servicek §). The Group
currently has launch services contracts with Arsmaee and Space Exploration TechnologigsateX for
satellite launches. Relying on a limited numbeldaafnch providers exposes the Group to certain .risks
example, dependency on a small number of launcrigeis may reduce SES’s negotiating power in ratato
the fees it pays for satellite launches. In addijttbe Group may experience significant delaysaimthing new
satellites in the event of a prolonged unavaitghilf a launch provider. The unavailability of@ahch provider
could cause a global shortage in launch servicadagp which in turn could have a material adverfect on
the Group’s business, financial condition and tssofl operations.

The Group is primarily dependent on a small numbafrsatellite manufacturers and secondary suppliers

SES is primarily dependent on six major satellisnaofacturers for the construction of its satedliémd a small
number of suppliers of key components of commuitnat satellites (referred to as secondary suppliers
Dependency on a small number of satellite manufact and secondary suppliers may reduce the Goup
negotiating power and access to advanced techmslogihich may only be available from certain swgpli
This dependence may also result in a higher cdraten of risk. SES may experience significantagtelin
procuring new satellites in the event of prolongedblems, operational difficulties or financiaffatiulties at
one of these satellite manufacturers. Furtherdiffieulties caused by any technical problems w#th design of

a particular model of satellite may be multipliédseveral satellites of that design are purcha&ts may
experience significant delays in acquiring and &uimg new satellites in the event of prolongedblgms at
one of its secondary suppliers.

The occurrence of the defects or delays describedeacould have a material adverse effect on troaiis
business, financial condition and results of openat

Satellites may be subject to damage or loss froengs that might not be covered by insurance p@gi

SES maintains launch and initial in-orbit insurgnas well as third party liability insurance fas isatellites.
SES also maintains in-orbit insurance for its $igesl that have book value. The insurance poligeserally
contain exclusions from losses resulting from:

e military or similar action;
e any antisatellite device;

» electromagnetic and radio interference (excepplfiysical damage to a satellite directly resulfirogn
this interference);

»  confiscation by any governmental body;

» insurrection and similar acts or gowefental action to prevent such acts;

e nuclear reaction or radiation contamination;

« wilful or intentional acts by the insured causthg loss or failure of satellites; and

e terrorism.



Furthermore, these insurance policies do not peogiompensation for business interruption, lossnafket
share, reputational damage, incidental and conatigbeamages and similar losses that might dr@a the
failure of a satellite launch, incorrect orbitabptment or the failure of a satellite to perforacarding to
specifications and the in-orbit insurance only aevesses in excess of the potentially high resiemtion level
or deductible selected by SES. SES self-insurew tipe retention level or deductible. In addititme Group’s
third party liability insurance (which covers lossarising from third party bodily injury and propedamage
caused by, amongst other things, launch failureb satellite collisions) is subject to a single lirof €500
million of coverage for any one occurrence.

The Group’s insurance policies do not cover loseesénue. Furthermore, SES will not be fully reimged if
the cost of a replacement satellite exceeds theissumed. As a result of such exclusions and corsgigon and
risk level arrangements, SES could be exposedgtifisiant losses under any of the circumstancesifipd

above or if it has inaccurately estimated the agiate risk retention level.

The Group's insurance policies may also excludmfooverage failures arising from pre-existing defesuch
as defects in solar arrays and battery anomaliesoore existing satellites. For example, defecthasolar
arrays are currently excluded for the AMC-16 satelhnd subject to technical deductibles on certdirer
satellites.

In addition, SES will not be reimbursed under theoibit insurance policies other than for a majoerd
because minor incidents relating to defects falhiw SES’s insurance policy deductibles. Lossésiray from
any of the factors above could result in materiatéases in costs or reductions in expected revand profits,
either of which could have a material adverse effecthe Group’s business, financial condition aeslits of
operations.

A portion of the Group’s in-orbit insurance policieare maintained through self-insurance.

SES has adopted a policy of limited self-insurdiocen-orbit insurance. Insurance is provided W twholly-
owned subsidiaries that re-insure part of the wigk external insurance companies, which reducesathount

of insurance premiums paid to such insurance coiapabut leaves the Group with exposure in thetegé
loss. Although SES self-insures only a chosen exgge deductible as well as amounts above a certain
aggregate limit of insurance, and external insuggraicies cover losses in excess of the aggratgtactible

up to the limit of insurance, the Group retainsifigant risk both below and above those thresholds

If any event occurs that is covered by the in-osbif-insurance deductible, it would not be compges by an
outside insurer and thus there could be a matiexiabase in the Group’s costs, which would decrgasfits
and could have a material adverse effect on tloei@s business, financial condition and resultspsrations.

The Group may not be able to obtain adequate insw@ or the desired level of coverage, and insuranc
premiums may increase.

Satellite insurance is a cyclical market and theeprterms and availability of satellite insuraraes fluctuated
over the years. The amount of capacity currentlgilable in the market is adequate to cover SES's
satellite programmes. However, events outside @neup’'s control — including large losses and shifts
of insurance capacity from space to other linebusiness — could change this situation. Thisccoasult in
increases in the amount of insurance premiumsIpaBES to cover its risks and affect its abiliyobtain the
desired level of coverage, which would increaseGheup’s costs and have an adverse effect orugmess,
financial condition and results of operations.



The Group may not be successful in renewing itsstixig satellite capacity agreements, or in renewithem
on terms that are similar to their current terms.

The Group’s satellite capacity contracts vary ingkh depending on the type of customer. Contradtls w
broadcasters are generally long-term, with typitahktions of ten years (and up to 15 years in icec@ses) for
customers in North America and Europe, and betviiwenand ten years for customers in developing itk
Contracts with commercial enterprises are typicdlyee to five years in length, and contracts with
governmental customers are typically one yearHE $s unsuccessful in obtaining the renewal ofittllite
capacity agreements when they come up for renewats unable to obtain commercial terms similar to
those currently reflected in its agreements, sashdue to budget cuts affecting governmental oeroth
customers, revenue could be adversely affectesdime time.

The inability to renew satellite capacity agreerseamt terms as favourable as existing agreementd bawve a
material adverse effect on the Group’s businesanftial condition and results of operations.

The Group has several large customers, the losarf of which could materially reduce the Group’svenue
and materially adversely affect the Group'’s busises

The Group generates its revenue primarily fromiseragreements to provide satellite transpondeacity to

its customers. Certain customers have major oifgignt contracts with the Group. The Group’s fiaegest
commercial customers represented 27.9 per celeoBtoup’s revenue in 2015, and revenue genergtéueb
U.S. government (and customers serving the U.Sergovent) represented 10 per cent of the Groupsney

in 2015. However, the Group’s customer base isestifio constant change. Some of the Group’s major
customers could decide not to renew their contraetsk to renew them on terms that are less fabbito the
Group or, where a contract contains an early-teaition right (which typically requires significanayment to

be made by the customer), to terminate a contiMoteover, because of the typically long-term natofe
satellite capacity contracts and the costs to austs of switching providers, if a customer decidefsto renew

an agreement (for example, as the result of deiradopr increasing relationships with other operator
moving to other telecommunications solutions), iaywmbe a number of years before the Group has the
opportunity to win back or replace the businesssoAlif key customers reduce their reliance on SES b
developing or increasing relationships with othatellite operators (or moving to other telecommatians
solutions) and such key customer cannot be repl&#€8's revenue may be impacted negatively.

In addition, key customers may go bankrupt or corahiith other customers in mergers and acquisitions
Consolidation in the industries in which the Graupustomers operate may increase their bargaimwgmpand
leverage when negotiating agreements with the Grieapling to pressure on pricing. Budget cuts nisy be
imposed on SES’s governmental customers.

The loss of large customers or the reduction inadahfor services from customers for any of theseaa above
could have a material adverse effect on the Grdusiness, financial condition and results of apiens.

The Group is exposed to general customer countetpaisk.

The Group is exposed to risks associated withitten€ial condition of its customers and their apito fulfil

their contractual obligations. If any customer aigreces financial difficulties or fails to fulfit$ contractual
commitments to the Group, the Group may incur cesfercing its contractual rights and may incungigant
losses. The Group has a number of customer costrglcere the customer’'s payments to the Group are
scheduled towards the end of the contractual terirthe revenue is recognised in the Group’s acsoanta
linear basis under IFRS accounting standards. résut, if a customer experiences financial diffi@s or fails

to fulfil its contractual commitments to the Groudipe Group may not only fail to receive the revedue from

the customer but may also have to record a lossffset the revenue already recognised in its firdnc
statements.



The level of customer credit risk faced by the Qrooay increase as it grows revenue in developindkets
because credit risk tends to be higher in thesé&eta(compared to the markets of Europe and Nontlerica).
Any failure of the Group’s customers to fulfil theiontractual commitments to the Group could haweaterial
adverse effect on the Group’s business, financiatiition and results of operations.

The Group's operations and systems are subjectxieemal threats, including sabotage, terrorist atties and
natural disasters.

As a satellite operator, SES is subject to a nunaberisks that could impair its operations and eyst,
including sabotage, terrorist acts, piracy, attacknti-satellite devices, jamming, unintentiométrference and
natural disasters.

The risks of terrorist attacks are beyond SES’droband such an attack could cause substantiahdarto the
Group's network. In addition, natural disastersldalamage or destroy the Group’s earth statiorssiltieg in
a disruption or termination of service to its amsers. Although the Group takes measures to ptéhereffects
of such natural disasters, such as using techndlgafeguard antennas and to protect earth rs¢atiaring
natural disasters such as a hurricane, theregeia@ntee that the measures will be effective.

Such occurrences are generally excluded from tloeii3s insurance coverage. For further informatsse “—
Satellites may be subject to damage or loss franteuhat might not be covered by insurance pdicbove.

The occurrence of any of these risks may leadtesrgorary or permanent interruption in service andésult
in a loss of customers, reputational damage anaexti revenue, any of which could have a materiabiesg
effect on the Group’s business, financial conditimd results of operations.

The Group relies on information systems, satellitentrol and operations networks and other technojognd
a disruption or failure of such systems, networks technology as a result of unauthorised access,
misappropriation of data or other malfeasance magmipt the Group’s business.

Since information systems, satellite control andrapfions networks and other technologies are atitiw the
Group's operating activities, disruptions or shutde caused by events such as computer hacking,arglw
dissemination of computer viruses, worms and ottestructive or disruptive software and other malisi
activity or forms of cyberattack pose significarisks. Due to the fast-moving pace of technological
advancements, the high sophistication of certdaclatrs and an increasingly hostile cyberattackrenment,

it may be difficult to detect, determine the scafecontain and remediate every such event. Anj syent
could have an adverse impact on the Group’s oparstincluding service disruption or malfunctiotoss of
customers, non-compliance with legal and regulateguirements, inadvertent violations of data mtide,
export control and other relevant laws, damagé¢oGroup’s reputation or result in damage to theu@'s
properties, equipment and data. Such an eventcalsial result in large expenditures necessary tairem
replace such networks or information systems qrabect them from similar events in the future.riiparties
may also experience errors or disruptions thatccadlversely impact the Group’s business operatiodsover
which the Group has limited control.

SES has been the target of cyberattacks in the \Wste the impact of such attacks has not beenifgignt to

date, there can be no assurance that any futaekativould not have a material effect on the Grabp'siness.
Any inability to prevent the occurrence of cybéaeks could result in a disruption to services, fomadtions

and/or inadvertent violations of data protectiod ather relevant laws and regulations. In additemmmercial
satellite companies have been the victims of abmunof attempts to intentionally jam broadcastsnfrineir

satellites. Such attempts could lead to disruptimnservice, which could have a material effectrevenue
and/or cause reputational damage.

In addition, the Group’s operating activities coldd subject to risks caused by misappropriatiorsuss,
leakage, falsification and accidental release @&s lof information maintained in the Group’s infotioa



technology systems and networks, including custppensonnel and vendor data. The Group could besexb
to significant costs, fines and penalties if suidks were to materialise, and such events couldaganthe
Group's reputation and credibility and have a niegampact on its revenue.

The occurrence of any such events or security hesacould have a material adverse effect on theig®so
business, financial condition and results of openat

The Group’s international operations are subject ta number of risks that could negatively affect
future operating results or subject the Group tarinal and civil enforcement actions.

SES conducts business around the world. Interredttmrsiness is subject to a variety of risks,udiig:
» lack of developed legal systems to enforce contedcights
»  greater risk of uncollectible accounts and longer collection cycles;
» foreign currency exchange volatility;
e inflation;
* increased risk of fraud and political corruption;
* uncertain and changing tax rules, regulations and rates;
» logistical and communication challenges; and
e general economic, political and financial condigdn foreign markets.

In addition, SES is subject to civil or criminalility under the U.S., UK, EU and other regulaion relation
to economic sanctions, export controls and anbidosi requirements. SES has procedures, policies@midols
in place that are designed to detect and prevstdrioes of non-compliance with such requiremeritesrédhave
nonetheless been a few instances when SES hadi@demrictivities that may have constituted violatoof
applicable requirements. For example, in Noveml@dr32 SES submitted a voluntary self-disclosure ntefmo
OFAC (for more information seeRegulation—The United States—U.S. Export Controld Sanctions
Regulationy. In such circumstances, SES has taken promptratt investigate and remediate such activities
and to adjust its controls to prevent such occuwesenn the future. Any failure by SES to obtainnmintain
required authorisations or failure to comply wiinstions, export control and anti-bribery laws aggulations
may render it impossible for SES to provide sietiapacity and related services to certain caesthat are
subject to sanctions, to purchase satellites guipment from certain vendors (including U.S. mactidirers
and suppliers), restrict its ability to conductsimess with U.S. government entities, expose theugrto
significant fines and other penalties and/or caepeaitational damage. Additionally, the failure b&tGroup’s
vendors or suppliers to obtain the necessary emqutinorisations could affect SES’s ability to aicgulaunch or
operate satellites.

International risks and violations of internationegulations may negatively affect future operaior subject
the Group to criminal or civil enforcement actioAdthough the Group has policies and procedurasdaitor

legal and regulatory compliance, there can be revagtiee that such policies and procedures will gareall

violations of applicable regulations. Moreover,rthean be no guarantee that the Group’s employeagemts
will not violate these requirements or will not egg in activities that result in the Group’s directindirect

violation of such applicable regulations.

See"—Risks Relating to Regulation—The Group is sube@xport control laws including those of the @dit
States, which may preclude exporting satellitesléonch, satellite-related hardware, technologytadand
services or preclude sourcing these items in thiéedrbtates below for further information.



In particular, regarding the business with the W§8vernment, the proxy structure of the SES Govemm
Solutions entity, in line with common practice farsinesses serving certain segments of the U.&rgment,
imposes various restrictions on the Board of Daectand executive management in directly supenyiire
maintenance of an internal control system and ifngoan internal audit structure. Internal contnotlanternal
audit may not be properly implemented due to seslrictions.

The occurrence of any of the risks above could lzar®terial adverse effect on the Group’s busirfess)cial
condition and results of operations.

The Group may be impacted by uncertainty surroungithe United Kingdom’s membership of the European
Union.

On 23 June 2016, the United Kingdom held a refarantb decide on the United Kingdom's membershithef
EU. The United Kingdom vote was to leave the EUerEhare a number of uncertainties in connectioh thi¢

future of the United Kingdom and its relationshiirsthe EU. The negotiation of the United Kingdoresst

terms is likely to take a number of years. Unté terms and timing of the United Kingdom's exitnfrthe EU
are clearer, it is not possible to determine thgaiah that the referendum, the United Kingdom's dapafrom

the EU and/or any related matters may have on ukiéss of the Group. As such, no assurance cgivbe

that such matters would not adversely affect theketavalue and/or the liquidity of the Notes in #erondary
market.

Risks Relating to the Group’s Strategic Development
The Group is exposed to risks inherent in doing mess in developing markets.

The Group’s development strategy involves targetiagy geographical areas and developing marketh, &s
in Latin America and Asia and potentially develapinjoint ventures or partnerships with
local telecommunicationsnedia and financial businesses in such markets in aménprove market access
for its services.

Expansion into these regions may not be successfdleven if successful, SES is exposed to thednheisks

of doing business in those regions, such as ingyaarising from political or economic factors differences in
legal and regulatory regimes. See-Risks Relating to the Group’s Business—The Grouternational
operations are subject to a number of risks thatldmegatively affect future operating resultssoibject the
Group to criminal and civil enforcement actionabove Such instability could cause difficulties in tBeoup’s
ability to operate, increase costs or lead tora@xpected reduction in the demand for the Grougrsices. In
addition, in some developing markets, customery b less financially secure and run a higher 6§k
insolvency than in more developed markets. Thiuriaiof a customer to make payments for the Group’'s
services or honour its agreements would leadréalaction in the Group’s revenue.

The occurrence of any of the risks above could lzan®terial adverse effect on the Group’s busjHesmcial
condition and results of operations.

The Group is subject to general risks associatethvitis strategic investments.

The Group has a number of strategic investments ithdoes not control and may enter into similar
arrangements in the future. As a result, the Gisujependent in part on the cooperation of othegstors and
partners in protecting and realising the full ptisnof certain investments. The Group may not bk do
prevent strategic partners from taking actions #énatcontrary to the Group’s business interestsbprctives or
are inconsistent with the Group’s views of whathis best strategy for the investment. In certaicuonstances,

it may become necessary for the Group to inveshdéurfunds or fulfil its contractual obligations, the Group
may be restricted from realising the value ofritgeistment.



Any of these risks could have a material adverfeeebn the Group’s business, financial conditiod eesults
of operations.

For more information about the Group’s strategiestments, seeBUsiness—Strategic Investménts

Forward-looking information included in this Prospeus may differ materially from actual results and
investors should not place undue reliance on it.

The forward-looking information set forth in thisdBpectus regarding SES, RR Media and O3b represent
SES'’s current view of such information and is basadassumptions including, but not limited to, esuot
arising concerning satellite health; satellite lshes occurring when anticipated; no changes tcagney global
macroeconomic and political conditions (in particuivhere SES, RR Media or O3b has significant soél
operation); no deterioration in the financial cdioti or solvency of SES, RR Media or O3b’s key oastrs;

no change in market conditions within the satellitdustry, including in relation to customer demamrd
competitive environment; no change in currency exgle rates between the euro and the currenciekiaghw
the Group operates (including, most significanthe U.S. dollar); no changes in inflation, interestax rate
assumptions in SES, RR Media or O3b’s principal ke compared with SES’s budgeted estimates; no
adverse event impacting SES, RR Media or O3b'shfira performance; no changes in legislation oulagry
requirements, including accounting principles orteriality thresholds; the conclusion of negotiatidor new
and renewed capacity agreements in line with SEfX@ctations; and no material issues arising ipetsof
SES, RR Media or O3b’s contracts. While any forwlaking information contained in this Prospectss i
based on the assumptions that SES currently beliare appropriate, it is inevitable that there tegree of
uncertainty relating to any forward-looking revengerformance and trend information. Such infororati
should therefore be read in this context and coedtaccordingly.

The assumptions on which forward-looking informatie based are inherently subject to significardiress,
operational, economic, market and other risks, nanyhich are outside of SES'’s control. Accordinguch
assumptions may change, potentially materially, thog expected effects of these assumptions may not
materialise at all. In addition, unanticipated eégemay adversely affect the actual results that &gtfieves in
future periods whether or not its assumptions irejato the forward-looking information for futureepods
otherwise prove to be correct. As a result, SE8taa results may vary materially from the forwaodking
information included in this document, and investsinould not place undue reliance upon it.

The Group may not be able to retain and/or attrgetrsonnel who are critical to the Group’s business

SES has a number of key employees with highly gfieed skills and extensive experience in th&lds. If
one of these employees were to leave, SES may diffiilty replacing him or her. Although SES optrs
retention programmes, succession planning and @@velnt plans, there can be no assurance that 8kid w
be successful in hiring and training suitable aepments without undue costs or delays. If SESable to
retain key employees or attract new highly quadifemployees, it could have a material adversetefie the
Group's business, financial condition and resoitsperations.

Pursuing external growth opportunities may not yiethe expected benefits.

As part of its strategy, the Group regularly evedgaopportunities to make strategic acquisitionsoancrease
its stake in ventures in which it currently hasirsterest. Such growth opportunities may not yi¢ld éxpected
benefits due to a number of factors, some of whdoh not entirely within the Group’s control, such a
associated costs, regulatory approvals, antitavsews, diversion of management time and challepgeed by
integration operations. In addition, the Group rfalto obtain, in a timely manner, the necessargricing on
satisfactory terms to allow the transaction to peat Acquisitions also may adversely affect theupi®
financial ratios as a result of related financinguirred or the performance of the acquired busifaksving
the acquisition. The Group may incur significanstsoarising from its efforts to pursue strategiquasitions
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which exceed the returns realised. Failure to pumsucomplete strategic growth opportunities maywent the
Group from growing the business, which could inntuwesult in a material adverse effect on the Greoup’
business, financial condition and results of openat

See also “—Risks relating to O3b".
Risks Relating to the Satellite Communications Marlkt

The telecommunications market is highly competitiead SES faces competition from satellite, terrest
and wireless networks.

The Group is subject to a number of risks relatmgompetition. The Group’s main competitors dre other
major international satellite operators, Intelsah.SEutelsat S.A. and Telesat Holdings Inc. Iniadd, the
Group faces competition from satellite operatorthvgatellites in Low Earth Orbit and Medium Earthbi@
The Group also faces significant and increasing pagdition in different regions around the world fraan
increasing number ohational and regional satellite operators and ealtti integrated very small aperture
terminal YSAT) providers and may face competition from new miekdrants in the future.

The development of national satellite programmeyg hiader the Group’s ability to compete in thosertnies

on normal economic terms. The new capacity (whicy rhe significant) may also negatively impact the
transponder supply/demand dynamics in those magketgesult in lower transponder pricing than elsne.
The implementation of national satellite systemsyrabso increase the risk that market access faigor
satellite operators will be restricted. In additi@@me national operators enjoy advantages im thanhestic
markets, such as tax and regulatory advantagesvermgment funding, that are not available to SH&SE or
other competitive advantages could result in acgdn in the Group’s business in such regionsddition, the
significant competition between satellite operataoth regionally and internationally could leadbt@rsupply,
greater pressure on prices or a reduction in émeatid for the Group’s services, which could negatiimpact

its profits or revenue.

SES also faces competition from other forms of camigations technology, such as providers of mobile
satellite communications services as well as teiaéand wireless networks, including cable, dilaptic, digital
subscriber line PSL), radio relay broadcasting, very-high-frequendyathigh-frequency transmission,
worldwide interoperability for microwave acce$8¥iMAX) and long-term evolutiorLTE). Any increase in the
technical effectiveness or geographic spread afetttompeting operators and technologies couldtresa
reduction in demand for the Group’s satellite citgand could make it more difficult for the Grotpretain or
develop its customer portfolio. Some terrestriad avireless operators may receive state aid ansidieb not
available to SES, which could give them a competiadvantage over the Group.

The occurrence of any of the risks above couldltrésua demand reduction for SES'’s satellite cayaand
could have a material adverse effect on the Graop&iness, financial condition and results of apiens.

Changes in technology or the satellte communicatso market could make the Group’s satellite
telecommunications system obsolete or subject teeioor reduced demand.

Although, on the whole, the fixed satellite sergicearket has experienced growth over the past y@atke
future the market may not grow or it may shrink.cAmological innovations that serve as alternatites
satellites could render satellite technology olisol® less cost-effective, and consumer viewindepeaces
may shift in a way that makes other technologigtebsuited to delivering the broadcast content tiarently
accounts for most of the demand for the Group'sli#at capacity. The use of new technology to invarsignal
compression rates or changes in consumer prefergisoeh as increased demand for new forms of video
distribution, in particular non-linear or linearrtent provision via broadband technologies by exisPay TV
providers or “over-the-top” by new entrants, orrgesed consumption via devices not fed directlydirectly

via satellite), or future trends in viewing not getticipated, could lead to a reduction in demamdife Group’s
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satellite capacity. Existing technologies, suchfibse optic cable, are currently competing with edlite
technology and expanding their geographic reach raagt experience innovations that make them more
effective competition for satellites. Se€he telecommunications market is highly competitind SES faces
competition from satellite, terrestrial and wiretesetworks above.

Similarly, demand for the current generation artdrieigenerations of high definition televisidd¥TV) which
the Group expects to be a major driver of demanddtellite capacity in future periods, may failreach the
levels the Group currently expects, which couldilEalower than expected demand for the Group’sciéyp

If the Group cannot quickly and efficiently adaptthese changes, its satellites could become etiesot less
competitive, leading to an inability to retain diig customers or attract new customers, a regtuati demand
for its services, and a negative impact on revenue.

Any of these risks could have a material adverfeeebn the Group’s business, financial conditiod eesults
of operations.

SES is subject to risks from legal and arbitratigmoceedings.

Disputes in relation to SES'’s business arise frione to time and can result in legal or arbitratpwoceedings.
There can be no assurance that the Group will acbrbe involved in legal or arbitration disputesoiring
material claims for damages or other payments. diteome of these and any other proceedings careot b
predicted. In the event of a negative outcome $peet of any material legal or arbitration procagdiwhether
based on a judgment or a settlement agreement,c8&8 be required to make payments that could laave
material adverse effect on the Group’s busineaanftial condition and results of operations. Initatd the
costs related to litigation and arbitration prodagd may be significant.

Risks Relating to Regulation

The telecommunications industry is highly regulatéd a result, SES is subject to a number of rislss
described below. For more information on the refjpfacf the satellite industry and associated risdee
“Regulatiofi.

If the Group or its customers fail to obtain and rimain required regulatory approvals, the Group manot
be able to operate its existing satellites or maintor expand its operations.

The Group must obtain and maintain approvals frathaities to operate or offer satellite capacityservices
which often involves significant time and experBe: example, the Group must obtain authorisatidartding
rights (i.e., permission to offer services or céyadn certain countries to permit the Group’s edites to
transmit or receive signals to, from or within ghecountries. The failure to obtain or maintain the
necessary authorisations to operate satelliteds abtain the requisite landing rights or approvasrovide
services in certain countries could lead to lossewénue. In addition, licensing authorities meyoke rights to
use frequencies at an orbital location if that tatbiocation is left vacant beyond the period péed by such
regulator. If the Group cannot obtain, is delayedbtaining or does not maintain in good standthg,required
regulatory approvals or loses authorisations assaltr of changes to regulations or other governraetibns,
it may not be able to provide existing or futueevices to customers or expand to new customeirst@mnew
services.

In addition, customers are responsible for obtgimertain regulatory approvals for their operatiofds a result,
there may be governmental regulations of which 8E®t aware or which may adversely affect the afiens

of customers. The Group could lose revenue if enets fail to comply with such approvals, if redidas are

changed and customers are unable to satisfy thestef any new regulations or if necessary appsoaed not
granted on a timely basis or at all, in any juid§idns in which customers wish to operate or fiewservices or
if applicable restrictions in those jurisdictiomscome unduly burdensome.
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The occurrence of any of the risks above could lzan®terial adverse effect on the Group’s busjHesmcial
condition and results of operations.

The Group’s business is subject to extensive retialaand is sensitive to regulatory changes in baaf the
countries in which it provides services.

The operation of the Group’s business is and walitmue to be subject to the laws and regulatiaintghe
governmental authorities of the countries whereGhsup operates or uses radio spectrum and/ariscsteellite
services or capacity, and also to the frequencydioation process of the International Telecomroation
Union (TU). Regulation and legislation is extensive andsioigt the Group’s direct control. New or modified
rules, regulations, legislation or decisions bgekevant governmental entity or the ITU could miater and
adversely affect operations.

The operations of the Group’s existing satellites also regulated by, among others, the Grand Dothy
Luxembourg, the United States, the Netherlandsm@ey, the United Kingdom, Gibraltar, the Isle ofiMighe
Bailiwick of Jersey Jersey, Mexico, Canada, Sweden, the EU, Bermuda, theeAndCommunity and Brazil.
Although the Issuer believes that the Group isampliance with regulatory requirements in the doas
in which it operates, there can be no assuraraethle Group will maintain the authorisations rssegy to
operate its existing satellites or obtain requaathorisations in the future, which would affatife prospects.

In addition, the Group may in the future becomejettbto regulations of which it is not presentlyaaer If
the Group fails to comply with all applicable laewsd regulations, it could lose revenue from sesviprovided
to the countries covered by those laws and reguistand subject the Group to criminal or civil @iées.

Failure to obtain or maintain the required authaditss described above could have a material adwedffect on
the Group’s business, financial condition and rtesofl operations.

The ITU may not allocate orbital slots and asso@dt frequencies to permit the Group to maintain or
augment its satellite system.

SES needs access to orbital slots and associataeficies to permit it to maintain or grow itsefaé system.

The ITU establishes radio regulations and is resibta for the allocation of spectrum for particulses, and
the allocation to particular national administramf orbital locations and associated frequepegtsum. SES
can only access spectrum through ITU filings magedtional administrations.

Orbital slots in the geostationary arc and assedifitequencies are a limited resource. The ITU raattbnal

regulators may reallocate spectrum from sateftitéerrestrial uses. National administrations ia@easingly
charging for access to spectrum by way of feesamtions. In addition, national administrationsymevoke

SES's rights to use spectrum, even when SES hastablished business at a particular orbital losafThe

most recent World Radiocommunication Conferenc20ib5 did not reallocate significant amounts of sjpeo

from satellite to terrestrial uses. However, it sas for study the use of various spectrum banaisabuld be
allocated to terrestrial mobile use at the nexhstamference in 2019 and whose use by terrestaallemmwould

be inconsistent with satellite use. In additiorrtaia national administrations are studying thegdd spectrum
needs of terrestrial mobile and considering thdaeation of spectrum used by satellites, whichytban do

independently of ITU radio regulations so longleesytavoid international interference.

Any reallocation of spectrum from satellite to émtrial uses or fees by national administratiomy fmave a
significant adverse effect on the Group’s businfésancial condition and results of operations.
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The Group's ability to use a satellite at a giverbial location for its proposed service or covgmarea may
be adversely affected by coordination issues.

Like other satellite operators, SES is requiredetmord, through relevant national administratidneguencies
and orbital locations used by its satellites with tTU and to coordinate the operation of its litge with the
satellite networks filed with the ITU through oth®ational administrations so as to prevent or cecharmful
interference between its satellites and the st®lbf other operators. It may not always be s achieve
successful coordination, which may affect the péghoperation by SES of its satellites. In certaines, SES
might also be required to coordinate any replacérsatellite that has performance characteristicghvdiffer
from those of the satellite that it replaces.

As a result of such coordination, SES may be requto modify the proposed satellite coverage amas
satellite design or transmission plans in ordeglitminate or minimise harmful interference witthet satellites
or ground-based facilities. Those maodificationsymeean that use of a particular orbital positiomastricted,
possibly to the extent that it may not be economicaplace a new satellite in that location. Inditidn,
interference concerns of a country may affect thibty of the Group’s satellite network to generatvenue
due to the operational restrictions that the cgumiay impose. Such operational restrictions inelunbt
allowing transponders to be operated at the maxirpomer over the intended area, requiring receiving
transmitting earth stations to use a minimum argesi@de or using steerable coverage to avoid a fapeci
geographical area.

Similarly, if and to the extent that ITU regulat®or other contractual or regulatory constrainiistéaprevent
competing satellite operators from operating tisaitellites in a manner that causes harmful intenfes with
existing or future satellites operated by the Grahp performance of the Group’s satellites indffected areas
could be adversely affected.

Coordination issues with other satellite operatoise from time to time, and the Group may not gbnuae able
to resolve such issues quickly, or at all, whichlddead to reputational harm, loss of customeeseribration

of the Group’s relationships with other operataegradation of signal quality resulting from ineggnce from

satellites of other operators, operating or desigtrictions that make the Group’s services inréiqudar region

less competitive or non-economic or limit the apitd fully utilise the capabilities of a particulsatellite, and,
to the extent an issue is not resolved in the Gsofgwour, potential loss of rights. Such issueaxpose the
Group to the risk of litigation, such as the rebesettled dispute with Eutelsat (for more inforinatsee note
31 to the SES Annual Report for the year ended &dember 2015).

In addition, certain of the Group’s frequency assignts are governed by specific national regulatitinany
country decides to exercise its rights under thregilations, or if these specific regimes are aradnthe
Group could be forced to change or discontinueube of its frequency assignments, which could have
significant negative impact on its ability to opter#ts satellites.

Any of the factors above could have a material estveffect on the Group’s business, financial d@adand
results of operations.

If the Group does not occupy unused orbital locat®by specified deadlines, or does not maintaitefiéies
in the orbital locations the Group currently usethose orbital locations may become available faeuby
other satellite companies.

Orbital locations or frequency bands that SES osés planning to use may become available foengatellite
operators to use if SES does not:

*  occupy unused orbital locations by specified deadlines;

* maintain satellites in their orbital locationsgéor
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« operate in all the frequency bands that have ffigeh at the ITU and for which a licence has been
received.

SES has access to orbital locations that have filedrat the ITU through various national admiragbns. For
each filing, the ITU and the national regulatorpase conditions that must be met in order to seuse of the
spectrum and SES must determine, based on thosiions, which frequencies it will bring into usadaon

what schedule. Operational issues like satellimdh failure, launch delay or in-orbit failure cemmpromise
SES'’s access to the spectrum at specific orlbtations. SES is committed to the highest quatitgatellite
procurement and launch, which helps to reduce rikls In addition, the Group’s large fleet permite

relocation of in-orbit satellites in order to méleé regulatory conditions in most of the caseswéi@r, there
is no guarantee that SES will always be able éwent this risk and the loss of an orbital locattonld have a
material adverse effect on SES’s business, finhnoradition and results of operations.

The Group is subject to export control laws includj those of the United States, which may preclude
exporting satellites for launch, satellite-relatdthrdware, technology, data and services or preewburcing
these items in the United States.

The Group must comply with applicable export cohlaws and regulations including applicable U.$part
control laws in connection with any informationtalgoroducts or materials that it provides toremeives from,
foreign companies relating to communications s#sll launch vehicles and associated equipmentdatel
related to each. The Group’s U.S. operations mapaable to maintain normal international bussregivities
and the Group’s non-U.S. operations may not be &blesource satellites, satellite related hardwaeda,
technology and services in the United States if;

e export licences or approvals cannot be, or arealained or are obtained but later withdrawn ttue
breach of or changes in policy;

*  export licences or approvals are not obtained in a timely fashion;
e export licences or approvals do not permit transfesome or all items requested;
» launches are not permitted in the locations th& Biefers; or

» the requisite licence, when granted, contains itiong or restrictions that pose significant comored
or technical issues.

Such occurrences could impede construction aradydbE launch of any future satellites, negativeipacting
current or future revenue, which could have a nwlteadverse effect on the Group’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Relating to O3b

As a satellite operator, O3b is subject to substhysimilar risks to SES as described in Risks Relating to
the Group’s Business“— Risks Relating to the Group’s Strategic Developiért Risks Relating to the
Satellite Communications MarKeand “—Risks Relating to RegulatibnCertain additional risks specific to
O3b are described below.

O3b may not meet targets set out in its business @r otherwise perform as anticipated.

0O3b is a company providing high-speed satellitebband connectivity across the developing worldavigew
kind of satellite system that uses multiple satslin a Medium Earth OrbiMEQO) (which is lower than the
geostationary orbitGEO) used by Fixed Service SatellitdsSS) operators). O3b has a substantial contract
backlog which requires a constellation of 12 saéallto fulfil the first phase of O3b’s businesaml In June
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2013, 0O3b launched the first group of four satdlifor the constellation. Following in-orbit tests the first
four satellites, O3b delayed the launch of thesédour satellites to make modifications to them.

O3b's first four satellites experienced payload raalles which caused the satellites to be declared a
constructive total loss for insurance purposesrédtuiy, three of the four satellites have been nerddfrom
operations, and are classified as back-up satellitee fourth satellite was less affected by thensaly and is
currently part of the operational O3b constellation

The second group of four satellites was launcheduly 2014. As at the date of this Prospectus sktond
group of four satellites is operating nominally. tiVieight satellites in orbit, O3b started full coential
operations on 1 September 2014. The third groupuwof satellites was successfully launched on 18cbduer
2014. As at the date of this Prospectus this tiriodip of four satellites is operating nominally.eTourth group
and fifth group of four satellites have been ordeérneJuly 2015 and are due to be launched in 2088819.

There can be no assurance that the future satiliteches will not face launch delays or that thtelite
constellation will not experience in-orbit failures anomalies. There can also be no assurancéiatwill
meet the targets set out in its business plan rdonpe as otherwise anticipated. For more informatiegarding
the risks relating to O3b's business plan, seeRisks Relating to the Group’s Strategic Develogmmen
Forward-looking information included in this Progpies may differ materially from actual results @ndestors
should not place undue reliance oh ny of these factors could impact the valuetaf tGroup’s investment in
O3b thereby having negative consequences for thmup® business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The acquisition of O3b means the financial resuti6 O3b will be fully consolidated with those of tit&roup.

On 1 August 2016, SES completed the acquisitiodQdf per cent of the issued shares of O3b. As dtresu
03b’s financial information will be fully consolitied in the financial reporting of the Group. Thaulkd have
an adverse impact on the Group’s overall perforraafisancial condition and financial ratios suchtlas net
debt to EBITDA ratio and there can be no assurdnaethese matters will not have a negative impacthe
Group's credit rating and financial covenant ratimsler its financing arrangements. In 2015, O3Mirired a
loss of $317.0 million and as of 31 December 204% & net debt position of $1.2 billion. On compmletof the
acquisition, SES consolidated approximately $1llibbiof O3b net debt.

The Group may not be able to realise anticipatedhéfits of the acquisition of O3b, or the Group magt be
successful in integrating the business operationfs@3b in the manner or within the timeframe currelygt
anticipated.

The acquisition of O3b and integration process Iwver@ertain risks and uncertainties, and there lmamo
assurance that the Group will be able to integtia¢eO3b business operations in the manner or withén
timeframe anticipated. Risks and challenges rejdtirthe integration of the business operatior33i include,
but are not limited to, the following:

» the placement of considerable demands on the Gsa@gburces to manage the integration process,
including requiring significant amounts of managattene;

» the creation and development of consolidated catppfinancial, control and administrative functpn
including cash management, internal and other &imayy hedging of market risks, insurance, financial
control and reporting, information technology, coomitations, compliance and other administrative
functions;

« the implementation of an adjusted business anchag@onal model;

» the process of coordinating sourcing in order itmielate overlapping procurement operations;
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» theretention of management and/or other key eneglowpf O3b after the acquisition;
» the coordination of research and development, niakand other support functions; and

e the mitigation of contingent and actual liabilities the Group taken as a whole following the
acquisition.

Due to such specific risks and challenges, themebeano assurance that the Group’s ability to aehéffective
integration of O3b will not be limited or delayedghich could have a material adverse effect on ithantial
condition and results of operations of the Group.

Risks Relating to Finance
Each of the Issuer and the Guarantor is a holdingtéy.

The Issuer and the Guarantor are holding entitied,each of them conducts substantially all obfterations
through subsidiaries. As a result, the right toeiez payments under the Securities and the Guarairte
addition to being subordinated to the Senior Otikges (as defined in the Conditions) of the Issaied the

Guarantor, will be structurally subordinated to thehilities of the Issuer’'s subsidiaries other rththe

Guarantor. The ability of the Issuer and the Guaraim meet their respective financial obligatigmslependent
upon the availability of cash flows from their dastie and foreign subsidiaries and affiliated comesn
through dividends, intercompany advances, managdieenand other payments.

The Securities are obligations of the Issuer arael gwaranteed exclusively by the Guarantor. Therothe
subsidiaries of the Issuer and the Guarantor @& ate and distinct legal entities and have naggabibn to pay
any amount due on the Securities or the Guaramteepyovide the Issuer or the Guarantor with fufaigheir
respective payment obligations thereunder. As hgldintities, the rights of the Issuer and the Ghtarato
receive any assets of any of their subsidiaries Ujpuidation or reorganisation, and therefore tiight of the
creditors of the Issuer and the Guarantor to ppetie in those assets, will be structurally submatid to those
claims (including trade payables) of those subsiela creditors. The Securities and the Guaran@eenat
restrict the ability of those subsidiaries to inaatditional indebtedness or other liabilities. EViethe Issuer or
the Guarantor were a creditor of any of its subsids, its rights as a creditor would be subordirtatany
security interest in the assets of its subsidiasies$ any indebtedness of its subsidiaries migtgdpgor to its
rights as a creditor.

Failure to generate cash flow or access other capiesources could force the Group to reduce ifecations
or default on debt service obligations.

If, for any reason, SES is not successful in im@etimg its business model, cash flow and capitsbueces
may not be sufficient to repay indebtedness. If &@nable to meet debt service obligations or dgmyjith
covenants, a default under debt agreements wotddroTo avoid a possible default or upon a default
SES could be forced to reduce or delay the comoplar expansion of the satellite fleet, forgo istveents in
joint ventures, sell assets, obtain additionalitgcgapital or refinance or restructure its debhyAsuch action
could have a material adverse effect on the Geopsiness, financial condition and results of apiens.

Negative changes in SES’s debt rating may have demial adverse effect on the Group’s financial cdition.

A change in the SES’s debt rating could affectabst and terms of its debt as well as its abitityaise finance.
SES currently has and seeks to retain a BBB ratitly Standard & Poor’s Credit Market Services EaBAS
(S&P’s) and a Baa2 rating with Moody’'s Investors Serlité. (Moody’s). Among other things, increases in
financial leverage ratios beyond the thresholdsomemnended by the rating agencies could result in a
downgrade. If SES’s credit rating were to be dowadgd, it would affect SES’s ability to obtain fireang and

the terms associated with that financing. SES aagnarantee that it will be able to maintain itsdit ratings.
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S&P’s and Moody's are established in the EuropeaiotJand are registered under the CRA Regulati&f®'s
and Moody's also appear on the latest availabletgpths of 1 December 2015) of the European Semuanhd
Markets  Authority's list of credit rating agenciescurrently available on its website
(https://www.esma.europa.eu/supervision/credit-gpigencies/risk)

The Group's financial results may be materially aghsely affected by unforeseen additional tax assesnts
or other tax liabilities.

SES does business in many different countries andubject to tax liabilities on its business operet
in multiple tax jurisdictions. SES makes provisan its accounts for current and deferred tebilliies and tax
assets based on a continuous assessment of mxditing to it.

However, SES cannot be certain of a tax authoréipplication and interpretation of the tax law.SStay be
subjected by tax authorities to unforeseen matéaialclaims including late payment interest anghenalties.
These unforeseen tax claims may arise throughge lanmber of reasons including identification dagable
presence of a non-indigenous group company irxiaggurisdiction, transfer pricing adjustmentsphgation
of indirect taxes on certain business transactidies the event and disallowance of the benefits tax treaty.
In addition, SES may be subject to tax law chamgestaxing jurisdiction, which could lead tonactive tax
claims.

Although SES has implemented a tax risks mitigatioarter based (among other things) on a framewbtéx
opinions for the financially material tax positionaken by SES, transfer pricing documentation tfoe
important intra-Group transactions of SES and asfex pricing policy and procedures for accurae t
compliance in all taxing jurisdictions, there is goarantee that the charter will be effectivethé Group
becomes subject to a significant amount of ungoatied tax liabilities or has its transfer priciagangements
successfully challenged, it could have a matesadverse effect on the Group’'s effective tax rate,
business, financial condition and results of opena.

The Group is exposed to liquidity, currency and égn exchange, interest rate and counterparty sk

The Group is exposed to risks in relation to lidiyidforeign exchange rates, interest rates anohtsoparties.
For further details, see note 19 to the SES AnReglort for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Failure to adequately manage these risks could hamaterial adverse effect on the Group’s busjrfesmcial
condition and results of operations.

The Group is exposed to risks associated with macamomic conditions in the global economy, both in
developing markets and developed markets.

An economic slowdown in the countries where theuproperates may have a negative effect on thepGrou
performance if potential customers face difficidtfanding their business plans, which could in tdefay the
onset of new revenue. This situation could be frraffected by measures concerning the curreadiegted in
the countries where the Group operates, as wdllygsolitical instability and governments’ inabjlito take
timely action to deal with the crisis. All this dduin turn, result in decreased profitability, thvisignificant
negative consequences for the Group’s businees)dial condition and results of operations.

The Group is exposed to asset impairment risk.

SES'’s non-current intangible and tangible assetsvatued at historic cost less accumulated amtdisar
depreciation (where relevant), and accumulated iimmgat charges. The resulting net book values abgst to
confirmation each year through impairment testingcedures, where net book values are comparedeto th
value-in-use of the asset, which represents theeptevalue of the future cash flows expected tddveved from
the asset. Where future assumptions for a spexsfiet, as set out in the Group’s business planiedess
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favourable, or, for example, the discount ratediegpo the future cash flows increase, this maultein the
need for material asset impairment charges.

The Issuer also tests for impairment on the cagryialue of shares, or groups of shares, in affitlat
undertakings using procedures similar to thosermdlabove. If the carrying value of the relevanvestment,
or group of investments, is not substantiated by#lue-in-use computed, and any shortfall is asskas being
of an other than temporary nature, this could téswn impairment charge being taken to the incetatement
of the Issuer’s annual accounts in the period aoreck

Risks related to the Securities generally
The Securities will be perpetual securities.

The Securities will be perpetual securities in eespf which there is no fixed redemption date byctvtthe
Issuer would be under the obligation to redeemSbeurities. SeeTerms and Conditions of the Securities—
Redemptioh Therefore, prospective investors should be awlaethey may be required to bear financial risks
of an investment in the Securities for an indefirperiod of time and may not recover their investime the
foreseeable future.

The Securities will be subject to optional redengutiby the Issuer including upon the occurrence adrtain
events.

The Securities will be redeemable, at the optiotheflssuer, in whole but not in part on any Caltdat their
principal amount together with any accrued and ithpaerest up to (but excluding) the redemptiotedand
any outstanding Arrears of Interest.

In addition, upon the occurrence of an Accountingr, a Capital Event, a Change of Control Everitaa
Deduction Event, a Substantial Repurchase Evena aWithholding Tax Event (each as defined in the
Conditions and as more fully described in Conditbof the Securities), the Issuer shall have thioopto
redeem, in whole but not in part, the Securitieshat prices set out therein, in each case togetitarany
accrued and unpaid interest up to (but excludingyédemption date and any outstanding Arreanstefédst. In
the case of a Change of Control Event, in the etlaattthe Issuer does not elect to redeem the Eesythe
then prevailing Interest Rate (as defined in the diimms), and each subsequent Interest Rate otberwi
determined in accordance with Condition 7 of theuities, on the Securities shall be increased pgrecent.
per annum with effect from (and including) the datewhich the Change of Control Event occurred.

During any period when the Issuer may elect to eadehe Securities, the market value of the Seesriti
generally will not rise substantially above thecprat which they can be redeemed. This also masubeprior
to any redemption period.

The Issuer may be expected to redeem the Secuwties its cost of borrowing is lower than the ietr
payable on the Securities. At those times, an ovagenerally would not be able to reinvest thesnegtion
proceeds at an effective interest rate as higheadnterest payable on the Securities being reddéemd may
only be able to do so at a significantly lower rétetential investors should consider reinvestmishktin light
of other investments available at that time.

There is no redemption at the option of holderthefSecurities.

The interest rate on the Securities will reset dretFirst Reset Date and on every Reset Date thdezaivhich
can be expected to affect the interest payabletan$ecurities and the market value of the Secustie

Although the Securities will earn interest at adixate until (but excluding) the First Reset Ddites current
market interest rate on the capital markets iftlaeket interest ratgtypically changes on a daily basis. Since the
initial fixed rate of interest for the Securitiediviie reset on the First Reset Date (as set otitérConditions),
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and on each subsequent Reset Date, the interesblpagn the Securities will also change. Holderghef
Securities (thédolders) should be aware that movements in these marteriest rates can adversely affect the
price of the Securities and can lead to lossethvHolders if they sell the Securities.

Holders are exposed to the risk of fluctuating egerate levels and uncertain interest income exsebet rates
could affect the market value of an investmenhim $ecurities.

The Issuer has the right to defer interest paymeaotsthe Securities.

The Issuer may, at its discretion, elect to defieorapart of any payment of interest on the Se@siwhich is
otherwise scheduled to be paid on an Interest PatyiDate. See Terms and Conditions of the Securities—
Optional Interest Deferrdl Only upon the occurrence of a Compulsory Arreafriiterest Settlement Event, in
the event of a redemption of the Securities pursta@ondition 9 or in the event of a winding uptioé Issuer
or the Guarantor in a manner falling within Coratitil4 will the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the caag be, be
obliged to pay any such Arrears of Interest to ldadd

Any such deferral of interest payment shall notstitute an Enforcement Event or a default for angppse
unless such payment is required in accordance@atidition 8(b) of the Securities. Although the kssintends
to pay all outstanding Arrears of Interest (if amy)respect of the Securities on the fifth annivers# the
Interest Payment Date on which the Deferred IntéPagment first arose, this is only a current intentnot an
obligation of the Issuer. Therefore, there can bassurance that deferred interest will be satisfighin such
five year period.

Any deferral of interest payments is likely to hame adverse effect on the market price of the S@srin
addition, as a result of the interest deferral fmion of the Securities, the market price of theusities may be
more volatile than the market prices of other dsduturities on which original issue discount orriesé accrues
that are not subject to such deferrals and may tie reensitive generally to adverse changes inghaet’s
financial condition.

Integral multiples of less than the specified denioration.

The denominations of the Securities are €100,000 iategral multiples of €1,000 in excess thereof.
Therefore, it is possible that the Securities mayrhded in amounts in excess of €100,000 thatatrmtegral
multiples of €100,000. In such a case, a Holder,vesoa result of trading such amounts, holds acipdh
amount of less than €100,000 in its account withrtdevant clearing system, will not receive a ifieste in
respect of such holding (should Certificates batpd) and would need to purchase a principal amofint
Securities such that it holds an amount equal soammore denominations. If Certificates are issitmlders
should be aware that Certificates representing r@ssuwhich have a denomination that is not aegnal
multiple of €100,000 may be illiquid and difficutt trade.

The Issuer’s obligations under the Securities arftetGuarantor’s obligations under the Guarantee wik, in
each case, subordinated.

The Issuer’s obligations under the Securities dnmedGuarantor’s obligations under the Guarantee hwi)lin
each case, unsecured and subordinated. In the @vent

€)) an order being made, or an effective resolutiging passed, for the winding-up of the Issueastthe
case may be, the Guarantor (except, in any sueh aaolvent winding-up solely for the purposea of
reorganisation, restructuring, reconstruction, raergonversion or amalgamation of the Issuer or, as
the case may be, the Guarantor or the substitirtipface of the Issuer of a New Issuer in accordanc
with Condition 18 or, in the case of the Guarantabstitution or termination in accordance with
Condition 19, the terms of which reorganisatiorstmecturing, reconstruction, merger, conversion,
amalgamation or substitution or termination (x) arghorised or permitted in accordance with the
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provisions of the Conditions or have previously rheg@proved by an Extraordinary Resolution (as
defined in the Fiscal Agency Agreement) and (y) @b provide that the Securities shall thereby
become redeemable or repayable in accordancehet@onditions);

(b) an administrator or receiver of the Issuerasr the case may be, the Guarantor being appointkd a
such administrator or receiver giving notice thtaintends to declare and distribute a dividend or
distribution (in the case of the Guarantor, sudtriiution being in respect of the partnershipriedes
of the Guarantor or, after a substitution purstai@ondition 19, any other ownership interests); or

(c) any analogous event relating to the Issuea®the case may be, the Guarantor to those desdnilie)
and (b) above under any insolvency, bankruptcyiroilar law applicable to the Issuer or, as the case
may be, the Guarantor,

the claims of the Holders will rank (i) junior the claims of holders of all Senior Obligations loé issuer or
the Guarantor, as the case may be,p@i)i passuwith the claims of holders of all Parity Obligat® of the
Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, i@nsk(ior to the claims of, in the case of thautss holders of
any class of share capital of the Issuer and dmgr aibligations of the Issuer, issued directlyratiriectly by it,
which rank, or are expressed to raplyi passuwith any such class of share capital, or, in thsecof the
Guarantor, holders of any class of partnershipéste(whether common or preferred) of the Guaraamor any
other obligations of the Guarantor, issued directlyndirectly by it, which rank, or are expressedank,pari
passuwith any such class of partnership interest. Jegris and Conditions of the Securities—Statugerms
and Conditions of the Securities—SubordindtiofiTerms and Conditions of the Securities—Status ef th
Guaranteé and “Terms and Conditions of the Securities—Subordinaifdhe Guarantée

By virtue of such subordination, payments to a oldill, in the events described in the Conditionsly be
made after all obligations of the Issuer or, asdase may be, the Guarantor resulting from higheking
claims have been satisfied. A Holder may, theref@egver less than the holders of unsubordinateottoer
prior ranking subordinated liabilities of the Issu®, as the case may be, the Guarantor. Furtherntioe
Conditions will not limit the amount of the lialtiks ranking senior to, grari passuwith, the Securities or the
Guarantee which may be incurred or assumed bysheet or the Guarantor respectively from time rweti
whether before or after the Issue Date. The inogeef any such other liabilities may reduce thewam (if
any) recoverable by Holders on a winding-up or auilstiation of the Issuer or, as the case may be, th
Guarantor and/or may increase the likelihood oéfedal of interest payments under the Securiedject to
applicable law, no Holder may exercise, claim @apl any right of set-off, compensation or reteniiorespect
of any amount owed to it by the Issuer in resp&obroarising under or in connection with, the Séoes or any
amount owed to it by the Guarantor in respect ofartsing under or in connection with, the Guarantnd
each Holder shall, by virtue of his holding of egrcurity, be deemed to have waived all such righset-off,
compensation or retention.

Although subordinated debt securities, such astwirities, may pay a higher rate of interest t@mnparable
debt securities which are not subordinated, theeereal risk that an investor in subordinated rst€es such as
the Securities will lose all or some of his investrhshould the Issuer become insolvent.

The Guarantor may be replaced by another entitytie Group or the Guarantee may be terminated.

The Deed of Guarantee contains provisions whiclal{dw the Guarantor at any time to substitutelfitfe
another entity in the Group or a successor in lassirof the Guarantor; and (ii) for so long as SH&&
Americas Holdings GP remains Guarantor, permitmiteation of the Guarantee where (l) an order islenay
any competent court or effective resolution pagsedhe winding up or dissolution of SES Global Ancas
Holdings GP and (ll) such winding up or dissolutienfor the purposes of or pursuant to an amalgamat
reorganisation or restructuring while solvent andspant to which SES S.A. assumes all of the gd&sigities
and obligations of SES Global Americas Holdings ®&Rh any such termination pursuant to (i) above
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becoming effective upon the relevant winding uplissolution taking effect. The Guarantor may orgceto
effect any such substitution or termination if{@ Enforcement Event has occurred and is continidgach
Rating Agency confirms that upon such substitubotermination becoming effective the Securitiel gither
have the same credit rating as immediately pri@utth substitution or termination or the creditngtwill not
be adversely affected, (iii) each Rating Agencyficors that upon such substitution or terminatiorcdraing
effective the Securities will either still be eligg for the same, or a higher amount of, “equisdd” (or such
other nomenclature that the Rating Agency may thento describe the degree to which an instrumdnibiés
the characteristics of an ordinary share) as rfated to the Securities on the date immediateigrpgo such
substitution or termination or such eligibility attribution will not be adversely affected and (itwWo
Authorised Signatories of the Issuer or two Autbedi Signatories of the Guarantor certify to thedig\gent
that, following consultation with an independenvaatment bank of international repute, an independe
financial adviser with appropriate expertise orependent counsel of recognised standing, the Issuass the
case may be, the Guarantor has concluded thatssdodtitution or termination (i) will not result the Issuer
having an entittement, as at the date such sutistitor termination becomes effective, to redeemSkcurities
as a result of a Special Event and (ii) in the aafsa substitution only, will not result in the & of the
Securities and the Guarantee (taken together) inatedg following such substitution being materialss
favourable to holders than the terms of the Sdesrdnd the Guarantee (taken together) immediatédy to
such substitution. However, notwithstanding eachhef these conditions being satisfied prior to anogh
substitution or termination, there can be no guaeathat any such substitution or termination wit have an
adverse effect on the price of the Securities armbexjuently lead to losses for the Holders if thely the
Securities.

Limited Remedies.

The Conditions will provide that the SecuritiesIvaé perpetual securities and there is, therefonegbligation
on the Issuer to repay principal on any given dateaddition, payments of interest on the Secigitiey be
deferred in accordance with Condition 8(a) of tleeBities and interest will not therefore be dugeotthan in
the limited circumstances described in Conditidn) &f the Securities.

The only enforcement event in the Conditions & dfefault is made by the Issuer and the Guaraota period
of 14 days or more in the payment of principal drdays or more in the payment of interest, in ezade in
respect of the Securities and which is due. Upa supayment default, the sole remedy availablddidlers
for the recovery of amounts owing in respect of payment of principal or interest on the Securitidsbe the
institution of proceedings to enforce such payment.

Therefore, it will only be possible for the Holdeis enforce claims for payment of principal or e in
respect of the Securities when the same are due.

In addition the claims of holders of all Senior Qhations will first have to be satisfied in any wimghup or
administration proceedings before the Holders mapeet to obtain any recovery in respect of theirusities
or, as the case may be, under the Guarantee, emdh@reto Holders will have only limited abilitg influence
the conduct of such winding-up or administratiomgaedings. See “ Fhe Issuer's obligations under the
Securities and the Guarantor’s obligations under @Guarantee will be, in each case, subordinated

Modification, Waiver and Substitution.

The Conditions will contain provisions for callingeetings of Holders to consider matters affectingirt
interests generally. These provisions will perméfimed majorities of holders of the Securities todball
Holders, including those Holders who did not attand vote at the relevant meetings and Holderswehed in
a manner contrary to the majority.
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The Conditions and the Fiscal Agency Agreement alsb provide that the Fiscal Agent and the Issnay
agree, without the consent of Holders, to (i) arodification (except such modifications in respectvbich an
increased quorum is required in accordance withptiogisions of the Fiscal Agency Agreement) of Hiscal
Agency Agreement which is not prejudicial to théemests of the Holders or (ii) any modification tbie
Securities or the Fiscal Agency Agreement whicbfia formal, minor or technical nature or is madedrrect
a manifest or proven error or to comply with maodaprovisions of the law.

The Issuer may also at any time, without the canskthe Holders, substitute for itself as the pifial debtor
under the Securities, the Guarantor or any othemimee of the Group upon the fulfilment of certain
preconditions set out under Condition 18. Notwahsling each of the these preconditions being matigfrior

to any such substitution, there can be no guarahtgeany such substitution will not have an adveffect on
the price of the Securities and subsequently ledosses for the Holders if they sell the Secusitie

Variation or substitution of the Securities withouwfolder consent.

Subject as provided in Condition 10 and Conditidn the Issuer may, in its sole discretion and withihe
consent or approval of the Holders, elect to stilistithe Securities for, or vary the terms of teeusities with
the effect that they become or remain, QualifyingciBities at any time following the occurrence of a
Accounting Event, a Capital Event, a Tax Deductitvent or a Withholding Tax Event. Whilst Qualifying
Securities are required to have terms which arewaitrially less favourable to Holders (as a clédsah the
terms of the Securities and the Guarantee takeathteg there can be no assurance that the Qualifyin
Securities will not have a significant adverse igtpan the price of, and /or market for, the Se@sior the
circumstances of individual Holders.

Further, prior to the making of any such maodifioatior taking any action as aforementioned in tisis factor

or in the risk factor Modification, Waiver and Substitutibabove, or prior to any substitution, termination
variation in a manner contemplated in Conditions1i®or 19, the Issuer, the Guarantor and the Fisgent
shall not be obliged to have regard to the taxtwsiof individual holders of the Securities or ttte tax
consequences of any such modification, substitutemmination, variation or other action for indivial holders
of the Securities. No holder of Securities shallebétled to claim, whether from the Fiscal Agehe Issuer,
the Guarantor, a New Issuer or any other persow, imdemnification or payment in respect of any tax
consequence of any such modification, substitutienmination, variation or other action upon indival
holders of the Securities.

Change of law.

The Securities will be governed by English law aimdrespect of Conditions 3(a) and 6(a) of the Htea
only, Luxembourg law and Delaware law respectivélg. assurance can be given as to the impact of any
possible judicial decision or change to English,lawxembourg law or Delaware law or any administeat
practice thereof after the Issue Date.

The Global Certificate is held by or on behalf ofuEbclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and investavsl
have to rely on their procedures for transfer, pagnt and communication with the Issuer.

The Global Certificate will be registered in themeaof a nominee for Euroclear and Clearstream, minoeirg
(the Relevant Nomineg Except in the circumstances described in théo&@IQertificate, investors will not be
entitled to receive Certificates. Euroclear anda@tream, Luxembourg will maintain records of thieliests in
the Global Certificate. While the Securities arpresented by the Global Certificate, investors bdlable to
trade their interests only through Euroclear ora@eam, Luxembourg.

While Securities are represented by the Global if@ate, the Issuer will discharge its payment gations
under such Securities by making payments to (othferorder of) the Relevant Nominee for distribatio their
account holders. A holder of an interest in a Gldbertificate must rely on the procedures of Eueacland
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Clearstream, Luxembourg to receive payments urdeSecurities. The Issuer has no responsibilitjability
for the records relating to, or payments madespeet of, interests in the Global Certificate.

Holders of interests in the Global Certificate wilbt have a direct right to vote in respect of 8Bezurities.
Instead, Holders will be permitted to act only be textent that they are enabled to do so by Ewpae
Clearstreaml,.uxembourg.

Provisions which provide for interest to be payabdm interest may be unenforceable as a matter of
Luxembourg law.

The Securities contain provisions which providettay Deferred Interest Payment (as defined in the
Conditions) (or part thereof) shall itself beareisst. If it came to any proceeding before a Lux@amdp court
any provision relating to the payment of interestimterest may not be enforceable pursuant to l&rtid54 of

the Luxembourg Civil Code. There exists no publisbase law in Luxembourg in relation to the rectigniof
provisions pursuant to which a party agrees totpathe other party an interest on interest. If adrabourg
court had to analyse the validity and enforcegbditsuch provisions, it may likely consider thespion taken

by the FrenclCour de Cassatioand Belgian, French and Luxembourg legal schalecsrding to which Article
1154 of the Civil Code is not of international pohpolicy and, therefore, provisions relating te fmayment of
interest on interest provided for in a foreign ldecument, such as the Conditions, are not affdayedrticle
1154 of the Civil Code. There can, however, be umargntee that a Luxembourg court would take this@ach.

Risks related to the market generally
The secondary market generally.

Although application will be made to admit the S#oes to trading on the Market, the Securities rhaye no
established trading market when issued, and onermaegr develop. If a market does develop, it mayh®o
liquid. Therefore, investors may not be able td thalir Securities easily or at prices that wilbpide them with
a yield comparable to similar investments that haeveloped secondary market. This is particulludycase
for securities that are especially sensitive teriest rate, currency or market risks, are desidaedpecific
investment objectives or strategies or have be@paped to meet the investment requirements of dimit
categories of investors. These types of securg@werally would have a more limited secondary mtaskel
more price volatility than conventional debt settasi. llliquidity may have a severely adverse dffes the
market value of the Securities.

Exchange rate risks and exchange controls.

The Issuer will repay principal of and pay interestthe Securities in euro. This presents certaksrelating to
currency or currency unit conversions if an investdinancial activities are denominated principailty a
currency or a currency unit (thevestor’'s Currency other than euro. These include the risk that axge rates
may significantly change (including changes due ewatliation of euro, or revaluation of the Investor
Currency) and the risk that authorities with jurtéidn over the Investor’s Currency may impose avdify
exchange controls. An appreciation in the valutheflnvestor’s Currency relative to euro, wouldrdese (1)
the Investor's Currency equivalent yield on theusies, (2) the Investor's Currency equivalentueabf the
principal payable on the Securities and (3) thestar's Currency equivalent market value of theusges.

Government and monetary authorities may impossdage have done in the past) exchange controlsdidd
adversely affect an applicable exchange rate. Assalt, investors may receive less interest orcipal than
expected, or no interest or principal.
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Interest rate risks.

Investment in the Securities involves the risk thalbsequent changes in market interest rates magysady
affect the value of the Securities. Fluctuations irterest rates can affect the market values of] an
corresponding levels of capital gains or lossedigad rate securities. During periods of risingemst rates, the
prices of fixed rate securities, such as the Séesyritend to fall and gains are reduced or lossegiied upon
their sale. Therefore, investment in the Securitie®lves the risk that changes in market interats may
adversely affect the value of the Securities.

The Interest rate reset may result in a declineyidld.

As the Securities feature a fixed interest rate ik be reset during the term of the Securitielmlders are
exposed to the risk of fluctuating interest rateels and uncertain interest income. Fluctuatingriggt rate levels
make it impossible to determine the yield of suetusities in advance.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents which have previously bgeiblished or are published simultaneously with thie
Prospectus and have been filed with the CSSF khaticorporated in, and form part of, this Prospect

(@)

(b)

the independent auditors’ report and audited cafesield SES annual financial statements and audited
non-consolidated SES annual accounts for the finhpear ended 31 December 2014, set out on the
following pages of the SES Annual Report for tharyended 31 December 2014:

Consolidated:

Independent auditors’ report Page 74
Consolidated income statement Page 75
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income Page
Consolidated statement of financial position Page
Consolidated statement of cash flows Page 78
Consolidated statement of changes in shareholdgtsty Page 79
Notes to the consolidated financial statements ep8Q§-124

Non-consolidated:

Independent auditors’ report Page 126
Balance Sheet Page 127-128
Profit and loss account Page 129
Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity Page 1
Notes to the accounts Pages 130-138

The consolidated financial statements are drawrinugccordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EuropeannUiH®RS) and the non-consolidated annual
accounts are drawn up in accordance with the Luwengplegal and regulatory requirements relating
to the preparation of the annual accoubhtsxGAAP);

the independent auditors’ report and audited cafesield SES annual financial statements and audited
non-consolidated SES annual accounts for the finhgear ended 31 December 2015, set out on the
following pages of the SES Annual Report for tharyended 31 December 2015:

Consolidated:

Independent auditors’ report Page 66
Consolidated income statement Page 67
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income fage
Consolidated statement of financial position P&@e
Consolidated statement of cash flows Page 70
Consolidated statement of changes in shareholdgtsty Page 71
Notes to the consolidated financial statements ePdg-116
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(©)

(d)

(€)

Non-consolidated:

Independent auditors’ report Page 118
Balance Sheet Pages 119-120
Profit and loss account Page 121
Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity Page 1
Notes to the accounts Pages 122-131

The consolidated financial statements are drawm @ecordance with IFRS and the non-consolidated
annual accounts are drawn up in accordance witltGIAAP;

the following information set out in the Guarangsoconsolidated financial statements for the financi
year ended 31 December 2014:

Independent auditors’ report Pages 3-4
Consolidated income statement Page 5
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income fage
Consolidated statement of financial position Page 7
Consolidated statement of cash flows Page 8
Consolidated statement of changes in shareholdgtsty Page 9
Notes to the consolidated financial statements $£a0ec0

The Guarantor’s consolidated financial statememtgtfe financial year ended 31 December 2014 are
drawn up in accordance with IFRS;

the following information set out in the Guaransortonsolidated financial statements for the fignc
year ended 31 December 2015:

Independent auditors’ report Pages 3-4
Consolidated income statement Page 5
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income fage
Consolidated statement of financial position Page 7
Consolidated statement of cash flows Page 8
Consolidated statement of changes in shareholdgtsty Page 9
Notes to the consolidated financial statements $agel9

The Guarantor’s consolidated financial statememtgtfe financial year ended 31 December 2015 are
drawn up in accordance with IFRS;

the following information set out in the unaudiieterim condensed consolidated financial statements
of the Issuer for the six months ended 30 June:2015

Report on review of the condensed consolidatediténancial Page 18

information

Interim condensed consolidated income statement e Pag
Interim condensed consolidated statement of Page 20
comprehensive income

Interim condensed consolidated statement of fireupasition Page 21
Interim condensed consolidated statement of cash fl Page 22

Interim condensed consolidated statement of changes Page 23-24
shareholders’ equity
Notes to the interim condensed consolidated firrstatements Pages 25-29
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(f)

(@)

(h)

(i)
0

the following information set out in the unaudiieterim condensed consolidated financial statements
of the Issuer for the six months ended 30 June:2016

Report on review of the condensed consolidatediténancial Page 14
information

Interim condensed consolidated income statement e Pag
Interim condensed consolidated statement of Page 16
comprehensive income

Interim condensed consolidated statement of fireupasition Page 17
Interim condensed consolidated statement of cash fl Page 18
Interim condensed consolidated statement of changes Pages 19-20
shareholders’ equity

Notes to the interim condensed consolidated firdrstatements Pages 21-27

the following information set out in the unaudiieterim condensed consolidated financial statements
of the Guarantor for the six months ended 30 J@1&:2

Report on review of interim condensed consolidafidncial Page 2
statements

Interim condensed consolidated income statement e Bag
Interim condensed consolidated statement of conepisire income  Page 4
Interim condensed consolidated statement of fireupasition Page 5
Interim condensed consolidated statement of cash fl Page 6
Interim condensed consolidated statement of chaingeguity Page 7
Notes to the interim condensed consolidated firdrstatements Pages 8-14

the following information set out in the unaudiieterim condensed consolidated financial statements
of the Guarantor for the six months ended 30 J@1i6:2

Report on review of interim condensed consolidafidncial Page 2
statements

Interim condensed consolidated income statement e Bag
Interim condensed consolidated statement of conepisire income  Page 4
Interim condensed consolidated statement of firsupasition Page 5
Interim condensed consolidated statement of cash fl Page 6
Interim condensed consolidated statement of chaingeguity Page 7
Notes to the interim condensed consolidated firdrstatements Pages 8-13

the articles of association of the Issuer (in Hneswed English); and

the partnership agreement of the Guarantor (incatpd for information purposes only).

Copies of documents incorporated by reference im Bmospectus can be obtained, without chargengluri
normal business hours from the registered officBE$ at Chateau de Betzdorf, L-6815 Betzdorf, amah the
specified offices of the Principal Paying Agent foe time being in Luxembourg. This Prospectus aach
document incorporated by reference will also beliphbd on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange's website
(www.bourse.lu).

Any documents themselves incorporated by referéncthe documents incorporated by reference in this
Prospectus shall not form part of this Prospedtdisere only certain parts of the documents refetoeabove
are incorporated by reference in this Prospectus,parts of the document which are not incorpordigd
reference are either not relevant for the prospedtivestors in the Securities or the relevantrimfation is
included elsewhere in this Prospectus. The partieflocuments which are not incorporated by refarare
the parts which are not listed in the above crefrence lists.
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OVERVIEW OF THE SECURITIES

The following overview refers to certain provisioobthe ‘Terms and Conditions of the Securitieand is
qualified by the more detailed information contaieésewhere in this Prospectus. Capitalised terred herein
have the meaning given to them ifetms and Conditions of the Securities

Issuer SES S.A.

Guarantor SES Global Americas Holdings GP

Issue Size €550,000,000

Issue Date 29 November 2016

Issue Price 99.304 per cent.

Interest The Securities will bear interest on their printipmnount from (and

including) the Issue Date to (but excluding) thesFReset Date at a
rate of 5.625 per cent. per annum, payable anniralgrrear on 29

January in each year, except that the first payroEterest, to be

made on 29 January 2017, will be in respect ofpyeod from (and

including) the Issue Date to (but excluding) 29u#ay 2017 and will

amount to €9.375 per €1,000 in principal amounthaf Securities.

Thereafter, unless previously redeemed, the Sexuritll bear interest
from (and including) the First Reset Date to (butleding) 29 January
2029 at a rate per annum which shall be 5.401 eet. @above the 5
year Swap Rate (as defined in the Conditions) ferRbset Period (as
defined in the Conditions), payable annually in @r@n 29 January in
each year. From (and including) 29 January 202%ubexcluding) 29

January 2044 the Securities will bear interestrate per annum which
shall be 5.651 per cent. above the 5 year Swap Ratthe Reset

Period payable annually in arrear on 29 Januargaich year. From
(and including) 29 January 2044, the Securitie$ bahr interest at a
rate per annum which shall be 6.401 per cent. aboeé year Swap
Rate for the Reset Period payable annually in awaa29 January in
each year, all as more particularly describedTiartns and Conditions
of the Securities—Interest Payméngee also Change of Control’
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Optional Interest Deferral

Status of the Securities

Subordination of the Securities

The Issuer may, at its discretion, elect to defleorgpart of any Interest
Payment (eDeferred Interest Paymeitwhich is otherwise scheduled
to be paid on an Interest Payment Date by giviideterral Notice of
such election to the Holders, the Fiscal Agent, Registrar and the
Paying Agents. Subject as described Mahdatory Settlemehtif the
Issuer elects not to make all or part of any Irgefeayment on an
Interest Payment Date, then it will not have anljgaltion to pay such
interest on the relevant Interest Payment Date amg such non-
payment of interest will not constitute an EnforemmnEvent or any
other breach of its obligations under the Secwritie for any other
purpose.

Arrears of Interest may be satisfied at the optifihe Issuer in whole
but not in part at any time (th@ptional Deferred Interest Settlement
Date) following delivery of a notice to such effect giv by the Issuer
to the Holders, the Fiscal Agent, the Registrar tredPaying Agents
informing them of its election to so satisfy suctrédars of Interest (or
part thereof) and specifying the Optional Deferhatrest Settlement
Date.

Any Deferred Interest Payment (or part thereof)lIsitaelf bear
interest (such further interest together with thefdbred Interest
Payment, beingArrears of Interes}, at the Interest Rate prevailing
from time to time, from (and including) the datewhich (but for such
deferral) the Deferred Interest Payment would atfsr have been due
to be made to (but excluding) the Optional Defelrgdrest Settlement
Date or, as appropriate, such other date on whigth Deferred
Interest Payment is paid in accordance with Comdi8(b), in each
case such further interest being compounded on leséatest Payment
Date. Non-payment of Arrears of Interest shall cantstitute a default
by the Issuer under the Securities or for any offuepose, unless such
payment is required in accordance with Conditiorb) 86f the
Securities.

The Securities constitute direct, unsecured and orsliated
obligations of the Issuer and rargari passuand without any
preference among themselves.

In the event of: (a) an order being made, or amcéffe resolution
being passed, for the winding-up of the Issuer dpkcin any such
case, a solvent winding-up solely for the purpasfes reorganisation,
restructuring, reconstruction, merger, conversamalgamation or the
substitution in place of the Issuer of a New Issneaccordance with
Condition 18, the terms of which reorganisationstmecturing,
reconstruction, merger, conversion, amalgamatiosulastitution (x)
are authorised or permitted in accordance withpiawisions of the
Conditions or have previously been approved by atraBrdinary
Resolution (as defined in the Fiscal Agency Agredijramd (y) do not
provide that the Securities shall thereby becoméeemnable or
repayable in accordance with the Conditions); (bjadministrator or
receiver of the Issuer being appointed and suchirdstnator or
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Status of the Guarantee

Subordination of the Guarantee

Mandatory Settlement

receiver giving notice that it intends to declaned adistribute a
dividend or distribution; or (c) any analogous dveelating to the
Issuer to those described in (a) and (b) above ruadg insolvency,
bankruptcy or similar law applicable to the Issulke rights and claims
of the Holders against the Issuer in respect ofiriging under the
Securities will rank (i) junior to the claims ofl dlolders of Senior
Obligations of the Issuer, (ipari passuwith the claims of holders of
all Parity Obligations of the Issuer and (iii) santo the claims of
holders of all Junior Obligations of the Issuere SRisk Factors—
Risks related to the Securities generally—LimitechBdie’

The payment obligations under the Guarantee -catsstitirect,
unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Gt@rand ranlkpari
passuand without any preference among themselves.

In the event of: (a) an order being made, or apcéffe resolution
being passed, for the winding-up of the Guararggcépt, in any such
case, a solvent winding-up solely for the purpasfes reorganisation,
restructuring, reconstruction, merger, converseamalgamation or a
substitution in accordance with Condition 19, tleents of which
reorganisation, restructuring, reconstruction, ragrgconversion,
amalgamation or substitution (x) are authorised parmitted in
accordance with the provisions of the Conditionshave previously
been approved by an Extraordinary Resolution (faatkin the Fiscal
Agency Agreement) and (y) do not provide that tleeugities shall
thereby become redeemable or repayable in accardaith the
Conditions); (b) an administrator or receiver o tGuarantor being
appointed and such administrator or receiver givrgice that it
intends to declare and distribute a dividend airibligtion in respect of
the partnership interests (or, after a substituiorsuant to Condition
19, any other ownership interests) of the Guarantor (c) any
analogous event relating to the Guarantor to tleseribed in (a) and
(b) above under any insolvency, bankruptcy or simiaw applicable
to the Guarantor, the rights and claims of Hol@ayainst the Guarantor
in respect of or arising under the Guarantee \aifikr (i) junior to the
claims of the holders of all Senior Obligationstioé Guarantor, (ii)
pari passuwith the claims of the holders of all Parity Obligas of
the Guarantor and (iii) senior to the claims of thelders of all
Junior Obligations of the Guarantor. S&dsk Factors—Risks related
to the Securities generally—Limited Remedies

Notwithstanding the provisions ofOptional Interest Deferrd] the
Issuer shall pay any outstanding Arrears of Intefesvhole but not in
part, on the first occurring Mandatory SettlementeDiallowing the
Interest Payment Date on which a Deferred InteResgment first
arose.

If a Mandatory Settlement Date does not occur ptathe calendar
day which is the fifth anniversary of the Inter&styment Date on
which the Deferred Interest Payment first aroseisitthe intention,
though not an obligation, of the Issuer to pay altstanding Arrears
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of Interest (in whole, but not in part) on the néstiowing Interest
Payment Date.

No fixed maturity The Securities will be perpetual securities in eespf which there is
no fixed redemption date.

Optional Redemption The Issuer may redeem all, but not some only ofSbeurities on any
Call Date, at their principal amount together withy accrued and
unpaid interest up to (but excluding) the redenmmptitate and any
outstanding Arrears of Interest.

Special Event Redemption If a Special Event has occurred and is continuingn the Issuer may
redeem at any time all, but not some only, of theugties at:

® in the case of a Capital Event, Tax Deductionerif or
Accounting Event where the relevant date fixed for
redemption falls prior to the First Reset Date, ped cent. of
their principal amount;

(i) in the case of a Capital Event, Tax DeductiBrent or
Accounting Event where the relevant date fixed for
redemption falls on or after the First Reset Dategir
principal amount;

(iii) in the case of a Substantial Repurchase Event a
Withholding Tax Event where any such redemptioruceat
any time, their principal amount; or

(iv) in the case of a Change of Control Event whang such
redemption occurs at any time, at 101 per centthefr
principal amount,

in each case together with any accrued and unpteédest up to (but
excluding) the redemption date and any outstandingars of Interest.

Change of Control If a Change of Control Event has occurred and iigicaing, the Issuer
may elect to redeem all, but not some only, of 8eeurities at any
time at 101 per cent. of their principal amountetbgr with any
accrued and unpaid interest up to (but excludihg)redemption date
and any outstanding Arrears of Interest.

If the Issuer does not elect to redeem the Seesiritbllowing the
occurrence of a Change of Control Event, the thewgiling Interest
Rate, and each subsequent Interest Rate, on theittsc shall be
increased by 5 per cent. per annum with effect ftand including) the
date on which the Change of Control Event occurBs Terms and
Conditions of the Securities—Interest Payments—3tegdter Change
of Control Everit

Substitution or Variation If an Accounting Event, a Capital Event, a Tax Daohin Event or a
Withholding Tax Event has occurred and is contiguiwithout the
consent of Holders the Issuer may either (i) stiiistiall, but not some
only, of the Securities for, or (ii) vary the termfsthe Securities with

32



Substitution of Issuer

the effect that they remain or become, as the gwsebe, Qualifying
Securities, in each case in accordance with CamditiO thereof and
subject,inter alia, to the receipt by the Fiscal Agent of the cedificof

the directors of the Issuer and the relevant opmiceferred to in
Condition 11 thereof.

Subject to the provisions set out iTefms and Conditions of the
Securities — Substitution of Issliethe Issuer may at any time
substitute for itself as the principal debtor untlee Securities, the
Guarantor or any other member of the Group or aessor in business
of the Issuer provided that (i) a deed poll anchsoiher documents (if
any) are executed by the New Issuer and, to thenextecessary, the
other parties to the Fiscal Agency Agreement, ag beanecessary to
give full effect to the substitution and pursuanthich the New Issuer
undertakes in favour of each Holder and each Adtmlder (as
defined in the Deed of Covenant) to be bound byGbaditions, the
Deed of Covenant and the Fiscal Agency Agreemenprascipal
debtor in respect of the Securities in place of Igmuer, (i) each
Rating Agency confirms that upon the substitutiérine New Issuer
becoming effective the Securities will either habe same credit
rating as immediately prior to the substitutionttoe credit rating will
not be adversely affected, (iii) each Rating Ageoeyfirms that upon
such substitution becoming effective the Securitwdk either still be
eligible for the same, or a higher amount of, “égueredit” (or such
other nomenclature that the Rating Agency may il to describe
the degree to which an instrument exhibits the attaristics of an
ordinary share) as is attributed to the Securit@s the date
immediately prior to such substitution or such ibligy or attribution
will not be adversely affected, (iv) the Fiscal Agdas received legal
opinions addressed to the Holders from legal adviskinternationally
recognised standing approved by it to the eff@bgr alia, that (A) the
New Issuer has obtained all governmental and remylaapprovals
and consents necessary for its assumption of tHigations and
liabilities as principal debtor under the Condispnthe Deed of
Covenant and the Fiscal Agency Agreement in plddbelssuer, the
Holders have rights against the New Issuer at legstvalent to the
rights they have against the Issuer, subject toother conditions in
Condition 18 having been satisfied such assumptidually effective
and such obligations and liabilities are legallyidraand binding on,
and enforceable against, the New Issuer; (B) symbromals and
consents are in full force and effect at the tirheubstitution; and (C)
confirming, with respect to the New Issuer, comptiawith (v) below,
(v) all payments of principal and interest in repaf the Securities by
or on behalf of the New Issuer shall be made fred @ear of and
without withholding or deduction for or on accouoft any taxes,
duties, assessments or governmental charges ofsedvar nature
imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessedrbyn behalf of the
tax jurisdiction to which it is subject or any galal subdivision
thereof or any authority thereof or therein hayirogver to tax, (vi) any
stock exchange on which the Securities are lisbedirens to the Issuer
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Substitution of Guarantor and
termination of Guarantee

and the Fiscal Agent that, after giving effect h@ tsubstitution, the
Securities will continue to be listed on such stegkhange, (vii) two
Authorised Signatories of the New Issuer certifythe Fiscal Agent
that the New Issuer is solvent at the time at witheh substitution or
appointment is proposed to be effected and (vilip tAuthorised
Signatories of the Issuer or two Authorised Sigrietoof the New
Issuer certify to the Fiscal Agent that, followiegnsultation with an
independent investment bank of international repateindependent
financial adviser with appropriate expertise oreipendent counsel of
recognised standing, the Issuer or, as the caseébmaie New Issuer
has concluded that such substitution (i) will nesult in the New
Issuer having an entitlement, as at the date suloktitution becomes
effective, to redeem the Securities as a reswdt$pecial Event and (ii)
will not result in the terms of the Securities indiaely following
such substitution being materially less favourabléiolders than the
terms of the Securities immediately prior to sughssitution.

The Deed of Guarantee contains provisions whicha(ipw the
Guarantor at any time to substitute itself for Aeotentity in the Group
or a successor in business of the Guarantor; §nfdr(iso long as SES
Global Americas Holdings GP remains Guarantor, [geran
termination of the Guarantee where (I) an ordem@de by any
competent court or effective resolution passedttier winding up or
dissolution of SES Global Americas Holdings GP &id such
winding up or dissolution is for the purposes of pursuant to an
amalgamation, reorganisation or restructuring whilelvent and
pursuant to which SES S.A. assumes all of the siskabilities and
obligations of SES Global Americas Holdings GP,hw#ny such
termination pursuant to (i) above becoming effeetiupon the
relevant winding up or dissolution taking effechelfGuarantor may
only elect to effect any such substitution or teration if (i) no
Enforcement Event has occurred and is continuiigeéch Rating
Agency confirms that upon such substitution or teation becoming
effective the Securities will either have the saomnedit rating as
immediately prior to such substitution or termioatior the credit
rating will not be adversely affected, (iii) eachtRg Agency confirms
that upon such substitution or termination becomeffective the
Securities will either still be eligible for thersa, or a higher amount
of, “equity credit” (or such other nomenclaturetttiee Rating Agency
may then use to describe the degree to which @ammsent exhibits the
characteristics of an ordinary share) as is atteibtio the Securities on
the date immediately prior to such substitutiortesmination or such
eligibility or attribution will not be adversely f@tcted and (iv) two
Authorised Signatories of the Issuer or two Autbed Signatories of
the Guarantor certify to the Fiscal Agent that|dieing consultation
with an independent investment bank of internatiorepute, an
independent financial adviser with appropriate etige or independent
counsel of recognised standing, the Issuer orhasase may be, the
Guarantor has concluded that such substitutioreronibation (i) will
not result in the Issuer having an entitlement,ahghe date such
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Enforcement Event

Additional Amounts

Form

Listing and Admission to Trading

Denominations

Governing Law

substitution or termination becomes effective,édaem the Securities
as a result of a Special Event and (i) in the adsesubstitution only,
will not result in the terms of the Securities ahd Guarantee (taken
together) immediately following such substitutioginy materially less
favourable to holders than the terms of the Seesrénd the Guarantee
(taken together) immediately prior to such subgtitu

If a default is made by the Issuer and the Guardntoa period of 14
days or more in the payment of principal or 21 daysnore in the
payment of interest, in each case in respect oStwirities and which
is due, then any Holder may, at its sole discretiamstitute

proceedings for the winding-up of the Issuer andf@ Guarantor
and/or prove in the winding-up of the Issuer andhloe Guarantor
and/or claim in the liquidation of the Issuer amdfee Guarantor, for
such payment, and in the event of a winding uphef Issuer in a
manner falling within Condition 14(a), any Holddra#l be entitled to
claim for all unpaid principal in respect of a Sefyuit holds together
with any accrued and unpaid interest up to (butuekeg) such date
and any outstanding Arrears of Interest in respéeiny such Security,
with such rights and claims subordinated as pravideCondition 3(a).

Payments in respect of the Securities shall be nfregeand clear of,
and without withholding or deduction for, or on agnt of, taxes of
Luxembourg or the United States or any politicabdvision or any

authority thereof or therein having power to taxpless such

withholding or deduction is required by law. In tiaent that any such
withholding or deduction is made, additional amsumiay be payable
by the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case magugect to certain
exceptions as are more fully described underths and Conditions of
the Securities—Taxatitn

The Securities will be in registered form represdnbn issue by a
global certificate (theSlobal Certificat§ which will be registered in
the name of a nominee for Euroclear and Clearstreasembourg on

the Issue Date. Save in limited circumstances,ifidates will not be

issued in exchange for interests in the Globalifizte.

Application has been made to list the SecuritiethenOfficial List and
to be admitted to trading on the Market.

The Securities will be issued in denominations 4D&000 and
integral multiples of €1,000 in excess thereof. d¢otificates will be
issued with a denomination below €100,000. SedéurfThe Global
Certificate'.

English law save for the provisions relating to aalination of the
Securities contained in Condition 3(a) which shallbject to the
provisions of Condition 18(d)Substitution of Issug¢rand Condition
19(e) Gubstitution of Guarantor and termination of Guaed), be
governed by the laws of Luxembourg and the promiicelating to
subordination of the Guarantee contained in Camlité(a) (and
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Ratings

Use of Proceeds

Selling Restrictions

Risk Factors

ISIN
Common Code

Fiscal Agent, Paying Agent,
Transfer Agent and Registrar

Agent Bank

Replacement Intention

corresponding provisions of the Guarantee) whichl e governed by
the laws of Delaware.

The Securities are expected to be rated BB+ bydatan& Poor’s and
Bal by Moody’s. A rating is not a recommendatiotbty, sell or hold
securities and may be subject to suspension, rieduat withdrawal at
any time by the assigning rating agency. As of ttade of this
Prospectus, each Rating Agency is a credit ratijmey established in
the European Union and is registered under RegulatEC) No
1060/2009 (as amended). As such each Rating Agsniogluded in
the list of credit rating agencies published by Eheopean Securities
and Markets Authority on its website in accordansi¢h such
Regulation.

The net proceeds of the issue of the Securitidshailapplied by the
Issuer for general corporate purposes and the mepayof certain
existing indebtedness of the Group.

The United States, the United Kingdom, France, dapad the
Republic of Italy. See “Subscription and Sale”.

Category 2 offering restrictions have been implemmeénfor the
purposes of Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Prospective investors should carefully consideritii@rmation set out
in “Risk Factorsin conjunction with the other information contaih
or incorporated by reference in this Prospectus.

XS1405765659
140576565

BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch

BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch

Unless (a) the rating assigned by Standard & Potw'she Issuer is at
least “BBB” (or such similar nomenclature then usey Standard &

Poor’s) and the Issuer is of the view that suchngtwould not fall

below this level as a result of such redemptioneuurchase; or (b)

the Securities are not assigned an “equity credidt such similar

nomenclature then used by Standard & Poor’s), & time of such
redemption or repurchase; or (c) in the case ofepurchase, such
repurchase is in an amount necessary to allow Hsedr's aggregate
principal amount of hybrid capital remaining outsthng after such
repurchase to remain below the maximum aggregateipal amount

of hybrid capital to which Standard & Poor's woultksign equity
content under its prevailing methodology, the Issatends (without
thereby assuming a legal obligation), during theriqud from and

including the issue date of the Securities to bidlugling the Reset
Date falling on 29 January 2044, in the event of:

36



@ an early redemption of the Securities pursuemCondition
9(b); or

(i) a repurchase of the Securities of more thanl(Q per cent. of
the aggregate principal amount of the Securitiegioally
issued in any period of 12 consecutive months pR2%bhper
cent. of the aggregate principal amount of the Btes
originally issued in any period of 10 consecutieang,

to redeem or repurchase such Securities only toettient that such
part of the aggregate principal amount of the Sdims to be
redeemed or repurchased as was characterised agydnu Standard
& Poor’s at the time of their issuance (but takimgo account any
changes in hybrid capital methodology or anotherlevant
methodology or the interpretation thereof since tbsuance of the
Securities) does not exceed such part of the netepds which is
received by the Issuer or any subsidiary of thedssluring the 360-
day period prior to the date of such redemptiomepurchase from the
sale or issuance by the Issuer or any subsidiartheflssuer to third
party purchasers (other than subsidiaries of trmu&) of securities as
is characterised by Standard & Poor’s, at the tiofesale or issuance,
as equity.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SECURITIES

The following, except for paragraphs in italicseahe terms and conditions of the Securities whiithbe
endorsed on each Security in definitive form @tied).

The issue of the €550,000,000 Deeply SubordinateddFRate Resettable Securities (®ecurities which
expression shall, unless the context otherwise imegjuinclude any further securities issued pursuan
Condition 22 and forming a single series with thexBities) of SES S.A. (thkssuen was authorised by
resolutions of the board of directors of the Isquesssed on 7 April 2016 and 22 September 2016 ppicheed

by the executive committee of the Issuer on 31 Et@016, 11 November 2016 and 21 November 2015, an
the guarantee of the Securities was authorise@dnlutions of the partners of SES Global Americaklidgs
GP (theGuarantor) dated 28 October 2016. The Securities are subjecnd have the benefit of, a deed of
covenant (thédeed of Covenantdated 29 November 2016 entered into by the IsSile Securities are also
the subject of a fiscal agency agreement Riseal Agency Agreemeiptdated 29 November 2016 relating to
the Securities between the Issuer, the GuaranhiP, Baribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Brasdiseal
agent and paying agent (tiéscal Agent and together with any additional or successolingaggents, the
Paying Agent} BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg &raas agent bank (thgent Bank, BNP
Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branchegstrar (theRegistra) and the transfer agents named
therein (together with the Registrar, fhi@nsfer Agentswhich expression includes any successor or additi
transfer agents appointed from time to time in emtion with the Securities). These terms and cmndit(as
amended from time to time) (tt@onditiong include summaries of, and are subject to, thailéet provisions of
the Fiscal Agency Agreement, the Deed of Covenadttlae Deed of Guarantee (as defined in Conditifhhé
Guaranteg. The Fiscal Agency Agreement includes the foriiithe Securities. Copies of (i) the Fiscal Agency
Agreement; (ii) the Deed of Covenant; and (iii) beed of Guarantee are available for inspectiomduwisual
business hours at the principal office of the Hiskgent (presently at 60, avenue J.F. Kennedy, 80
Luxembourg). The holders of the Securities aretledtto the benefit of, are bound by, and are deetodave
notice of, all the provisions of the Deed of Couenand the Deed of Guarantee applicable to themahdve
notice of all of the provisions of the Fiscal Aggmggreement applicable to them.

1 Form, Denomination and Title
@) Form and Denomination

The Securities are issued in registered form indigreominations of €100,000 and integral multiple€1n000
in excess thereof up to and including €199,000eéusty certificate (each @ertificate) will be issued to each
holder in respect of its registered holding of S#éims. Each Certificate will be serially numberedth an
identifying number which will be recorded on théekant Certificate and in the register of holdetsich the
Issuer will procure to be kept by the Registrae @egistey.

The Issuer will maintain a register of holders lo¢ tSecurities at its registered office in accordawith the
provisions of the Luxembourg law of 10 August 194% commercial companies, as amended, which shall
match the Register with regard to the entries thete the event of any discrepancy between thedRagand

the register held by the Issuer at its registeffédep the register held by the Issuer at its rieged office shall
prevail for Luxembourg law purposes.

The Fiscal Agency Agreement contains provisionschvtoblige the Registrar promptly to provide an upda
copy of the Register to the Issuer on the Issue Batl at any time following any amendment to thgifRer, in
order to allow the Issuer to update the registét bt at its registered office to reflect thegraer.

(b)  Title

Title to the Securities passes only by registratiothe Register. The holder of any Security witk¢ept as
otherwise required by law) be treated as its absawner for all purposes (whether or not it isrdue and
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regardless of any notice of ownership, trust or imtgrest in it, any writing on it, or its theft ¢wss of, the
Certificate issued in respect of it) and no perailhbe liable for so treating the holder. In theSenditions,
Holder or holder means the person in whose name a Security is eegiisin the Register.

(©) Transfers

A Security may be transferred by depositing thetiteate issued in respect of that Security, wiie form of
transfer on the back duly completed and signethespecified office of the Registrar or any of ffransfer
Agents.

(d) Delivery of new Certificates

Each new Certificate to be issued upon transfeeafurities will, within five business days of reateby the
Registrar or the relevant Transfer Agent of theydudmpleted form of transfer endorsed on the releva
Certificate, be mailed by uninsured mail at th& o6the Holder entitled to the Security to the sdd specified

in the form of transfer. For the purposes of thandition, business dayghall mean a day on which banks are
open for business in the city in which the spedifadfice of the Registrar or Transfer Agent with oxin a
Certificate is deposited in connection with a tfanss located.

Where some but not all of the Securities in respégthich a Certificate is issued are to be trameff a new
Certificate in respect of the Securities not samdfarred will, within five business days of recelpt the
Registrar or the relevant Transfer Agent of thgioel Certificate, be mailed by uninsured mailted tisk of the
Holder of the Securities not so transferred to dlderess of such Holder appearing on the Registeasor
specified in the form of transfer.

(e) Formalities free of charge

Registration of transfer of Securities will be effed without charge by or on behalf of the Isstles,Registrar
or any Transfer Agent upon payment (or the giviigswch indemnity as the Issuer, the Registrar gr an
Transfer Agent may reasonably require) in respkeng stamp duty, tax or other governmental chavg@sh
may be imposed in relation to such transfer.

® Closed periods

No Holder may require the transfer of a Securitheaegistered during the period of 15 days endimthe due
date for any payment of principal or premium onttBacurity or in the period falling 15 days priar dny
Interest Payment Date.

(9) Regulations

All transfers of Securities and entries on the Riegiwill be made subject to such reasonable régntaas the
Issuer and the Registrar may from time to timegiks (the initial such regulations being set ouSchedule 3
to the Fiscal Agency Agreement).

2 Status

The Securities constitute direct, unsecured andrdirtated obligations of the Issuer and raaki passuand
without any preference among themselves. The riginisclaims of the Holders are subordinated agitheskin
Condition 3 Subordinatioi.

3 Subordination
€)) General

In the event of;
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(@) an order being made, or an effective resolutiomgp@assed, for the winding-up of the Issuer (except
in any such case, a solvent winding-up solely fog purposes of a reorganisation, restructuring,
reconstruction, merger, conversion, amalgamatiothersubstitution in place of the Issuer of a New
Issuer in accordance with Condition 18upstitution of Issugrthe terms of which reorganisation,
restructuring, reconstruction, merger, conversamalgamation or substitution (x) are authorised or
permitted in accordance with the provisions of ¢h€snditions or have previously been approved by
an Extraordinary Resolution and (y) do not proviug the Securities shall thereby become redeemable
or repayable in accordance with these Conditions);

(b) an administrator or receiver of the Issuer beingoaped and such administrator or receiver giving
notice that it intends to declare and distributévédend or distribution; or

(c) any analogous event relating to the Issuer to theseribed in (a) and (b) above under any insolgenc
bankruptcy or similar law applicable to the Issuer,

the rights and claims of the Holders against tiseids in respect of or arising under the Securitidisrank

(i) junior to the claims of all holders of Seniotbl@ations of the Issuer, (iipari passuwith the claims of
holders of all Parity Obligations of the Issuer diiiJl senior to the claims of holders of all Juni®bligations of
the Issuer.

Nothing in this Condition 3(a) shall affect or pretjce the payment of the costs, charges, expeledasties or
remuneration of the Agents or the rights and reswedf the Agents in respect thereof.

Accordingly, and without prejudice to the rightstbé Agents, the claims of holders of all Senioligations
will first have to be satisfied in any winding-up @dministration or any other proceeding describied(a)
through (c) above before the Holders may expeobtain any recovery in respect of their Securiiesl prior
thereto Holders will have only limited ability tofiluence the conduct of such winding-up or adnmaiitn. See
the section entitled “Risk Factors — Risks relatedhe Securities generally — Limited Remedies”.

The Issuer does not have any Preferred Sharesdttiuer outstanding and the Issuer’s articlesssfomiation

do not provide for the issuance of such shareshieyl$suer. For so long as any of the Securitiesarem
outstanding, the Guarantor and the Issuer do ntgrid to issue any Preferred Shares of the IsdRieferred
Shares of the Issuemeans any shares in the Issuer which constitusgital without voting rights” issued in
accordance with Article 44(1) of the Luxembourg lafvl0 August 1915 on Commercial Companies, as
amended, and which confer a preferential right withpect to the reimbursement of contributions.

(b) Set-off

Subject to applicable law, no Holder may exerait@m or plead any right of set-off, compensatiometention
in respect of any amount owed to it by the Issmereispect of, or arising under or in connectiorhwftie
Securities and each Holder shall, by virtue oftotding of any Security, be deemed to have waiveduzh
rights of set-off, compensation or retention.

4 The Guarantee

The Guarantor has, subject to the provisions ofdtimm 19 Substitution of the Guarantor and termination of
the Guaranteg unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed the gpbayment of all sums expressed to be
payable by the Issuer under the Securities on erdinated basis. Its obligations in that respdwt Guaranteg

are set out in the deed of guarantee dated the Bsate and made by the Guarantor for the benefihef
Holders (theDeed of Guarantee
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5 Status of the Guarantee

The payment obligations under the Guarantee catestitirect, unsecured and subordinated obligatidribe
Guarantor and rangari passuand without any preference among themselves. ah@a of the subordination
of the Guarantee is described in Conditiors@kordination of the Guarantge

6 Subordination of the Guarantee
@) General
In the event of;

€)) an order being made, or an effective resolutiomdaeiassed, for the winding-up of the Guarantor
(except, in any such case, a solvent winding-ugehgofor the purposes of a reorganisation,
restructuring, reconstruction, merger, conversiamalgamation or a substitution or termination in
accordance with Condition 1$bstitution of Guarantor and termination of Guaea), the terms of
which reorganisation, restructuring, reconstructimerger, conversion, amalgamation, substitution or
termination (x) are authorised or permitted in adaace with the provisions of these Conditionsher t
Deed of Guarantee or have previously been apprbyeaih Extraordinary Resolution and (y) do not
provide that the Securities shall thereby becontieamable or repayable in accordance with these
Conditions);

(b) an administrator or receiver of the Guarantor beipgointed and such administrator or receiver givin
notice that it intends to declare and distributdivadend or distribution in respect of the partingjps
interests (or, after a substitution pursuant toditoon 19 Substitution of Guarantor and termination of
Guaranteg, any other ownership interests) of the Guararmtor;

(c) any analogous event relating to the Guarantor tsethdescribed in (a) and (b) above under any
insolvency, bankruptcy or similar law applicabletie Guarantor,

the rights and claims of Holders against the Guarain respect of or arising under the Guarantde rank
() junior to the claims of the holders of all SenDbligations of the Guarantor, (pari passuwith the claims
of the holders of all Parity Obligations of the @tor and (iii) senior to the claims of the hoklef all Junior
Obligations of the Guarantor.

Nothing in this Condition 6(a) shall affect or pretice the payment of the costs, charges, expeledasties or
remuneration of the Agents or the rights and reswedf the Agents in respect thereof.

Accordingly, and without prejudice to the rightstbé Agents, the claims of holders of all Senioligations
will first have to be satisfied in any winding-up @dministration or any other proceeding describied(a)

through (c) above before the Holders may expecobtain any recovery in respect of the Guarantee jaiolr

thereto Holders will have only limited ability tofiluence the conduct of such winding-up or adnmaiitn. See
the section entitled “Risk Factors — Risks relatedhe Securities generally — Limited Remedies”.

(b) Set-off

Subject to applicable law, no Holder may exerait@m or plead any right of set-off, compensatiometention
in respect of any amount owed to it by the Guamaimaespect of, or arising under or in connectiath the
Guarantee and each Holder shall, by virtue of bigihg of any Security, be deemed to have waivédwadh
rights of set-off, compensation or retention.
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7 Interest Payments
€)) Interest Rate

The Securities bear interest on their principal am@t the applicable Interest Rate from (and idiclg) 29
November 2016 (thkssue Daté in accordance with the provisions of this Coraditi.

Subject to Condition 8Jptional Interest Deferrg) interest shall be payable on the Securities alhynin arrear
on each Interest Payment Date as provided in thigdifion 7, except that the first payment of ingtréo be
made on 29 January 2017, will be in respect optréod from (and including) the Issue Date to @xtluding)
29 January 2017 and will amount to €9.375 per Qatlicun Amount (as defined below).

(b) Interest Accrual

The Securities will cease to bear interest frond (entluding) the date of redemption thereof pursuarthe
relevant paragraph of Condition Rddemptiopor the date of substitution thereof pursuant tmdition 10
(Substitution or Variatioy) as the case may be, unless payment of all amalurgt in respect of the Securities is
not made, in which event interest shall continuaderue in respect of unpaid amounts on the Sesrhoth
before and after judgment, and shall be payablegragided in these Conditions up to (but excluditiog
Relevant Date.

Save as provided in Condition 7(c), where it isassary to calculate an amount of interest in réspleany
Security for a period which is less than a compiatar, such interest shall be calculated on theés lmshe
actual number of days in the period from (and idiclg) the most recent Interest Payment Date (avoiife, the
Issue Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payndané divided by the actual number of days in tréod from
(and including) the most recent Interest Paymené [ar, if none, the Issue Date) to (but excluditig) next (or
first) scheduled Interest Payment Date.

Where it is necessary to calculate an amount efést in respect of any Security for a period oferthan one
year, such interest shall be the aggregate ofitieesist payable in respect of a full year plusitiberest payable
in respect of the remaining period calculated anrttanner as aforesaid.

Interest in respect of any Security shall be cal@d per €1,000 in principal amount thereof (@adculation
Amount). The amount of interest payable per Calculatiana@nt for any period shall, save as provided in
Condition 7(c), be equal to the product of thevahd Interest Rate, the Calculation Amount anddég count
fraction as described in this Condition 7(b) foe tielevant period, rounding the resulting figurdhte nearest
cent (half a cent being rounded upwards). The atafuinterest payable in respect of each Secuhifl e the
aggregate of the amounts (determined in the mamoeided above) for each Calculation Amount conipgs
the denomination of such Security without any farttounding.

(©) First Fixed Interest Rate

For each Interest Period ending on or before thet Reset Date and subject to Condition 8, the IBexibear
interest at the rate of 5.625 per cent. per antheHrst Fixed Interest Rat§, payable annually in arrear on the
Interest Payment Date in each year, except thafirdtepayment of interest, to be made on 29 JanRad7,
will be in respect of the period from (and incluglirthe Issue Date to (but excluding) 29 January’28id will
amount to €9.375 per Calculation Amount.

(d) Subsequent Fixed Interest Rates

For each Interest Period which commences on or thfteFirst Reset Date and subject to Conditio@gtipnal
Interest Deferrd), the Securities bear interest at the relevans&aient Fixed Interest Rate. Such interest shall
be payable annually in arrear on the Interest Payrbate in each year and shall be calculated, sulbje
Condition 7(i) below, as follows:
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Subsequent Fixed Interest Rat& year Swap Rate + Margin
all as determined by the Agent Bank and where,

5 year Swap Ratemeans the annual mid-swap rate as displayed oreiRescreen “EURSFIXA” as at
11:00 a.m. (Central European time) (fReset Screen Payj®n the day falling two Business Days prior to the
first day of the relevant Reset Period (Reset Interest Determination Date

If the 5 year Swap Rate does not appear on the Beseen Page on the Reset Interest Determinatioe, the
5 year Swap Rate will be the Reset Reference Baitdk & such Reset Interest Determination Date;

Reset Reference Bank Ratmeans the percentage rate determined on the bh$ie 5 year Swap Rate
Quotations provided by five leading swap dealerthminterbank market (theeset Reference Bankso the
Agent Bank at approximately 11:00 a.m. (Centraldpean time) on such Reset Interest Determinatide. D
at least three quotations are provided, the 5 $veap Rate will be the arithmetic mean of the quanat
eliminating the highest quotation (or, in the eveh¢quality, one of the highest) and the lowesitgtion (or, in
the event of equality, one of the lowest);

the5 year Swap Rate Quotatiommeans, in respect of each Interest Period falliitgin a Reset Period, the
arithmetic mean of the bid and offered rates ferahnual fixed leg (calculated on a 30/360 day tbasis) of
a fixed-for-floating euro interest rate swap whichhas a term of 5 years commencing on the releRaset
Interest Determination Date, (ii) is in an amoumattis representative of a single transaction & riflevant
market at the relevant time with an acknowledgedlateof good credit in the swap market, and (idsha
floating leg based on the 6-month EURIBOR ratec{dated on an Actual/360 day count basis); and

Margin means in respect of (i) the Reset Period endin@panexcluding) 29 January 2029, 5.401 per céiit.;
each Reset Period which falls in the period comnmgnan (and including) 29 January 2029 and endmgboit
excluding) 29 January 2044, 5.651 per cent.; dideéich Reset Period which falls on or after 28uday 2044,
6.401 per cent.

If on any Reset Interest Determination Date onlg onnone of the Reset Reference Banks provide&dbat
Bank with a 5 year Swap Rate Quotation as provigeedhe foregoing provisions of this paragraph, the
Subsequent Fixed Interest Rate shall be deterntinked (i) the Interest Rate as at the last pregeRiEset Date
less the Margin applicable as from the last preggéieset Date plus the Margin applicable as froenctivrent
Reset Interest Determination Date or (ii) in theecaf the first Reset Interest Determination D#ie, First
Fixed Interest Rate.

The Subsequent Fixed Interest Rate shall be detethds provided above in respect of each ReseaidPanid,
as so determined, such rate shall apply to eaenelsit Period falling within that Reset Period.

For the purposes of this Condition 7(d), the Ageanhk shall not be responsible to the Issuer omiothird
party as a result of the Agent Bank having relipdruor acted on any quotation or information giterit for

the purposes of calculating the Subsequent Fix¢éekdst Rate or the Reset Reference Bank Rate which
subsequently may be found to be incorrect or in@ateun any way or for any losses whatsoever riesuftom
acting in accordance therewith.

(e) Determination of Subsequent Fixed Interest Rates

The Agent Bank will, as soon as practicable afte0Q a.m. (Central European time) on each Resetdsit
Determination Date, determine the Subsequent Fixtatest Rate in respect of each Interest Peritithda
within the relevant Reset Period.
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® Publication of Subsequent Fixed Interest Rates

The Issuer shall cause notice of each Subsequert Fnterest Rate determined in accordance with thi
Condition 7 in respect of each relevant Interestoeleo be given to the Fiscal Agent, the Registitae Paying
Agents, any stock exchange on which the Secuitiedor the time being listed or admitted to trgdamd, in
accordance with Condition 2Né¢ticeg, the Holders, in each case as soon as practiaétbleits determination
but in any event not later than the fourth Busiri2ayg thereafter.

(9) Agent Bank and Reset Reference Banks

With effect from the Reset Interest Determinaticatérelating to the First Reset Date, the Issubmudintain
an Agent Bank and five Reset Reference Banks wheriterest Rate is to be calculated by referémtieem.
The name of the initial Agent Bank and its inisglecified office is set out at the end of theseditamns.

The Issuer may from time to time replace the Adgartk with another leading financial institutionliondon,
Paris or Luxembourg. If the Agent Bank is unableimwilling to continue to act as the Agent BanKails duly
to determine a Subsequent Fixed Interest Ratesjpent of any Interest Period as provided in Coomlifi(d),
the Issuer shall forthwith appoint another leadingncial institution in London, Paris or Luxembguo act as
such in its place. The Agent Bank may not resigndiities or be removed without a successor haveeg b
appointed as aforesaid.

(h) Determinations of Agent Bank Binding

All notifications, opinions, determinations, ceidites, calculations, quotations and decisionsngiegpressed,
made or obtained for the purposes of this Condifidny the Agent Bank shall (in the absence of Wilfefault,
manifest error or negligence) be binding on thedssthe Guarantor, the other Agents and all Hslderd (in
the absence of wilful default, manifest error ogligience) no liability to the Holders or the Issshall attach to
the Agent Bank in connection with the exercise @ar-axercise by it of any of its powers, duties drstretions.

® Step-up after Change of Control Event

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Condliti7, if the Issuer does not elect to redeem tloar8ies in
accordance with Condition 9(gRédemption for Change of Control EVefillowing the occurrence of a
Change of Control Event, the then prevailing InderBate, and each subsequent Interest Rate otkerwis
determined in accordance with the provisions of tondition 7, on the Securities shall be incredse8 per
cent. per annum with effect from (and including) ttate on which the Change of Control Event occdurre

8 Optional Interest Deferral
€)) Deferral of Payments

The Issuer may, at its discretion, elect to deflenrgpart of any Interest PaymentQeferred Interest Paymet
which is otherwise scheduled to be paid on an éstePayment Date by giving notice Qaferral Notice of
such election to the Holders in accordance withdtmm 21 (Notice$, the Fiscal Agent, the Registrar and the
Paying Agents not more than 14 nor fewer than 7ri&ss Days prior to the relevant Interest Paymeate D
Subject to Condition 8(b), if the Issuer elects tmimake all or part of any Interest Payment onrderest
Payment Date, then it will not have any obligattorpay such interest on the relevant Interest PaybDate
and any such non-payment of interest will not dtumst an Enforcement Event (as defined in Conditldn
(Enforcement Evejjtor any other breach of its obligations under$ieeurities or for any other purpose.

Arrears of Interest (as defined below) may be fatisat the option of the Issuer in whole but nopart at any
time (theOptional Deferred Interest Settlement Datfllowing delivery of a notice to such effect givby the
Issuer to the Holders in accordance with CondifidnNoticeg, the Fiscal Agent, the Registrar and the Paying
Agents not more than 14 nor fewer than 7 Busineags[prior to the relevant Optional Deferred Interes
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Settlement Date informing them of its election dosatisfy such Arrears of Interest and specifyimg televant
Optional Deferred Interest Settlement Date.

Any Deferred Interest Payment shall itself beaenest (such further interest together with the DeteInterest
Payment, beind\rrears of Interes}, at the Interest Rate prevailing from time todjnfrom (and including) the
date on which (but for such deferral) the Deferrgdrest Payment would otherwise have been due todde
to (but excluding) the relevant Optional Deferratetest Settlement Date or, as appropriate, suwr date on
which such Deferred Interest Payment is paid iroatance with Condition 8(b), in each case suchhéurt
interest being compounded on each Interest PayDeet

Non-payment of Arrears of Interest shall not cdngsti a default by the Issuer or the Guarantor unider
Securities or for any other purpose, unless sugmeat is required in accordance with Condition 8(b)

(b) Mandatory Settlement of Arrears of Interest

Notwithstanding the provisions of Condition 8(alptig to the ability of the Issuer to defer Intr@ayments,
the Issuer, failing which the Guarantor, shall pay outstanding Arrears of Interest, in whole bottin part, on
the first occurring Mandatory Settlement Date faflog the Interest Payment Date on which a Defehnégfest
Payment first arose.

Notice of the occurrence of any Mandatory Settlenigeite shall be given to the Holders in accordanite
Condition 21 Noticeg, the Fiscal Agent, the Registrar and the Payiggms not more than 14 and no fewer
than 7 Business Days prior to the relevant Mangabettlement Date.

If a Mandatory Settlement Date does not occur ptiothe calendar day which is the fifth anniversafythe
Interest Payment Date on which the relevant Detkirderest Payment first arose, it is the intentitiough
not an obligation, of the Issuer to pay all outstang Arrears of Interest (in whole, but not in pash the next
following Interest Payment Date.

9 Redemption
(@) No Fixed Redemption Date

The Securities are perpetual securities in reggfeshich there is no fixed redemption date andifiseier shall
(subject to the provisions of Condition 3(&ubordination — Genergl only have the right to repay them in
accordance with the following provisions of thisn@dion 9.

(b) Issuer’s Call Option

The Issuer may, by giving not fewer than 30 norentyan 60 days’ notice to the Fiscal Agent, theifRey
and, in accordance with Condition 24ctice3, the Holders (which notice shall be irrevocablejeem all, but
not some only, of the Securities on any Call Datbeir principal amount together with any accraed unpaid
interest up to (but excluding) the redemption datd any outstanding Arrears of Interest. Upon ttre of
such notice, the Issuer shall redeem the Securities

(©) Redemption for Certain Taxation Reasons

If, immediately prior to the giving of the noticeferred to below, a Tax Deduction Event or a Witdimgy Tax
Event has occurred and is continuing, then theetssiay, subject to having given not fewer than 80more
than 60 days’ notice to the Fiscal Agent, the Regjisand, in accordance with Condition 2ofice3, the
Holders (which notice shall be irrevocable) andjettbto Condition 11 Rreconditions to Special Event
Redemption, Change of Control Event Redemptionstiutibpn and Variatioly, redeem in accordance with
these Conditions at any time all, but not some ,onfythe Securities at (i) 101 per cent. of theaingipal
amount (in the case of a Tax Deduction Event whaoh redemption occurs prior to the First ReseeDatt (ii)
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their principal amount (in the case of a Tax DehimcEvent where such redemption occurs on or #feiFirst
Reset Date or in the case of a Withholding Tax Evérere such redemption occurs at any time), tageth
each case, with any accrued and unpaid interest (fut excluding) the redemption date and anytantiing
Arrears of Interest. Upon the expiry of such nqttbe Issuer shall redeem the Securities.

(d) Redemption for Rating Reasons

If, immediately prior to the giving of the noticeferred to below, a Capital Event has occurred iand
continuing, then the Issuer may, subject to hagivgn not fewer than 30 nor more than 60 days’aeotd the
Fiscal Agent, the Registrar and, in accordance @ibhdition 21 Noticeg, the Holders (which notice shall be
irrevocable) and subject to Condition Brdconditions to Special Event Redemption, Chageoatrol Event
Redemption, Substitution and Variatjpredeem in accordance with these Conditiongatinot some only, of
the Securities at any time at (i) 101 per centhefr principal amount (where such redemption cgairior to
the First Reset Date) or (ii) their principal ambwhere such redemption occurs on or after thet Reset
Date), together, in each case, with any accruediapdid interest up to (but excluding) the redeorptiate and
any outstanding Arrears of Interest. Upon the gxpirsuch notice, the Issuer shall redeem the Sasur

(e) Redemption for Accounting Reasons

If, immediately prior to the giving of the noticeferred to below, an Accounting Event has occueed is
continuing, then the Issuer may, subject to hagivgn not fewer than 30 nor more than 60 days’aeatd the
Fiscal Agent, the Registrar and, in accordance @ibhdition 21 Noticeg, the Holders (which notice shall be
irrevocable) and subject to Condition Brdconditions to Special Event Redemption, Chahdeoatrol Event
Redemption, Substitution and Variatjpredeem in accordance with these Conditiongatinot some only, of
the Securities at any time at (i) 101 per centhefr principal amount (where such redemption cgarior to
the First Reset Date) or (ii) their principal amb@where such redemption occurs on or after thet Reset
Date), together, in each case, with any accruediapdid interest up to (but excluding) the redeorptiate and
any outstanding Arrears of Interest. Upon the gxpirsuch notice, the Issuer shall redeem the Sasur

) Redemption for Substantial Repurchase

If, immediately prior to the giving of the noticeferred to below, a Substantial Repurchase Evenbbeurred,
then the Issuer may, subject to having given nakefethan 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice to theeddi
Agent, the Registrar and, in accordance with Camdi21l (Notice3, the Holders (which notice shall be
irrevocable) and subject to Condition Brdconditions to Special Event Redemption, Chahgeoatrol Event
Redemption, Substitution and Variatjpredeem in accordance with these Conditiongatinot some only, of
the Securities at any time at their principal amptogether with any accrued and unpaid interestoufbut
excluding) the redemption date and any outstandimgars of Interest. Upon the expiry of such nqtittee
Issuer shall redeem the Securities.

(9) Redemption for Change of Control Event

If, immediately prior to the giving of the noticeferred to below, a Change of Control Event hasiwed and
is continuing, then the Issuer may, subject to mggiven not fewer than 52 nor more than 82 dagsice to
the Fiscal Agent, the Registrar and, in accordavitte Condition 21 Noticeg, the Holders (which notice shall
be irrevocable) and subject to Condition Preconditions to Special Event Redemption, Charigéontrol
Event Redemption, Substitution and Variatjaedeem in accordance with these Conditionshall,not some
only, of the Securities at any time at 101 per cehtheir principal amount, together with any aema and
unpaid interest up to (but excluding) the redenmpiilate and any outstanding Arrears of Interest.nUpe
expiry of such notice, the Issuer shall redeentSheurities.
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10 Substitution or Variation

If an Accounting Event, a Capital Event, a Tax Detthin Event or a Withholding Tax Event (each a
Substitution or Variation Event has occurred and is continuing, then the Issuay, reubject to Condition 11
(without any requirement for the consent or appra¥ahe Holders), and having given not fewer ttghnor
more than 60 days’ notice to the Fiscal Agent,Rkgistrar and, in accordance with Condition Rt{ce3, the
Holders (which notice shall be irrevocable), at dimye either (i) substitute all, but not some ondy,the
Securities for, or (ii) vary the terms of the Sétteis with the effect that they remain or becomet{e case may
be), Qualifying Securities, and the Fiscal Agertlisfsubject to the following provisions of this @tition 10
and subject to the receipt by it of the certificafetwo Authorised Signatories of the Issuer refdrto in
Condition 11 Preconditions to Special Event Redemption, Charfigeoatrol Event Redemption, Substitution
and Variation) agree to such substitution or variation.

Upon expiry of such notice, the Issuer shall eitiry the terms of or, as the case may be, sutsstihe
Securities in accordance with this Condition 10.

The Fiscal Agent shall, at the expense of the tssuse reasonable endeavours to assist the |ssubei
substitution of the Securities for, or the variatiof the terms of the Securities so that they ramai as
appropriate, become, Qualifying Securities, proditteat the Fiscal Agent shall not be obliged tdipigrate in,
or assist with, any such substitution or variatibthe terms of the proposed Qualifying Securit@sthe
participation in or assistance with such substtutor variation would impose, in the Fiscal Agerdjsinion,
more onerous obligations upon it or expose itdbilities or reduce its protections. If the Fiséglent does not
participate or assist as provided above, the Issumy redeem the Securities as provided in Condifion
(Redemption

In connection with any substitution or variationaocordance with this Condition 10, the Issuerlst@hply
with the rules of any stock exchange on which theusities are for the time being listed or admitietrading.

Any such substitution or variation in accordancéhwthe foregoing provisions following a Substitutior
Variation Event shall only be permitted if it dagst give rise to any other Substitution or Variatievent with
respect to the Qualifying Securities.

Any such substitution or variation in accordancéhwthe foregoing provisions following a Substitutior
Variation Event shall only be permitted if it dagst result in the Qualifying Securities no longeiny eligible
for the same, or a higher amount of, “equity crefit such other nomenclature that the Rating Agamay
then use to describe the degree to which an insmurmxhibits the characteristics of an ordinaryrghas is
attributed to the Securities on the date notiggvien to Holders of the substitution or variation.

In these ConditionQualifying Securitiesmeans securities that:

€)) are issued by the Issuer or any wholly-owned dioedhdirect finance subsidiary of the Issuer wath
guarantee of such obligations by the Issuer andaicth case, continue to have the benefit of the
Guarantee on substantially the same terms as th#itkes benefitted prior to such substitution or
variation;

(b) rank and (save in the case of a direct issue bistuer) benefit from a guarantee that ranks itii
to the obligations of the Issuer under such seeariand/or such guarantee (as the case may be),
equally with the Securities anmhri passuin a winding-up or liquidation of the Issuer widiny Parity
Obligations of the Issuer;

(c) contain terms not materially less favourable toddos than the terms of the Securities (as reaspnabl
determined by the Issuer) and which:
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® provide for the same or a more favourable InteRete from time to time as applied to the
Securities immediately prior to such substitutionvariation and preserve the same Interest
Payment Dates;

(i) preserve the obligations (including the obligatianising from the exercise of any right) of the
Issuer as to principal and as to redemption of3beurities, including (without limitation) as
to timing of, and amounts payable upon, such rediemp

(iii) preserve any existing rights under these Condittonany accrued interest, any Deferred
Interest Payments, any Arrears of Interest andodimgr amounts payable under the Securities
which, in each case, has accrued to Holders anbesst paid;

(iv) do not provide for the mandatory deferral of paytaesd interest and/or principal;

(V) do not provide for loss absorption through printipaite down or conversion to ordinary
shares; and

(vi) may include a feature which contains a term fomttamdatory repayment of such securities on
a specified date which shall not be earlier thandhte on which the next Call Date would
have fallen under the Securities (and the inclusibauch feature shall be deemed not to be
materially less favourable to Holders as comparigi thve terms of the Securities);

(d) are (i) listed on the official list of the LuxemlrguStock Exchange and admitted to trading on its
regulated market or (i) listed on such other in&tionally recognised exchange platform in an OECD
country as is selected by the Issuer; and

(e) will have at least the same credit rating as tleglitrrating ascribed to the Securities by eachrigati
Agency immediately prior to such substitution oriagon.

11 Preconditions to Special Event Redemption, Changd €ontrol Event Redemption, Substitution
and Variation

Prior to the publication of any notice of redemptipursuant to Condition 9Redemption (other than
redemption pursuant to Condition 9(b)) or any retif substitution or variation pursuant to Conditib0
(Substitution and Variationthe Issuer shall deliver to the Fiscal Agent:

€)) a certificate signed by two Authorised Signiawof the Issuer stating that the relevant requérg or
circumstance giving rise to the right to redeenistitute or vary is satisfied, and where the rat¢\&pecial
Event requires measures reasonably available tdster to be taken, the relevant Special Evenhatabe
avoided by the Issuer taking such measures. Itioeléo a substitution or variation pursuant to Gition 10
(Substitution and Variation such certificate shall also include further ifiedtions that the criteria specified in
paragraphs (a) to (e) of the definition of QuatifyiSecurities will be satisfied by the Qualifyingc8rities upon
issue and that such determinations were reachadeblssuer in consultation with an independent shment
bank of international repute, an independent firdrazlviser with appropriate expertise or independeunsel
of recognised standing;

(b) in the case of a Withholding Tax Event only, @inion of independent legal advisers of recoghise
standing to the effect that the Issuer or, as #s® enay be, the Guarantor has or will become abliggpay
Additional Amounts (as defined in Condition IBakatior)) on the Securities or, as the case may be, uhder
Guarantee as a result of the relevant Tax Law Givaantgd

(c) in the case of a substitution or variation parg to Condition 10Substitution or Variatioponly, an
opinion from independent legal advisers of recogmhistanding confirming:
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® that the Issuer has capacity to assume ditsignd obligations under the Qualifying Securities
and has obtained all necessary corporate or gowrtaiauthorisation to assume all such
rights and obligations (either as primary debtoasra guarantor of a wholly-owned direct or
indirect finance subsidiary of the Issuer that esssithe role of primary debtor in respect of
the Qualifying Securities) and, in the case of aolyhowned direct or indirect finance
subsidiary of the Issuer that assumes the roleiinfgoy debtor in respect of the Qualifying
Securities, that such finance subsidiary has cgpacassume all rights and obligations under
the Qualifying Securities and has obtained all ssagy corporate or governmental
authorisation to assume all such rights and olitigat and

(i) the legality, validity and enforceability ¢the Qualifying Securities,

and the Fiscal Agent may rely absolutely upon amall e entitled to accept such certificate and sigh
opinions without any liability to any person for doing and without any further inquiry as suffidi@vidence
of the satisfaction of the conditions precedentosgtin such paragraphs in which event it shaltteclusive
and binding on the Holders.

Any redemption of the Securities in accordance Witmditions 9(b), 9(c), 9(d), 9(e), 9(f) or 9(dRddemption
shall be conditional on all outstanding Arrearsrérest being paid in full in accordance with grevisions of
Condition 8 Optional Interest Deferralon or prior to the date thereof, together witly ancrued and unpaid
interest up to (but excluding) such redemptionsstition or, as the case may be, variation date.

The Fiscal Agent is under no obligation to ascerta@iether any Special Event or Change of Contr@nEwr
Change of Control or any event which could leadhi occurrence of, or could constitute, any sucecBp
Event, Change of Control Event or Change of Contrat occurred and, until it shall have actual Kedge or
express notice pursuant to the Fiscal Agency Ages¢rto the contrary, the Fiscal Agent may assuraerth
such Special Event, Change of Control Event or Gaasf Control or such other event has occurred.

12 Purchases and Cancellation
€) Purchases

Each of the Issuer, the Guarantor and any of tiespective Subsidiaries may at any time purchaggamure
others to purchase beneficially for its accountuies in any manner and at any price. The Seesrio
purchased, while held by or on behalf of the Issthe Guarantor or any of their respective Subgigka shall
not entitle the Holder to vote at any meeting @ Holders or otherwise exercise any voting rights shall not
be deemed to be outstanding for the purposes afileéing quorums at meetings of the Holders owing on
any Extraordinary Resolution or for the purpose€aiidition 17 eetings of Holders and Modificatipn

(b) Cancellation

All Securities redeemed or substituted by the Issugsuant to Condition 9 or 10, as the case maynik
forthwith be cancelled. All Securities purchasedtbg Issuer, the Guarantor or any of its/their eetipe
Subsidiaries may be held, reissued, resold orhatoption of the Issuer, surrendered for canceHato the
Fiscal Agent. Securities so surrendered shall becatked forthwith. Any Securities so surrendered fo
cancellation may not be reissued or resold analtigations of the Issuer and the Guarantor ineespf any
such Securities shall be discharged.

13 Payments
€)) Method of Payment

Payments of principal, premium and interest in eespf each Security will be made by transfer te th
registered account of the Holder or by euro cheairagn on a bank (nominated in writing to the Regisby
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the Holder) that processes payments in euro meolé¢lde registered address of the Holder if it doeshave a
registered account, provided that the nominatiorecgived by the Registrar not later than 10 Bissiri@ays
before any date on which payment is scheduledrdstt®n the Securities due on an Interest Paymata Will
be paid to the holder shown on the Register atlthge of business on the date (teeord date¢ being the
fifteenth day before the due date for the payménmtterest.

For the purposes of this Condition 13(a), a Holslezfistered accountneans the euro account maintained by
or on behalf of it with a bank that processes paysén euro in a city in which banks have accesth&o
TARGET System, details of which appear on the Repgist the close of business on the relevant redatd,
and a Holder’s registered address means its adapgesring on the Register at that time.

(b) Payments Subject to Fiscal Laws

Without prejudice to the terms of Condition 1%akatior), all payments made in accordance with these
Conditions shall be made subject to any fiscaltbeiolaws and regulations applicable in the pldggagment.
No commissions or expenses shall be charged tddlters in respect of such payments.

(9] Payments on Business Days

If any date for payment in respect of any Secustyot a business day, the Holder shall not beledtio
payment until the next following business day nmrahy interest or other sum in respect of suchpoostd
payment. In this Condition 1&usiness dayneans a day (other than a Saturday or a Sundayhat banks
and foreign exchange markets are open for busindgbkg place in which the specified office of thegdistrar is
located and a day on which the TARGET System isiope

14 Enforcement Event
€) Proceedings

If a default is made by the Issuer and the Guardota period of 14 days or more in the paymenpraicipal

or 21 days or more in the payment of interest,anhecase in respect of the Securities and whichués(an
Enforcement Eveny, then any Holder may, at its sole discretiontiinte proceedings for the winding-up of the
Issuer and/or the Guarantor and/or prove in thedwigrup of the Issuer and/or the Guarantor and&amcin
the liquidation of the Issuer and/or the Guaranfmr,such payment, and in the event of a windingofighe
Issuer in a manner falling within this Condition(a% any Holder shall be entitled to claim for alpaid
principal in respect of a Security it holds togethdth any accrued and unpaid interest up to (lxatueling)
such date and any outstanding Arrears of Interese¢spect of any such Security, with such right$ eaims
subordinated as provided in Condition 3@uifordinatioi.

For the avoidance of doubt, in the event of a wigelip of the Issuer in a manner falling within tlisndition
14(a), the Holders shall have a right to claim urtle Guarantee, against the Guarantor for, antrerantor
shall be obliged to pay, an amount equal to anyighprincipal on the Securities and any accrued warphid
interest and any outstanding Arrears of InteresichSrights and claims against the Guarantor shall b
subordinated as provided in Condition 6@uiljordination of the Guarantge

In the event of a winding-up of the Guarantor imanner falling within this Condition 14(a), the Hets shall
have a right to claim against (i) the Issuer (drallssuer shall be obliged to pay) and (ii) agaimstGuarantor,
under the Guarantee, in the winding-up of the Gxtarain each case for an amount equal to any dnpai
principal on the Securities and any accrued andidnipterest and any outstanding Arrears of Intergach
rights and claims against the Issuer and agaimstGiarantor shall be subordinated as provided imdifion
3(a) Subordination and 6(a) $ubordination of the Guarantgeespectively.
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(b)

Extent of Holders’ remedy

No remedy against the Issuer or the Guarantorr ttla@ as referred to in this Condition 14 shalbiailable to
the Holders, whether for the recovery of amounténgwn respect of the Securities or the Guarante@ o
respect of any other breach by the Issuer or thegd®tor of any of its or their respective otheligdtions under
or in respect of the Securities or the Guarantee.

15

Taxation

All payments of principal, premium and interestdsyon behalf of the Issuer in respect of the Stiesror the
Guarantor under the Guarantee shall be made fibelaar of, and without withholding or deductiom,for on
account of, any present or future taxes, dutiesesssnents or governmental charges of whateverendiaxeg
imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessedrhyithin any jurisdiction (&Relevant Tax Jurisdictiohin
which the Issuer or the Guarantor is then incotgokaorganised or resident for tax purposes orpatigical
subdivision or any authority thereof or therein ingvpower to tax, unless such withholding or deiuncis
required by law. In that event, the Issuer, failwgich the Guarantor, shall pay such additional @m®
(Additional Amountg as shall result in receipt by the Holders of saotounts as would have been received by
them had no such withholding or deduction beeniredquexcept that no such Additional Amounts sl
payable with respect to any Security:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Other connection to, or to a third party on behalf of, a Holderonis liable to such Taxes in respect
of such Security by reason of his having some camorewith a Relevant Tax Jurisdiction other than a
mere holding of such Security; or

Presentation more than 30 days after the Relevantdde: presented for payment more than 30 days
after the Relevant Date except to the extent thatHolder thereof would have been entitled to such
Additional Amounts on presenting it for paymenttba thirtieth day; or

Payment to individuals: where such withholding or deduction is requiretbéamade on a payment to
an individual beneficial owner resident in Luxemigpun accordance with the provisions of the
Luxembourg law dated 23 December 2005, as amend&dducing a 10 per cent. Luxembourg
withholding tax on interest or similar income payr®e (accrued since 1 July 2005) made by a
Luxembourg Paying Agent to or for the immediatedfitrof an individual beneficial owner who is
resident in Luxembourg paid to Luxembourg residedividuals; or

Payment by another Paying Agentin respect of which payment is made to a Holdepanson on
behalf of such Holder who in each case would haenkable to avoid such withholding or deduction
by receiving such payment through another PayingnrAin a Member State of the European Union or
making any other claim or filing for exemption tdieh it is entitled to the relevant tax authority o
Paying Agent; or

FATCA withholding: where such withholding or deduction is imposedaurféections 1471 and 1472
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (tBede (or any regulations thereunder or official
interpretations thereof), including, pursuant to agreement described in section 1471(b)(1) of the
Code, under any intergovernmental agreement betweeinited States and any other jurisdiction
facilitating the implementation thereof (or anych$ or regulatory legislation, rules or practices
implementing such an intergovernmental agreement).

References in these Conditions to principal, premiinterest Payments, Deferred Interest Paymemtsars of

Interest and/or any other amount in respect ofr@steshall be deemed to include any Additional Antsu
which may become payable pursuant to the foregpingisions or any undertakings given in additioaréto

or in substitution therefor pursuant to the Figogéncy Agreement.
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16 Prescription

Claims against the Issuer in respect of Secunitiisbecome void unless made within a period ofy&ars (in
respect of claims relating to principal and premjiamd five years (in respect of claims relatingnterest) from
the Relevant Date relating thereto.

17 Meetings of Holders and Modification

The Fiscal Agency Agreement contains provisioncémrvening meetings of the Holders to considerraatter
affecting their interests, including the sanctiagnby Extraordinary Resolution of a modificationanfy of these
Conditions or any of the provisions of the FiscagleAcy Agreement. Such a meeting may be convendhdeby
Issuer or the Guarantor and shall be convened doysuer if required in writing by Holders holdingt less
than ten per cent. in principal amount of the Siiegrfor the time being remaining outstanding.

The quorum at any such meeting for passing an &xtirsary Resolution is one or more persons holding
representing not less than 50 per cent. in primepeount of the Securities for the time being ansing, or at
any adjourned meeting one or more persons beingpoesenting Holders whatever the principal amofitiie
Securities so held or represented, except thatyatrgeting the business of which includes the neatibn of
certain provisions of the Securities (includingyesavhere permitted by these Conditions or the Defed
Guarantee, modifying any redemption date in refatio the Securities or reduction or cancellationttof
nominal amount payable upon redemption, a reductiazancellation of the amount payable or modifarabf
the payment date in respect of any interest omtkethod of calculating the rate thereof, modificatiaf the
Guarantee and modification of the currency in wipalgments under the Securities are to be madejjubreim
shall be one or more persons holding or represgmtot less than three-quarters in principal amairthe
Securities for the time being outstanding, or at adjourned such meeting one or more persons lgplolin
representing not less than one-quarter in prin@pabunt of the Securities for the time being ouiditag.

The agreement or approval of the Holders shalbeatequired in the case of any variation of thesadlions
and/or the Fiscal Agency Agreement required to lalenin the circumstances described in Condition 10
(Substitution or Variationin connection with the substitution or variatiohthe terms of the Securities so that
they become Qualifying Securities.

An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meetintgeHolders shall be binding on all the Holdevkether
or not they are present at the meeting. The Fisgahcy Agreement provides that a resolution iningitsigned
by or on behalf of the Holders of not less tharmpéb cent in principal amount of the Securities nding or
consent given by Holders of not less than 75 pet iceprincipal amount of the Securities by elestcaconsent
through the clearing systems shall for all purpdsesas valid and effective as an Extraordinary Réiso
passed at a meeting of Holders duly convened atdl Aeresolution in writing may be contained in one
document or several documents in the same forrh, gigned by or on behalf of one or more Holders.

The Fiscal Agent and the Issuer may agree, witttmitonsent of the Holders, to:

€)) any modification (except such maodifications in mxpof which an increased quorum is required as
mentioned above) of the Fiscal Agency Agreementclwhis not prejudicial to the interests of the
Holders; or

(b) any modification of the Securities or the FiscaleAgy Agreement which is of a formal, minor or

technical nature or is made to correct a manifesproven error or to comply with mandatory
provisions of the law.

Any such madification shall be binding on the Hokleand any such modification shall be notified he t
Holders in accordance with Condition 24aotice$ as soon as practicable thereafter.

52



Prior to the making of any such modification or itak any action as aforementioned, or prior to any
substitution, termination or variation in a mannentemplated in Conditions 18bstitution or Variatio) 18
(Substitution of Issugror 19 Substitution of Guarantor and termination of Guaed), the Issuer, the
Guarantor and the Fiscal Agent shall not be obligddave regard to the tax position of individualdiers or to
the tax consequences of any such modification tisutisn, variation, termination or other actiorr fadividual
Holders. No Holder shall be entitled to claim, wWietfrom the Fiscal Agent, the Issuer, the GuaramstiNew
Issuer or any other person, any indemnificatiorpayment in respect of any tax consequence of aoly su
modification, substitution, variation, terminationother action upon individual Holders.

18 Substitution of Issuer

(@) The Issuer may at any time, without the conserthefHolders, substitute for itself as the principal
debtor under the Securities, the Guarantor or #mgranember of the Group or a successor in business
of the Issuer (such substitute, a New Issuer) gealihat:

® a deed poll and such other documents (if any) dleatixecuted by the New Issuer and, to the
extent necessary, the other parties to the Fisgehgy Agreement, as may be necessary to
give full effect to the substitution and pursuamtvthich the New Issuer shall undertake in
favour of each Holder and each Accountholder (dmel@ in the Deed of Covenant) to be
bound by these conditions, the Deed of Covenant thedFiscal Agency Agreement as
principal debtor in respect of the Securities acpl of the Issuer;

(i) each Rating Agency confirms that upon the subgiitubf the New Issuer becoming effective
the Securities will either have the same credihgadis immediately prior to the substitution or
the credit rating will not be adversely affected;

(iii) each Rating Agency has confirmed that upon suctstidution becoming effective the
Securities will either still be eligible for theraa, or a higher amount of, “equity credit” (or
such other nomenclature that the Rating Agency thery use to describe the degree to which
an instrument exhibits the characteristics of alinary share) as is attributed to the Securities
on the date immediately prior to such substitutiorsuch eligibility or attribution will not be
adversely affected;

(iv) the Fiscal Agent shall have received legal opiniadsiressed to the Holders from legal
advisers of internationally recognised standingeygd by it to the effecinter alia, that (A)
the New Issuer has obtained all governmental aguatory approvals and consents necessary
for its assumption of the obligations and liakéi#tias principal debtor under these Conditions,
the Deed of Covenant and the Fiscal Agency Agretrnimeplace of the Issuer, the Holders
have rights against the New Issuer at least eqnvab the rights they have against the Issuer,
subject to the other Conditions in this Conditi@dhHaving been satisfied such assumption is
fully effective and such obligations and liabilgieare legally valid and binding on, and
enforceable against, the New Issuer; (B) such apiscand consents are in full force and
effect at the time of substitution; and (C) confinm with respect to the New Issuer,
compliance with sub-paragraph (v) below;

(V) all payments of principal and interest in respddhe Securities by or on behalf of the New
Issuer shall be made free and clear of and withithiholding or deduction for or on account
of any taxes, duties, assessments or governmemajes of whatsoever nature imposed,
levied, collected, withheld or assessed by or dmalfeof the tax jurisdiction to which it is
subject or any political subdivision thereof or authority thereof or therein having power to
tax;
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(b)

(©)

(d)

19

(@)

(vi) any stock exchange on which the Securities aredlishall have confirmed to the Issuer and
the Fiscal Agent that, after giving effect to thubstitution, the Securities will continue to be
listed on such stock exchange;

(vii) two Authorised Signatories of the New Issuer shalle certified to the Fiscal Agent that the
New Issuer is solvent at the time at which the swh®gn or appointment is proposed to be
effected; and

(viii)  two Authorised Signatories of the Issuer or twolfartsed Signatories of the New Issuer shall
have certified to the Fiscal Agent that, followiognsultation with an independent investment
bank of international repute, an independent fir@nadviser with appropriate expertise or
independent counsel of recognised standing, theelss, as the case may be, the New Issuer
has concluded that such substitution (i) will reult in the New Issuer having an entitlement,
as at the date such substitution becomes effedtiveedeem the Securities as a result of a
Special Event and (ii) will not result in the terofsthe Securities immediately following such
substitution being materially less favourable tddecs than the terms of the Securities
immediately prior to such substitution.

Upon execution and delivery of the deed poll or d¢iteer documents referred to in paragraph (a)(i)
above and delivery of the legal opinions and otteauments referred to in paragraph (a)(ii) to (@)(v
above the New Issuer shall be deemed to be namtitkiSecurities, the Deed of Covenant and the
Fiscal Agency Agreement as the principal debtgplate of the Issuer and the Securities, the Deed of
Covenant, the Fiscal Agency Agreement and any ottoeuments related to the Securities shall
thereupon be deemed to be amended to give effebeteubstitution, and the Issuer shall be released
from all of its obligations under or in respecttbé Securities, the Deed of Covenant, and the Fisca
Agency Agreement and any other documents relatétet&ecurities.

Not later than 14 days after the substitution deaw Issuer, notice shall be given to the Holders in
accordance with Condition 2INétices.

In the event of a substitution pursuant to this d@won 18, the governing law of Condition 3(a)
(Subordination) shall be amended to the goverramgdf the jurisdiction of incorporation of the New
Issuer. In addition for the purposes of the deafinitof “Compulsory Arrears of Interest Settlement
Event”, references to “Junior Obligations of thsuler” shall be deemed to include references to such
obligations of both the New Issuer and SES S.A.

Substitution of Guarantor and termination of Guarantee

Notwithstanding the provisions of Condition #hg Guaranteg the Deed of Guarantee contains
provisions which:

® allow the Guarantor at any time to substitute fitéet another entity in the Group or a
successor in business of the Guarantor (upon whih other entity shall assume all the
rights and obligations of the Guarantor under th@seditions, the Fiscal Agency Agreement,
the Guarantee and any other related documents); and

(i) for so long as SES Global Americas Holdings GP iresn@&uarantor, permit a termination of
the Guarantee where:

() an order is made by any competent court or effectesolution passed for the
winding up or dissolution of SES Global Americadditogs GP; and

54



(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

(f)

20

() such winding up or dissolution is for the purposEsr pursuant to an amalgamation,
reorganisation or restructuring while solvent andspant to which SES S.A. assumes
all of the assets, liabilities and obligations &5Global Americas Holdings GP,

with any such termination pursuant to (ii) abovedmeing effective upon the relevant winding
up or dissolution taking effect.

Any such substitution or termination shall be a #lole discretion of the Issuer and the Guarabtdr,
shall be conditional upon:

® there being no Enforcement Event that has occameds continuing;

(i) each Rating Agency having confirmed that upon saudbstitution or termination becoming
effective the Securities will either have the saenedit rating as immediately prior to such
substitution or termination or the credit ratindlwbt be adversely affected; and

(iii) each Rating Agency having confirmed that upon ssudbstitution or termination becoming
effective the Securities will either still be eligg for the same, or a higher amount of, “equity
credit” (or such other nomenclature that the Ratkggency may then use to describe the
degree to which an instrument exhibits the charities of an ordinary share) as is attributed
to the Securities on the date immediately priostich substitution or termination or such
eligibility or attribution will not be adverselyfatted; and

(iv) two Authorised Signatories of the Issuer or twohfutsed Signatories of the Guarantor shall
have certified to the Fiscal Agent that, followiognsultation with an independent investment
bank of international repute, an independent fir@nadviser with appropriate expertise or
independent counsel of recognised standing, theelsar, as the case may be, the Guarantor
has concluded that such substitution or terminafipmill not result in the Issuer having an
entitlement, as at the date such substitution onitetion becomes effective, to redeem the
Securities as a result of a Special Event andiffijhe case of a substitution pursuant to this
Condition 19 only, will not result in the terms thfe Securities and the Guarantee (taken
together) immediately following such substitutiogiiy materially less favourable to holders
than the terms of the Securities and the Guardtdaken together) immediately prior to such
substitution.

Upon any such substitution pursuant to Conditio@}(® taking effect, the Guarantor shall be reéehs
from all of its obligations under or in respecttbése Conditions, the Fiscal Agency Agreement, the
Guarantee and any other related documents.

Upon any such termination pursuant to Conditiona)@} taking effect, SES Global Americas
Holdings GP shall be released from all of its adfigns under or in respect of these Conditions, the
Fiscal Agency Agreement, the Guarantee and any otfeted documents.

Not later than 14 days after any such substitutiotermination in accordance with the provisions of
this Condition 19, notice shall be given to theddwk in accordance with Condition @lotices.

In the event of a substitution pursuant to this @on 19, the governing law of Condition 6(a) $hal
be amended to the governing law of the jurisdictibmcorporation of the entity substituted in paaf
the Guarantor.

Replacement of Certificates

If any Certificate is lost, stolen, mutilated, defd or destroyed, it may be replaced, subject pliGgble laws,
regulations or other relevant regulatory authorégulations, at the specified office of the Registor such
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other Paying Agent as may from time to time begtestied by the Issuer for that purpose and noticghaise
designation is given to Holders, in each case gmpat by the claimant of the fees and costs incuime
connection therewith and on such terms as to ewalesecurity, indemnity and otherwise as the Isandrthe
Fiscal Agent may require. Mutilated or defaced iflesttes must be surrendered before replacementdavi
issued.

21 Notices

All notices to the Holders will be valid if maildéd them by first class mail or (if posted to an rda overseas)
by airmail to the Holders (or the first of any jpimamed Holders) at their respective addresselsarRegister
maintained by the Registrar. The Issuer shall alssure that notices are duly published in a maninéch
complies with the rules of any stock exchange @eotelevant authority on which the Securities farethe
time being listed or by which they have been adrditb trading (which means, for the avoidance aftdoif
and for so long as the Securities are admittedaitirtg on, and listed on the Official List of theXembourg
Stock Exchange and the rules of such stock exchamgequire, a daily newspaper of general circotatn
Luxembourg, and/or on the Luxembourg Stock Exchangebsite (www.bourse.lu) or any other manner
considered as equivalent by the Luxembourg Stodh&ixge). Any such notice will be deemed to haven bee
given on the fourth day after being so mailed otthan date of publication or, if published more theate, on
the first date on which such publication is made.

22 Further Issues

The Issuer may from time to time without the consdrthe Holders create and issue further Secaribeking
pari passuin all respects (or in all respects save for th drom which interest thereon accrues and thaiato
of the first payment of interest on such furthec8#ies) and so that such further issue shall desalidated
and form a single series with the outstanding Sgesir

23 Agents

The initial Agents and their initial specified afis are listed below. The Issuer reserves the aighhy time to
vary or terminate the appointment of any Agent @nappoint additional or other Agents, provided thavill:

(@) at all times maintain a Fiscal Agent and a Registnad

(b) whenever a function expressed in these Conditiome tperformed by the Agent Bank or by the Reset
Reference Banks falls to be performed, appoint @mdso long as such function is required to be
performed) maintain an Agent Bank and/or, as apjats Reset Reference Banks.

Notice of any such termination or appointment ahdrty change in the specified offices of the Fiskgént,
the Registrar or any of the Paying Agents or Transéigents will be given to the Holders in accordaméth
Condition 21 Notices. If any of the Fiscal Agent, the Registrar, thgeAt Bank or any Paying Agent is unable
or unwilling to act as such or if it fails to makedetermination or calculation or otherwise failgperform its
duties under these Conditions or the Fiscal Agéueement (as the case may be), the Issuer shalirgpan
independent financial institution to act as suchtsnplace. All calculations and determinations mdy the
Agent Bank or the Fiscal Agent in relation to thee&ities shall (save in the case of manifest gbyerfinal and
binding on the Issuer, the Guarantor, the othemégyand the Holders.

24 Governing Law

The Fiscal Agency Agreement, the Deed of Coventhet,Guarantee, the Securities and any non-conédactu
obligations arising out of or in connection witheth are governed by, and shall be construed in danoe
with, the laws of England save for the provisiomstained in Condition 3(a)S(ubordination which shall,
subject to the provisions of Condition 18(dupstitution of Issug¢rand Condition 19(e)Substitution of
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Guarantor and termination of Guaranfeebe governed by the laws of Luxembourg and thavipions
contained in Condition 6(a) which shall be goverbgadhe laws of Delaware. The provisions of arscB® to
94-8 of the Luxembourg law dated 10 August 1915ceaning commercial companies, as amended, shall not
apply to the Securities.

25 Submission to Jurisdiction

The Issuer irrevocably agrees, for the benefithef iHolders, that the courts of England are to hexatusive
jurisdiction to settle any disputes which may arsg of or in connection with the Securities (irdihg a
dispute relating to any non-contractual obligati@msing out of or in connection with the Fiscal ehgy
Agreement and the Securities) and accordingly stgatmithe exclusive jurisdiction of the English dsu

The Issuer waives any objection to the courts ofl&amd on the grounds that they are an inconvervent
inappropriate forum. The Holders may take any sgtion or proceedings (together referred t@axeedingd
arising out of or in connection with the Securiti@scluding a dispute relating to any non-contrattu
obligations arising out of or in connection witletBecurities), against the Issuer in any othertafiwompetent
jurisdiction and concurrent Proceedings in any nemnab jurisdictions.

26 Appointment of Process Agent

The Issuer appoints Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringdé? at its registered office at 65 Fleet Streetndan
EC4Y 1HS (marked for the attention of the Disputsétution DMP and Mr. Christopher Barratt, refeeenc
123182-0059) as its agent for service of procesd, umdertakes that, in the event of FreshfieldscBraus
Deringer LLP ceasing so to act or ceasing to bistexgd in England, it will appoint another persanits agent
for service of process in England in respect of Brgceedings. Nothing herein shall affect the righserve
proceedings in any other manner permitted by law.

27 Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

No person shall have any right to enforce any terncondition of the Securities by virtue of the @ants
(Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.

28 Definitions
In these Conditions:

an Accounting Eventshall be deemed to occur if, as a result of a ghan accounting principles which
becomes effective on or after the Issue Date, bubtherwise, the obligations of the Issuer unterSecurities
must not or may no longer be recorded as “equitythie next following audited annual consolidatehficial
statements of SES S.A. prepared in accordance I®RIS or any other accounting standards that SBS S.
may adopt in the future for the preparation ofitislited annual consolidated financial statemenésaordance
with Luxembourg company law;

Additional Amountshas the meaning given to it in Condition T&xXation;
Agent Bankhas the meaning given to it in the preamble teg¢h@onditions;

Agentshas means the Fiscal Agent, the Agent Bank, tlggsRar, the Transfer Agents and the Paying Agents
or any of them;

Arrears of Interesthas the meaning given to it in Condition 8@gferral of Paymenjs

Authorised Signatorjhas the meaning given to it in the Fiscal Agencye&gent;
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Business Daymeans a day, other than a Saturday, Sunday oicfhuilday, on which commercial banks and
foreign exchange markets are open for general bssim London and Luxembourg and the TARGET System
is operating;

Calculation Amounthas the meaning given to it in Condition 7 (lotérest Accruak
Call Datemeans the First Reset Date or on any Interest &atybate thereafter;

a Capital Eventshall be deemed to occur if the Issuer has redeaed notified the Holders in accordance with
Condition 21 Notice3 that it has so received, confirmation from anytifa Agency of an amendment to,
clarification of or change in its assessment get@r a change in the interpretation thereof whieltomes
effective on or after the Issue Date (or, if lateffective after the date on which the Securities @ssigned
“equity credit” by a Rating Agency for the firstte) and as a result of which, but not otherwise,Skcurities
will no longer be eligible for the same, or a highemount of, “equity credit” (or such other nomextate that
the Rating Agency may then use to describe theegegrwhich an instrument exhibits the charactesisif an
ordinary share) as was attributed to the Securitighe Issue Date (or if “equity credit” is nos@med to the
Securities by the relevant Rating Agency on thadd3ate, at the date on which “equity credit” isigsed by
such Rating Agency for the first time);

Certificate has the meaning given to it in Condition 1(@yrm and Denomination
a Change of Control Evenshall be deemed to occur if:

€)) a Change of Control occurs and within the Chang@asftrol Period (if at the time that the Change of
Control occurs any of the Senior Obligations of thsuer are rated by a Rating Agency) a Rating
Downgrade in respect of that Change of Control soor

(b) (if at such time none of the Senior Obligationshaf Issuer are rated) a Change of Control occurs,
For the purposes of the definition of a Change aitél Event:

® a Change of Controlshall be deemed to have occurred at each timetifeher not approved by the
Board of Directors or Executive Committee of theuky) that any person (thiRelevant Personor persons
acting in concert or any person or persons actimgpehalf of any such person(s), at any time diyeotl
indirectly acquire(s) (A) more than 50 per centthaf issued or allotted ordinary share capitaheflssuer or
(B) such number of the shares in the capital oflfiseer carrying more than 50 per cent. of thengptights
normally exercisable at a general meeting of tkads, provided that a Change of Control shall motibemed
to have occurred if all or substantially all of thteareholders of the Relevant Person are, or inatedgiprior to
the event which would otherwise have constitut€hange of Control were, the shareholders of theskswith
the same (or substantially the sanped rata interests in the share capital of the Relevansdfelas such
shareholders have, or as the case may be, hdw ghare capital of the Issuer;

(i) Change of Control Periodneans the period ending 120 days after the panlimouncement of the
Change of Control having occurred; and

(iii) a Rating Downgradeshall be deemed to have occurred in respect ¢fam@e of Control if within the
Change of Control Period the rating previously@®sd to any Senior Obligations of the Issuer by rahgvant
Rating Agency is (x) withdrawn or (y) changed framinvestment grade rating (BBB-/Baa3, or theipeetive
equivalents for the time being, or better) to a-mw@stment grade rating (BB+/Bal, or their respect
equivalents for the time being, or worse) or (zZhi rating previously assigned to any such Sedhdigations
of the Issuer by any relevant Rating Agency shalbblow an investment grade rating (as describegtedp
lowered one full rating category (for example fr@dB+ to BB or such similar lower or equivalent rafin
provided that a Rating Downgrade otherwise arigipgirtue of a particular change in rating shalldeemed
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not to have occurred in respect of a particularn@eaof Control if the relevant Rating Agency makihg
change in rating to which this definition would ettvise apply does not publicly announce or publédgfirm
that the reduction was the result, in whole or ,pafrtany event or circumstance comprised in oriregigs a
result of, or in respect of, the applicable Chaofg€ontrol;

a Compulsory Arrears of Interest Settlement Evesfitall have occurred if:

® a dividend (either interim or final), other disttibn or payment was validly resolved on,
declared, paid or made in respect of any Junioigatibns of the Issuer or the Guarantor,
except where (x) such dividend, other distributborpayment was required to be resolved on,
declared, paid or made in respect of any stocloogilans or employees’ share schemes of the
Issuer, the Guarantor or any other member of trmuGor (y) the Issuer or the Guarantor is
obliged under the terms of such securities to mskeh dividend, distribution or other
payment or (z) such dividend, distribution or pagtie made (or to be made) only to the
Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any other entity énGnoup; or

(i) a dividend (either interim or final), other disttibn or payment was validly resolved on,
declared, paid or made in respect of any Paritygatibns of the Issuer or the Guarantor, as
the case may be, except where such dividend, llitvh or payment was required to be
declared, paid or made under the terms of suchtyP@tligations of the Issuer or the
Guarantor, as the case may be, or except where divickend, distribution or payment is
made (or to be made) only to the Issuer, the Gtarand/or any other entity in the Group; or

(iii) the Issuer or the Guarantor has redeemed, repeadtivaotherwise acquired any of its Junior
Obligations, except where (x) such redemption, reipase or acquisition was undertaken in
respect of any stock option plans or employeesteskehemes of the Issuer, the Guarantor or
any other member of the Group, (y) the Issuer erGliarantor is obliged under the terms of
such securities to make such redemption, repurchasequisition or (z) any payment in
respect of such redemption, repurchase or acauisi made (or to be made) only to the
Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any other entity énGnoup; or

(iv) the Issuer or the Guarantor, or any Subsidiaryneflssuer or the Guarantor, has redeemed,
repurchased or otherwise acquired any Parity Ofitigs of the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the
case may be, except where (x) such redemptionyalegse or acquisition is effected as a
public tender offer or public exchange offer atuaghase price per security which is below its
par value or (y) the Issuer or the Guarantor, axétse may be, or any Subsidiary of the Issuer
or the Guarantor, as the case may be, is oblige@rutme terms of such securities to make
such redemption, repurchase or acquisition, oaifg)payment in respect of such redemption,
repurchase or acquisition is made (or to be mad)to the Issuer, the Guarantor and/or any
other entity in the Group;

Conditionsmeans these terms and conditions of the Securitseamended from time to time;
Deferred Interest Paymertias the meaning given to it in Condition 8@gferral of Paymenjs

euro or € means the lawful currency introduced at the stérthe third stage of European Economic and
Monetary Union pursuant to the Treaty establishiregEuropean Community, as amended;

Extraordinary Resolutiorhas the meaning given to it in the Fiscal Agencyeggent;
First Fixed Interest Ratehas the meaning given to it in Condition 7€t Fixed Interest Ra)e

First Reset Dataneans 29 January 2024;
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Group means SES S.A. and its Subsidiaries taken as awhol

Guarantor means SES Global Americas GP;

Holder has the meaning given to it in the preamble tegh@onditions;

IFRS means International Financial Reporting Standasdsdopted by the EU;

Interest Paymenimeans, in respect of an interest payment on anesit Payment Date, the amount of interest
payable for the relevant Interest Period in acaocdavith Condition 716terest Paymen)s

Interest Payment Dateneans 2 January in each year, commencing on ffehdling) 2 January 2017;

Interest Periodmeans the period beginning on (and including)i$sae Date and ending on (but excluding) the
first Interest Payment Date and each successivedobeginning on (and including) an Interest Paytri2ate
and ending on (but excluding) the next succeedibgrést Payment Date;

Interest Ratemeans the First Fixed Interest Rate and/or eatiseBuient Fixed Interest Rate, as the case may
be;

Issue Datehas the meaning given to it in Condition 7(ajdrest Ratg
Issuermeans SES S.A,;
Junior Obligationsmeans the Junior Obligations of the Guarantorthadunior Obligations of the Issuer;

Junior Obligations of the Guarantomeans (i) any class (whether common or prefewegartnership interest
(or, after a substitution pursuant to Condition($8bstitution of Guarantor and termination of Guaes), any
other ownership interests) in the Guarantor; (ii)ohligations of the Guarantor issued or incurckcectly or
indirectly by it, which rank or are expressed tokrpari passuwith any class (whether common or preferred) of
partnership interest (or, after a substitution pans to Condition 19Substitution of Guarantor and termination
of Guarante® any other ownership interests) in the Guararapi(jii) any obligation of any Subsidiary of the
Guarantor benefiting from a guarantee or supparteagent entered into by the Guarantor which raokss
expressed to rankari passuwith the obligations referred to in (i) or (ii);

Junior Obligations of the Issuemeans (i) any class of share capital of the Isgliigrall obligations of the
Issuer issued or incurred directly or indirectly ihywhich rank or are expressed to ragrdei passuwith any
class of share capital of the Issuer; or (iii) aipjigations of any Subsidiaries of the Issuer bigingffrom a
guarantee or support agreement entered into bissiier which ranks, or is expressed to rgoakj passuwith

the securities referred to in (i) or (ii);

Mandatory Settlement Datmeans the earlier of:

® as soon as reasonably practicable (but not later e fifteenth Business Day) following the
date on which a Compulsory Arrears of Interestl&oant Event occurs; or

(i) the date on which the Securities are redeemed paidan accordance with Condition 3,
Condition 6, Condition 9Redemptiopor Condition 14 Enforcement Evept

OECD means the Organisation for Economic Co-operatimh@evelopment;
Parity Obligationsmeans the Parity Obligations of the GuarantortaedParity Obligations of the Issuer;

Parity Obligations of the Guarantgrwith respect to the Guarantor means (if anyg(y obligations of the
Guarantor, issued or incurred directly or indingdty it, which rank, or are expressed to raodei passuwith
its obligations under the Guarantee, includingoliBgations under the guarantee relating to theD£X#®,000
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Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rate Resettable Seaur{t®IN XS1405777746) of the Issuer, and (i) any
obligations of any Subsidiaries of the Guarantardfiting from a guarantee or support agreementredtiato
by the Guarantor which ranks, or is expressedrtk, @ari passuwith its obligations under the Guarantee;

Parity Obligations of the Issuerwith respect to the Issuer means (if any) (i) abligations of the Issuer,
issued or incurred directly or indirectly by it, iwh rank, or are expressed to ramiari passuwith the
Securities, including the €750,000,000 Deeply Sdinated Fixed Rate Resettable Securities (ISIN
XS1405777746) of the Issuer, and (ii) any obligagicf any Subsidiaries of the Issuer benefitingnfra
guarantee or support agreement entered into bissiier which ranks, or is expressed to rgoakj passuwith

the Securities;

Fiscal Agency Agreemertias the meaning given to it in the preamble tedH@onditions;
Paying Agentshas the meaning given to it in the preamble tegh@onditions;
Qualifying Securitieshas the meaning given to it in Condition Bubordination or Variatio)

Rating Agencymeans Standard & Poor's Rating Services, a divisfoThe McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. or
Moody's Investors Service, Inc. or any of theimpestive subsidiaries and their successors or dmr aating
agency of equivalent international standing spedifrom time to time by the Issuer;

Registerthas the meaning given to it in Condition 1@)1m and Denomination

Relevant Dataneans (i) in respect of any payment other thamnate be paid by the Issuer in a winding-up or
administration of the Issuer, the date on whichhspayment first becomes due and payable but, iffule
amount of the moneys payable on such date haseeat feceived by the Fiscal Agent on or prior tdhsdate,
the Relevant Date means the date on which such ya@all have been so received and notice to ffedte
shall have been given to the Holders in accordaiiteCondition 21, and (i) in respect of a sunbmpaid by
the Issuer in a winding-up or administration of tesuer, the date which is one day prior to the datwhich an
order is made or a resolution is passed for thelimgiup or, in the case of an administration, oag [rior to
the date on which any dividend is distributed,;

Reset Dataneans the First Reset Date and each date falingeofifth anniversary of the First Reset Date;
Reset Periodneans the period from one Reset Date to (but dia) the next following Reset Date;

Reset Reference Bank®eans five major banks in the interbank marketdndon, Paris or Luxembourg as
selected by the Agent Bank, after consultation ithlssuer;

S&P means Standard & Poor's Rating Services or ang stibsidiaries and their successors;
Securitieshas the meaning given to it in the preamble tsdh@onditions;
Senior Obligationgneans the Senior Obligations of the Guarantor ha&enior Obligations of the Issuer;

Senior Obligations of the Guarantomeans all obligations of the Guarantor, issuedhourred directly or
indirectly by it, other than Parity Obligations athe Junior Obligations;

Senior Obligations of the Issuemeans all obligations of the Issuer, issued auriredd directly or indirectly by
it, other than Parity Obligations and the Juniofigations;

Special Eventmeans any of an Accounting Event, a Capital Evangubstantial Repurchase Event, a Tax
Deduction Event or a Withholding Tax Event or anynbination of the foregoing;
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Subsequent Fixed Interest Ratlkas the meaning given to it in Condition 7(&ulbsequent Fixed Interest
Rates;

Subsidiarymeans, in relation to the Issuer or the Guararatoy, individual, partnership, corporation, limited
liability company, association, trust, unincorpechbrganisation (i) in which the Issuer or, asdase may be,
the Guarantor holds a majority of the voting rigbts(ii) of which the Issuer or, as the case maythe
Guarantor is a member and has the right to apmoinémove a majority of the board of directors idj Of
which the Issuer or the Guarantor is a member antt@ls a majority of the voting rights, and inchsdany
individual, partnership, corporation, limited liiti company, association, trust, unincorporatedaaisation
which is a Subsidiary of a Subsidiary of the Issareias the case may be, the Guarantor;

Substantial Repurchase Everghall be deemed to occur if prior to the givingtbg relevant notice of
redemption the Issuer repurchases (and effectesmonding cancellations) or redeems Securitiesspeact of
80 per cent. or more in the principal amount of 8exurities initially issued (which shall for thigirpose
include any further Securities issued pursuantdodiion 22 Further Issuep;

Substitution or Variation Evenhas the meaning given to it in Condition Bupstitution or Variatio)

successor in businesmeans, in relation to a company, partnership oeroemtity, any other company,
partnership or other entity which:

® owns beneficially the whole or substantiallettvhole of the undertaking, property and assetsedwn
by such company, partnership or other entity imiatedy prior thereto; and

(i) carries on, as successor to such companyn@atip or other entity, the whole or substantistlg
whole of the business carried on by such compasmmership or other entity immediately prior theret

TARGET Systenmeans the Trans-European Automated Real-Time @egkement Express Transfer (known
as TARGET?2) System which was launched on 19 Nover2®@7 or any successor thereto;

aTax Deduction Evenshall be deemed to have occurred if as a resalfl@fx Law Change:

() in respect of the Issuer's obligation to make anterest Payment on the next following
Interest Payment Date, the Issuer would not belemtto claim a deduction in respect of
computing its taxation liabilities in Luxembourg; such entitlement is materially reduced
compared to such entitlement as at the Issue bate;

(i) in respect of the Issuer's obligation to make anterest Payment on the next following
Interest Payment Date, the Issuer would not toraaterial extent be entitled to have such
deduction set against the profits of companies withich it is grouped for applicable
Luxembourg tax purposes;

and, in each case, the Issuer cannot avoid thgdmrg in connection with the Securities by takingasures
reasonably available to it;

Tax Law Changemeans a change in or proposed change in, or anegrt@mproposed amendment to, the laws
or regulations of a Relevant Tax Jurisdiction oy @olitical subdivision or any authority thereof threrein
having the power to tax, including any treaty toichha Relevant Tax Jurisdiction is a party, or ahgnge in
the application of official or generally publishiderpretation of such laws or regulations, inchgda decision

of any court or tribunal, or any interpretationpponouncement by any relevant tax authority thaviples for a
position with respect to such laws or regulationsinterpretation thereof that differs from the pomsly
generally accepted position in relation to simttansactions, which change or amendment becomegoud
become, effective on or after the Issue Date; and
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a Withholding Tax Eventshall be deemed to occur if as a result of a Tax Change, in making any payments
on the Securities or the Guarantee, the IssudneoGuarantor has paid or will or would on the nlexérest
Payment Date be required to pay Additional Amowmntghe Securities or the Guarantee and the Issuiéreo
Guarantor, as the case may be, cannot avoid tegdirg in connection with the Securities by takingasures
reasonably available to it.

The following paragraphs do not form part of therte and conditions of the Securities.

Unless (a) the rating assigned by Standard & Podosthe Issuer is at least “BBB” (or such similar
nomenclature then used by Standard & Poor’s) aral Ifsuer is of the view that such rating would fadit
below this level as a result of such redemptionepurchase; or (b) the Securities are not assigaedequity
credit” (or such similar nomenclature then used ®tandard & Poor’s), at the time of such redemptorn
repurchase; or (c) in the case of a repurchasehsepurchase is in an amount necessary to allowigkeer’'s
aggregate principal amount of hybrid capital remaip outstanding after such repurchase to remaimwehe
maximum aggregate principal amount of hybrid cdptta which Standard & Poor’'s would assign equity
content under its prevailing methodology, the Issnéends (without thereby assuming a legal obliya,
during the period from and including the issue datt¢he Securities to but excluding the Reset Exdlieg on
29 January 2044, in the event of:

@ an early redemption of the Securities pursuantondition 9(b); or

(i) a repurchase of the Securities of more thanl@ per cent. of the aggregate principal amounthef
relevant Securities originally issued in any perafdl2 consecutive months or (b) 25 per cent. ®@ftjgregate
principal amount of the relevant Securities oridipassued in any period of 10 consecutive years,

to redeem or repurchase such Securities only tetent that such part of the aggregate principaloant of
the relevant Securities to be redeemed or repusthas was characterised as equity by Standard &'Ba
the time of their issuance (but taking into accoany changes in hybrid capital methodology or aeoth
relevant methodology or the interpretation thersisfce the issuance of the Securities) does notedxsech
part of the net proceeds which is received by #seidr or any subsidiary of the Issuer during th@-déy
period prior to the date of such redemption or nefhwase from the sale or issuance by the Issuerrmyr a
subsidiary of the Issuer to third party purchaséosher than subsidiaries of the Issuer) of secesitas is
characterised by Standard & Poor’s, at the timesale or issuance, as equity.
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THE GLOBAL CERTIFICATE

The Global Certificate will contain provisions whi@pply to the Securities in respect of which tlaeg
issuedwhile they are represented by the Global Certficaiome of which modify the effect of the
Conditions andvhich are summarised below. Terms defined in thed@ions have the same meaning in
paragraphs 1 to 7 below.

1. Accountholders

For so long as any of the Securities are repreddntehe Global Certificate, each person (othen thaother
clearing system) who is for the time being showrthia records of Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembaurg
any other clearing system (@iternative Clearing Systejnas the holder of a particular nominal amount of
such Securities (each akccountholde) (in which regard any certificate or other documésued by
Euroclear, Clearstreani,uxembourg or any Alternative Clearing System as tlh@ aggregate principal
amount of such Securities standing to #oeount of any person shall be conclusive and bgqdor all
purposes save in the case of manifest error) dleatreated as the holder of such nominal amoursuoh
Securities (and the expressibiolders andreferences tholding of Securitiesand toholder of Securitieshall

be construed accordingly) for all purpostlser than with respect to payments on such Seesyrihe right to
which shall be vested, as against the Issuer aadGiarantorsolely in the registered holder of the Global
Certificate, being the nominee for the relevanaitey system (th&elevant Nomineg in accordance with and
subject tahe terms of the Global Certificate and the Figagncy Agreement. Each Accountholder must look
solely to Euroclear or Clearstreabuxembourg, as the case may be, for its share @i payment made to
the Relevant Nominee.

2. Redemption and Cancellation

On any redemption or payment of interest being niadespect of, or purchase and cancellation of,afrthe
Securities represented by the Global Certificatéailde of such redemption, payment or purchase and
cancellation (as the case may be) shall be entgren on behalf of the Issuer in the Register. Upog such
redemption, payment of an instalment or purchadecancellation the nominal amount of the GlobaltiGeate

and the Securities held by the registered holdeedfieshall be reduced by the nominal amount of such
Securities so redeemed or purchased and cancélednominal amount of the Global Certificate andhsf
Securities held by the registered holder hereddiohg any such redemption or purchase and carticellas
aforesaid or any transfer or exchange as refeaéglow shall be the nominal amount most recenttgred in

the register.

3. Payments

Payments of principal, premium and interest (iniclgdfor the avoidance of doubt, Deferred Inter@stespect
of Securities represented by the Global Certificssitebe made to the Relevant Nominee upon presientar,
if no further payment falls to be made in respdcthe Securities, against presentation and surreofdsuch
Global Certificate to or to the order of the Fisdglent or such other Paying Agent as shall hava betfied to
the holders of the Global Certificate for such s A record of each payment made willeb¢ered into
by or on behalf of the Registrar in the Registat simall be prima facie evidence that paymentiessn made.

Distributions of amounts with respect to book-enitnjerests in the Securities held through Euroclear
Clearstream, Luxembourg will be credited, to théeekreceived by the Fiscal Agent, to the castounts of
Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg participamtadcordance with the relevant cleargygtem’s rules and
procedures.

For the purposes of Condition 1Baymenty the record date in respect of the Securitie beahe close of the
business day (being for this purpose a day on whigtoclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg are open for
business) before the relevant due date.
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4, Notices

So long as the Securities are represented by thisaGCertificate and the Global Certificate is hefdbehalf of
Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg or any Altemea€learing System notices to Holders may be glwen
delivery of the relevant notice to theelevant clearing system for communication by it éatitled
Accountholders in substitution for notification r@gjuired by Condition 21Notice$ provided that the Issuer
shall also ensure that notices are duly giverpublished in a manner which complies with the rudesl
regulations of any stock exchange or other relegattiority on which the Securities are for the tibwng
listed. Any such notice shall be deemed to have baen to the Holders on the day after the day oiclwvh
such notice is delivered to Eurocle@learstream, Luxembourg and/or any Alternative I@lgeSystem (as the
case may be) as aforesaid.

5. Exchange and Registration of Title

Transfers of the holding of Securities represebtethe Global Certificate pursuant to Condition)If@ay only
be made in part:

€)) if the Securities represented by the Globaltiftmte are held on behalf of Euroclear or Cleaa,
Luxembourg or any Alternative Clearing System ang such clearing system is closed for business
for a continuous period of 14 days (other than &égson of holidays, statutory or otherwise) or
announces an intention permanently to cease bgsimaoes in fact do so; or

(b) the Issuer has or will become subject to aadvésis consequences which would not be suffered were
the Securities represented by the Global Certdigatefinitive form; or

(c) upon an Enforcement Event,

provided that, in the case of the first transfepaifft of a holding pursuant to (a) or (b) above, iolder of the
Securities represented by the Global Certificate ¢i@en the Registrar not less than 30 days’ nadicés
specified office of such holder’s intention to effsuch transfer. Where the holding of Securitgsesented by
the Global Certificate is only transferable indtstirety, the Certificate issued to the transfengen transfer of
such holding shall be a Global Certificate. Wherangfers are permitted in part, Certificates issteed
transferees shall not be Global Certificates urtlesgdransferee so requests and certifies to tlyésiRer that it
is, or is acting as a nominee for, Clearstreamghbourg, Euroclear and/or an Alternative Cleariggt&n.

6. Transfers

Transfers of book-entry interests in the Securitiéd be effected through the records of Eurocleard
Clearstream, Luxembourg and their respective ppatits in accordance with the rules and procedofes
Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and thgieiv/e direct and indirect participants.

7. Calculation of Interest

For so long as all the Securities outstanding @peasented by the Global Certificate, interestl éieatalculated
on the basis of the aggregate principal amounh@f3ecurities represented by the Global Certificate not
per Calculation Amount as provided in Condition){(bterest Payments - Interest Accrlual
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL AND OTHER INFORMATION
Financial Data

Unless otherwise indicated, financial informatiocluded in this Prospectus has been prepared ordarice
with IFRS.

The Group’s financial year ends on 31 December.
Rounding

Some financial information in this Prospectus hasnbrounded, and as a result the numbers showotas t
may vary slightly from the exact arithmetical aggaton of the relevant figures.

Currency Presentation

In this Prospectus, references to “€,” “EUR” or f@uare to the single currency of the participatingmber
states fember States in the Third Stage of European Economic and MamyetUnion of the Treaty
Establishing the European Community, as amended fame to time. References to “U.S. dollars,” “l$S.
and “$” are to the United States dollar, the lavduirency of the United States of America.

Non-IFRS Measures

In this Prospectus, the Group presents certaimiah measures which are not recognised by IFR®sé&h
measures are presented because the Issuer bdlimtethey and similar measures are widely usechén t
Group's industry as a means of evaluating opergtieidormance, and such measures have been cotigisten
reported by the Group historically. Further detmiblso given where these measures are set oliriaricial
Overview — Other Performance Measlrddanagement uses such measures to assess anarenesGroup’s
operating performance. Accordingly, this informatibas been disclosed to permit a more complete and
comprehensive analysis of the Group’s operatingopmance, consistent with how the Group’s business
performance is evaluated by management.

These measures may not be comparable to similitlidyg tmeasures used by other companies and are not
measurements under IFRS or any other body of giyaczepted accounting principles, and thus shaoldbe
considered substitutes for the information conthimethe Group’s financial statements.

Constant FX Adjustments

To assist investors in isolating the impact of exue rates on its results and therefore improve the
comparability of its financial statements, the Grawports changes in its operating results on ataaoh
currency (“constant FX") basis. To do this, the @raeconsolidates figures on a month-by-month basis
applying the exchange rate used for a given mawth the current year to the corresponding monthenprior
year. For example, January 2015 financials woultebensolidated using the January 2016 exchange rat

The measures presented on a constant currencyshasikl not be considered in isolation or as agrradtive to
the measures presented on a reported basis orrdhip’&income statement or the notes thereto, hadld not
be construed as a representation that the relewasrgncy could be or was converted into U.S. dslkirthat
rate or at any other rate.

The following table shows revenue for each of thieup’s verticals for the nine months ending 30 Seylter
2015 and 2016. The figures for the period endin@8ptember 2015 are provided as reported and onsdant
FX basis calculated in the manner described abdbatso shows growth between the two periods oapanted
basis and on a constant FX basis.

66



For the nine | For the nine | Adjustments | For the nine Year on | Year on year Year on

months months | for constant months year growth (at year

ending 30 ending 30 Fx! ending 30 growth | constant FX) | growth (at

September| September September| (reported) constant

2016 2015 2015 (at FX and

(EUR (reported) constant FX) “same
million) scope®)
Video 1,026.¢ 989.: 2.7 991.¢ +3.8% +3.5% +0.9%
Enterprise 181.7 216.( 1.€ 217.¢ -15.9% -16.6% -20.094
Mobility 76.¢ 51.1 0.€ 51.7 +50.3% +48.5Y% +32.5Y%
Government 176.¢ 196.t 1.1 197.¢ -10.1% -10.6% -12.4%
Other 28.2 39.¢ 0.1 39.¢ n/m n/m n/m
Total 1,490.: 1,492.¢ 6.1 1,498." -0.2% -0.6% -3.6%

Non-Financial Operating Measures

This Prospectus includes one non-financial opagatieasure used by the Issuer to track the perfarenafithe
Group’s business: transponder utilisation ratess Tieasure is not a measure of financial performamzier
IFRS and has not been reviewed by an outside audibmsultant or expert. This measure is derivethfr
management information systems. As this term imddfby the Issuer, it may not be comparable tdlaim
terms used by other companies. The Issuer defiaasgonder utilisation rates as the number of pamders
utilised divided by the number of commercially dable transponders.

The transponder utilisation figures included irstRrospectus have been extracted without matenahdment
from the Group’s management records.

! See “ Constant FX Adjustmetitabove.The period average EUR/USD exchange rate was 1.1109

2 “Same scope” excludes the impact of consolidaRRyMedia and O3b. This is based on an adjustment (t
reflect the foregoing) to reported revenue for tiree months ending 30 September 2016 of €26.4amijll
€7.6 million, €8.3 million, €3.5 million and €0.2iliron for Video, Enterprise, Mobility, Governmemind
Other respectively (totaling €46.0 million), meagifsame scope” revenue for the nine months endihg 3
September 2016 of €1,000.4 million, €174.1 milli@68.5 million, €173.1 million and €28.0 milliorf
Video, Enterprise, Mobility, Government and Othespectively (totaling €1,444.1 million). The Issuer
believes it is of assistance to investors to malke dadjustment so as to provide a meaningful coreg@ar
between the two periods, without taking into acadbhe impact of two substantial acquisitions.

3 .18.4%, if adjusted further by €25.7 million afid7.5 million to exclude the impact of the ARSATgnation
and AMC-15/AMC-16 renewals in the nine month pesietiding 30 September 2015 and 30 September 2016
respectively.

4 -6.8%, if adjusted further by €20.1 million ar@7.7 million to exclude the accellerated revenomtribution
from WAAS and GOLD hosted payloads in the nine rhopériods ending 30 September 2015 and 30
September 2016 respectively.
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Trademark

The SES trademark appearing on the front coverhisf Prospectus and variations thereon are registere
trademarks of SES and are registered with, or sulhfe pending trademark applications with, the vatg
registries of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg andotes other countries.

Third-Party Data

In this Prospectus, the Issuer relies on and réfensformation and statistics regarding its industThe Issuer
obtained this market data from independent indystiylications or other publicly available infornmati These
and other third-party reports, publications andveys from which certain information contained insth
Prospectus has been extracted, as well as ther'tssuiernal estimates, rely on the applicationvafious

assumptions. While the Issuer believes that thesenaptions are reasonable, the Issuer cannot dssastors

that these assumptions are true, nor can the Iggusantee that an independent party applying rdifie
assumptions or using different methods to assemblalyse or compute market or other industry datalav

obtain or generate the same results.

The Issuer confirms that this information have baecurately reproduced and, as far as the Iss@avase and
is able to ascertain from information publishedtbhat third party, no facts have been omitted whiguld
render the reproduced information inaccurate oleailing.

Websites

Websites included in the Prospectus are for inftiongurposes only and do not form part of the peotus.
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The following information presents certain finah@ad other operating data in relation to the Issra the
Guarantor and should be read in conjunction wighrtfspective financial statements which, excepéspect of
the financial information in relation to the nineonths ending 30 September 2016, are incorporatetisn
Prospectus by reference.

Condensed consolidated income statement of the Igsifor the nine months ending 30 September

(EUR million) 2016| 2015 (reported)
Revenue 1,490.1 1,492%
Operating expenses (429.2) (386.1)
EBITDA®’ 1,060.9 1,106.5
Depreciation and amortisation expense (450.5) @4o0.
Operating profit ® 610.4 666.2
Gain on disposal of non-controlling interest 495.2 -
Net financing costs (135.4) (103.7

® The restatement of this figure on a constant F¥isbéas €1,498.7 million) is discussed Présentation of
Financial and Other Information — Constant FX Adjuents.

® Growth in EBITDA between the 2015 and 2016 perislaswn above would therefore be -4.1% on a reported
basis (€1,060.9 million (2016, actual) compareé1d06.5 million (2015, reported)), -4.7% on a tansFX
basis (€1,060.9 million (2016, actual) compared19113.0 million (2015, adjusted for constant F¥e s
“Presentation of Financial and Other Information -erGtant FX Adjustmeri}$ and -4.7% for constant FX
and “same scope” (taking into account an adjustrtergvenue and operating expenses for the 2016dpef
€46.0 million and €45.8 million, respectively, toctude the impact of the RR Media and O3b constitida
(including transaction-related costs). See foot@atdove for further details).

" Taking into account reported, constant FX and @ons$=X/“same scope” revenue growth of -0.2%, -06%
-3.6%, respectively, and reported, constant FX @mtstant FX/“same scope” EBITDA growth of -4.1%, -
4.7% and -4.7%, respectively (in each case asleeétai footnotes 5 and 6 above), EBITDA Margin greyw-

2.9 percentage points on a reported basis, by p8ttentage points on a constant FX basis and &y -O.
percentage points on a constant FX/'same scopels.b&8BITDA Margin is calculated in the manner
described under “EBITDA and EBITDA Margihbelow.

8 Growth in operating profit between the 2015 and&@eriods shown above would therefore be -8.4% on
reported basis (€610.4 million (2016, actual) corapato €666.4million (2015, reported)), -8.9% on a
constant FX basis (€610.4 million (2016, actuathpared to €670.3 million (2015, adjusted for consEX))
and -5.7% for constant FX and “same scope” (takibg account an adjustment of €21.8 million to @pieig
profit for the 2016 period to exclude the impacttbe RR Media and O3b consolidation (including
transaction-related costs). See footnote 2 abaviifther details).

° On a constant FX basis, operating profit for thé®period would be €670.3 million, adjusted by9eillion
for constant FX (the period average EUR/USD exckanatg is 1.1109).
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Profit before tax 970.2 562.7
Income tax expense (83.9) (89.2)
Profit after tax 886.3 473.5
Share of associates’ result, net of tax (62.5) 5Pb.
Non-controlling interests 0.2 (2.5)
Profit attributable to owners of the parent' 824.0 375.5

19 Excluding gain of EUR 495.2 million on disposal@8b non-controlling interest following SES’s acsition
of remaining O3b shares completed 1 August 2016.

™ Growth in profit attributable to owners of the gar between the 2015 and 2016 periods shown abouksw
therefore be 119.5% on a reported basis (€824.lomi(2016, actual) compared to €37%hllion (2015,
reported)).
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Selected Audited Consolidated Financial Informatiorof the Issuer as of, and for the 12 month period

ended, 31 December
(amounts in millions of Euro)

2014 2015
Revenue 1,919.1 2,014.5
Operating Profit 882.6 894.6
Total Equity 3,489.6 4,060.8
Net Debt 3,961.6 3,792.0
Total Assets 9,952.1 10,665.8
Free cash flow before financing 738.4 890.0

activities

Selected Unaudited Consolidated Financial Informatin of the Issuer as of, and for the 6 month period

ended, 30 June
(amounts in millions of Euro)

2015 2016
Revenue 999.1 956.8
Operating Profit 449.9 417.6
Total Equity 3,665.9 5,330.8
Net Debt 3,971.6 2,5681.2
Total Assets 10,314.4 11.568.3
Free cash flow before financing 535.9 280.0
activities
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Selected Audited Consolidated Financial Informatiorof the Guarantor as of, and for the 12 month perid
ended, 31 December
(amounts in millions of US Dollar)

2014 2015
Revenue 623.1 522.7
Operating Profit 112.1 (558.9)
Total Assets 4,413.0 4,074.6
Total partnership equity 1,734.3 1,128.6
Net debt 1,738.3 1,492.7
Free cash flow before financing 43.5 (280.4)
activities

Selected Unaudited Consolidated Financial Informatin of the Guarantor as of, and for six month period
ended, 30 June
(amounts in millions of US Dollar)

2015 2016
280.1 253.8

Revenue
Operating Profit 27.8 50.2
Total Assets 4,659.3 4,225.3
Total partnership equity 1,746.5 1,146.5
1,685.2 1,504.0

Net debt
Free cash flow before financing (231.8) (101.6)

activities
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Other Performance Measures

These measures may not be comparable to similiidyg tmeasures used by other companies and are not
measurements under IFRS or any other body of giyaczepted accounting principles, and thus shaoldbe
considered substitutes for the information conimethe Group’s financial statements. S@eesentation of
Financial and Other Informatior Non-IFRS Measurés

Net Debt

Net debt is defined as loans and borrowings lesk aad cash equivalents. The Group believes thatele is
relevant to investors, since it gives an indicatibthe absolute level of non-equity funding of thesiness. This
can be compared to the income and cash flows genldog the business, and available undrawn faasliti

The following table reconciles net debt to thevatd balance sheet line items.

Net debt (the Issuer) (amounts in millions of Euro)

As of 31 December| As of 31 December| As of 30 June 2018 As of 30 June 2016
2014 2015
Loans and 4,486.1 4,431.7 4,582.3 4,358.9
borrowings
Less cash and cash (524.5) (639.7) (610.7 ,777.7)
equivalents
Net debt 3,961.6 3,792.0 3,971/6 2,581.2

Net debt (the Guarantor) (amounts in millions dbUDollar):

As of 31 December| As of 31 December| As of 30 June 2018 As of 30 June 2016
2014 2015
Loans and 1,765.0 1,516.8 1,719.6 1,529.7
borrowings
Less cash and cash (26.7) (24.6) (34.4 (25.7
equivalents
Net debt 1,738.3 1,492.2 1,685|2 1,504.0

EBITDA and EBITDA Margin

EBITDA is defined as profit for the period beforeetimpact of depreciation, amortisation, net finagc
charges, income tax, the Group’s share of the tefl joint ventures and associates and discordinue
operations and any extraordinary line item betwes@nue and profit before tax in the Group’s cosbéd

income statement. EBITDA Margin is defined as EBN @divided by revenue.

The Group believes that

EBITDA and EBITDA Margin are useful supplementatlicators that may be used to assist in evaluating a
company’s operating performance.

The following table reconciles EBITDA to the inconstatement line items from which it is derived and
provides a further reconciliation of EBITDA Margin.
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For the nine For the nine | Adjustments for For the nine
months ending 30| months ending 30|  constant FX'? | months ending 30
September 2016 September 2015 September 2015
(EUR million) (reported) (at constant FX3)
Revenue 1,490.1 1,492.6 6. 1,498\7
Operating expenses (429.2) (386.1) 0.4 (386.7)
EBITDA 1,060.9 1,106.5 6.5 1,113|0
EBITDA Margin (%) 71.2% 74.1% 0.2 pts. 74.3%

Net Debt to EBITDA ratio

Net debt to EBITDA ratio is defined as net debtididd by EBITDA. The Group believes that net debt to
EBITDA ratio is a useful measure to demonstratt@stors its ability to generate the income needdebe
able to settle its loans and borrowings as the\dfa.

The following table reconciles the net debt to EBN ratio to net debt and EBITDA. EBITDA is (subjetct
the adjustments detailed in footnotes 14 and 1Eulzded in the manner set out above and net debtoben
calculated in the manner detailed in footnotesrid B/ below.

For the twelve months
ending 30 September
2016

For the twelve months
ending 30 September
2015

EBITDA (EUR million)

1,458.1

1,484.&°

As of 30 September
2016

As of 30 September|
2015

2 The period average EUR/USD exchange rate was 9.110

13 See Presentation of Financial and Other InformatierConstant FX Adjustmetits

14 For the purposes of the net debt to EBITDA rai®@b30 September 2016, the Group has made artragjis
of €9.4 million to the reported EBITDA figure of £60.9 million in order to appropriately reflecteth
acquisition of O3b and RR Media. The Group beliethed this adjustment is helpful to investors siitce
demonstrates the position taking into account tisggeificant acquisitions. A further adjustment&#87.7
million is made to reflect the EBITDA figure fordHourth quarter for the Group’s 2015 fiscal yeahith is
calculated from €521.9 million of revenue less €234illion of operating expenses for the last threnths
of 2015) since for these purposes EBITDA is takerafrolling 12-month period to the correspondiet) aebt
position when net debt to EBITDA is calculated sa@ present a meaning comparison of this ratiwéen
periods for an investor. This is consistent withvitbe Group calculates and reports net debt to BBIDn

an ongoing basis.

5 An adjustment of €378.3 million has been madééreported EBITDA figure of €1,106.5 million toflest
the fourth quarter of the Group’s 2014 fiscal ydar the reasons given in footnote 14 above.
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4,809.1° 3,804.7

Net debt (EUR million)

Reported as of 30
September 2015

Reported as of 30
September 2016

3.3C 2.62

Net debt to EBITDA
ratio

Free Cash Flow Before Financing Activities

Free cash flow is defined as net operating cashl#gs net cash absorbed by investing activitiesilable free
cash flow is used for the payment of dividends,shivicing and repayment of borrowings and othwairfting
activities, and this figure is therefore relevamirtvestors in the Securities. The following tahlesoncile free
cash flow before financing activities to the releveash flow statement line items for the periduss.

Free Cash Flow Before Financing Activities (theuks9 (amounts in millions of Euro)

As of 31 December 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015:

For the year | For the year| Forthe year| Forthe year| For the year

ending 31 ending 31 ending 31 ending 31 ending 31

December December December December December

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Net operating 1,079.¢ 1,233.: 1,148 1,239.! 1,450.¢
cash flow

Investing (850.3 (697.7 (422.3 (501.1 (560.6
activities

Free cash flow 229.¢ 535.1 726.2 738.¢ 890.(

before

financing
activities

16 Calculated from total borrowings of €5,022.7 roifliless cash and cash equivalents of €580.8 milionthe
purposes of the net debt to EBITDA ratio as of 8pt8mber 2016, the Group has raised the total worgs
amount by €367.5 million to €5,390.2 million to leet the 50% equity credit assigned by Moody's and
Standard & Poor’s to the existing €750,000,000 De8pbordinated Fixed Rate Resettable Securit@gN(I
XS1405777746) of the Issuer (tR&isting Hybrid). Under IFRS the Existing Hybrid is recognisecegaity.
The Group believes that this adjustment is helgfuhvestors, since it demonstrates a higher lef/klverage
than that which would have been reported using nyidg IFRS numbers and shows that the Group resnain
at a net debt to EBITDA ratio of not more than ndes for rating agency purposes.

7 Calculated from total borrowings of €4,406.1 roifliless cash and cash equivalents of €511.4 million
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As of 30 June 2015 and 2016:

As of 30 June 201

As of 30 June 201

before financing

activities

Net operating cas 784.¢ 566.¢
flow

Investing activitie (248.5 (286.8
Free cash flow 535.¢ 280.(

Free Cash Flow Before Financing Activities (the @urdor) (amounts in millions of U.S. Dollar):

As of 31 Decembe

As of 31 Decembe

As of 30 June

As of 30 June

before
financing
activities

2014 2015 2015 2016
Net operating 238.¢ 156.¢ 94.1 91.1
cash flow
Investing (194.9 (437.0 (325.9 (292.7
activities
Free cash flow 43.t (280.4 (231.8 (101.6

Free Cash Flow Before Financing Activities as a Rentage of Group Revenue

Free cash flow before financing activities as apetage of Group revenue is defined as free cashldefore
financing activities divided by Group revenue. Thigasure is relevant to investors, since it dematest the
size of free cash flow as a proportion of the hieadfevenue number for the period. The followinglda
reconciles free cash flow before financing actagtas a percentage of Group revenue to free aastbéifore
financing activities and revenue, with free castwfbefore financing activities being reconciledunn back to

the relevant cash flow statement line items inabeave tables.

For the year

For the year

For the year

For the year

For the year

before
financing
activities as a
percentage of
Group revenue
(%)

ending 31 ending 31 ending 31 ending 31 ending 31
December December December December December
(EUR million) 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Free cash flov 229.¢ 535.% 726.2 738.2 890.(
before
financing
activities
Revenu 1,733.. 1,828.( 1,862.! 1,919.: 2,014.!
Free cash flow 13.2% 29.3% 39.0% 38.5% 44.2%
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Growth in Group Revenue by Region and InfrastrucRilEBITDA Margin

For the year ending 31 December:

2007 | Adjustments | 2007 (at 2014 | Adjustments | 2014 (at 2015
(EUR (reported)*® | for constant | constant| (reported) | for constant| constant
million) X FX) FX# FX)
Europe and 1,244§ 90.¢€ 1,335‘ 1,359‘ 64.2 1,423( 1,424(
North
America
Total 1,506.7" 149.¢| 1,655. 1,919.. 162.2| 2.081.0| 2,014

On a constant FX basis, revenue grew by a compauandal gross rate€€AGR) of approximately 2.5 per cent
between 2007 and 2015 (approximately 8 per cerlhfernational and approximately 1 per cent fordperand
North America). CAGR is the implied annual growtte in moving from the revenue level in 2007 ta tha
2015, assuming a consistent annual growth rate teeperiod, and it is a common way of demonstgatin
growth of a particular part of a business over réogeof time. It is therefore of relevance to intags.

The Group’s services fall into two categories, dsfructure and Services (seBusiness — Customers and
Services — Overviélv The Infrastructure EBITDA Margin represents tBBITDA Margin earned on revenues
attributable to the Infrastructure category of @®up's services. The Issuer believes this is Usefimvestors,
since the Infrastructure category of the Grouptsises is the larger of the two. The table on thgtpage sets
out the revenue and operating expenses attributablafrastructure, to which Infrastructure EBITDad
Infrastructure EBITDA Margin are reconciled.

18 Since the above table is provided to show investoe development in these metrics between 20028,
it would not be of assistance to investors for ¢hmsrposes to provide these metrics for every Girmmperiod
between these dates. However, for consistencytivtiway in which these figures are ordinarily repdrby
the Group, comparables to the 2014 period are ghedvi

¥ The period average EUR/USD exchange rate was 1.115
%0 The period average EUR/USD exchange rate was 1.115

2 This figure is adjusted by €104.6 million (remayifrom the 2007 revenue the contribution from ND
SatCom, a subsidiary which the Group sold on 28 el 2011 so as to demonstrate a more meaningful
comparison (the reported figure in 2007 was €1,6fdillion).
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For the year ending 31 December:

2007 | Adjustments | 2007 (at 2014 | Adjustments | 2014 (at 2015
(reported)?® | for constant | constant | (reported) | for constant | constant
(EUR million) FX® FX) X2 FX)
Infrastructure 1,378.2 130.4] 155086 1,643 144.4| 1,787.7| 1,727
revenue
Infrastructure (254.8) (28.6) | (283.6) (256.4 (27.0) (283.9 | (277.9)
operating
expenses
Infrastructure 1,123.4 101.¢| 1,225.0 1,386.9 117.4 1,504.0| 1,450.(
EBITDA
Infrastructure 81.5% (0.2pts. | 81.2% 84.4% (0.2 pts|) 84.2% | 84.0%
EBITDA
Margin (%)

2 Since the above table is provided to show investoe development in these metrics between 2002@i%!
it would not be of assistance to investors for ¢hmsrposes to provide these metrics for every Gimmperiod
between these dates. However, for consistencytivtiway in which these figures are ordinarily repdrby
the Group, comparables to the 2014 period are ghedvi

% The period average EUR/USD exchange rate was 1.115

% The period average EUR/USD exchange rate was 1.115
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BUSINESS
Overview

SES is a world-leading satellite operator. The @rowns and operates a fleet of 53 geostationaejlises and
provides satellite-enabled communications solutibtmsmajor customers around the world. The Group’s
operations are focused on delivering solutionsetoes four market verticals — Video, Enterprise, Mgband
Government. The Group'’s fleet is complemented bgtavork of teleports and offices located aroundvibdd.
This far-reaching infrastructure could enable theup to offer coverage to 99 per cent of the warld’
population. The Group’s transponder utilisatioreras at 30 June 2016 was 69.7 per cent, repregen@Bl of
1,550 transponders commercially available, and lwiricluded the impact of SES-9 entering into conuiaér
service on 1 June 2016.

In addition to operating a geostationary satefliéet with global coverage, across multiple fregryebands,
SES has acquired 100 per cent of O3b Netwo@3b( on 1 August 2016. O3b is a company operating a
Medium Earth Orbit MEO) satellite constellation that combines the reafthatellite with the speed of fibre.
For more information on O3b, see B30 below.

SES'’s differentiated strategy focuses on threeckemyents:
* Globalisation (building scale to serve rapidly easing demand for global solutions);
» Verticalisation (focused development of differetethcapabilities in the four market verticals); and

« Dematuring (shaping the future user experience, emttenching satellite’'s key role in the digital
ecosystem).

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Grouptegbevenue growth in three of the four verticalgleo
grew 7.5 per cent to €1,354.9 million compared 1¢2€60.8 million in 2014, Mobility grew 47.4 per detio
€52.9 million compared to €35.9 million in 2014 afvernment grew 18.8 per cent to €255.6 million
compared to €215.1 million in 2014, all on a repdrbasis. The revenue in the market vertical Erit&p
decreased by 5.1 per cent to €307.6 million comp#we€324.3 million in 2014, on a reported basitheD
revenues accounted for €43.5 million in 2015 angi@dlion in 2014, on a reported basis.

For the nine months ended 30 September 2016, tbepGeported revenue in Video of €1,026.8 million,
Enterprise of €181.7 million, in Mobility of €76:18illion, in Government of €176.6 million and oth@venue
€28.2 million.

The Group contracts satellite capacity and had mtract backlog of approximately €8.0 billion as of
30 September 2016 (which includes the contractlbgaf O3b and RR Media). This is compared withtcact
backlog of approximately €7.4 billion, €7.3 billiand €7.5 billion as of 31 December 2015, 2014 203
respectively. Contracts with broadcasters are gdgdong-term, with typical durations of ten yedesd up to

15 years in certain cases) for customers in Nontmedca and Europe and between five and ten years fo
customers in developing markets. Contracts wittergnises are typically three to five years in lénghd
contracts with government customers are typicallg gear. The Group’s largest customers generally ar
leading media companies, enterprises and governagricies with low credit risk and steady cash dlow
These qualities, combined with the Group’s conthaatklog, provide SES with a high degree of casivsland
revenue visibility. The Issuer believes the longleynature of many of the Group’s material consaatke the
business less susceptible to short-term fluctuatiomglobal economic conditions. As of 30 Septeniix6, the
Group had a weighted average contract length rengaof around 8 years.

Competitive Strengths

The Issuer believes that the Group benefits froerfalowing key strengths:
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A leading satellite operator with global reacl$SES is a leading global satellite operator, apeya fleet of 53
satellites serving markets around the world. Itsifess supports a number of applications, foreafoshich is
the transmission of direct-to-hom®TH) television broadcasts, a high-value applicatioith wersistent
characteristics. SES also provides services, imdu¥SAT networks, broadband internet access anbilso
backhaul, to commercial enterprises, and communitatinks to government customers.

Strong and predictable cash flowdhe Group had a contract backlog of approxima€dy3 billion as of
30 June 2016 delivered by a strong customer bassisting predominantly of broadcasters in developed
markets. This customer profile generates a prdultdigh-margin revenue stream, resulting in ehhigsh
flow conversion factor.

Clear financial strategy The Group is committed to maintaining its BBB/BaéStandard & Poor’'s and
Moody's) investment grade credit rating. This haglitated access on favourable terms to the dapidakets.
While the Group has adequate liquidity at handfdsendate of this Prospectus, it continues to sealiversify
and extend its debt funding base and to optimssdabt maturity profile.

Experienced management teanSES has a highly experienced management teambyethe Executive
Committee, each of whose members has considergiiieience in the satellite industry.

Strategy

The Group’s objective is to be the world’'s mosttoaser-focused satellite company by collaboratinthvitis
customers and partners around the world to grow thesinesses through the Group’s unique, reliziold
innovative satellite infrastructure and solutiofke Group aims to deliver sustainable and proftajsbwth by
building on the Group’s core competencies and pogsihe following strategies:

. market vertical-centric innovation, including
« rapidly increasing scale in the Video market vaitiaided by the acquisition of RR Media,

« enhancing capabilities within the Enterprise maslatical, including through the acquisition of
03b,

e building the potential of the Mobility market verdl by providing top-end aeronautical and
maritime connectivity and integrating O3b’s capiibes and

»  providing space resilience within the Governmentkatavertical, including to the United States

and NATO;
. focused development of spectrum;
. technological evolution that creates new opportesiand enables new markets;
. differentiated investment;
. building up global capabilities in all elementstioé business; and
. sustained organisational efficiency.

History

The Issuer was founded in 1985 as Europe’s firsiafg satellite operator under the name of Société
Européenne des Satellites. The Group’s first smelASTRA 1A, was launched in December 1988 for
broadcasting primarily into the UK, with transmasibeginning in February 1989. The satellite had 16
transponders, most of which targeted specific ntarkethe UK and Scandinavia. By the end of 1998TRA
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1A was able to reach over 16 million cable &d@H households in Europe. The launch of ASTRA 1A was
followed by the launches of the ASTRA 1B, ASTRA &a@Gd ASTRA 1D satellites to meet increasing demand,
in 1991, 1993 and 1994, respectively. These da®llivere co-located in the same orbital slot (B.2f
ASTRA 1A, substantially increasing the number ddirwhels that could be transmitted from that orlgtadition.

In the years that followed, the Group reached @rrthilestones, including the inauguration of itgitgil
technical facilities for the reception, monitoringultiplexing, encryption and uplinking of hundreafsdigital
channels on the ASTRA system, the launching oh&nrtsatellites and the expansion of its footpricroas
Europe.

In 1998, the Issuer became a publicly listed comgptinough an initial public offering and listing dhe
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. In 1999, the Group béganansition from a single-market business tgiabal
operator through a strategy of acquiring minonitierests in regional operators, such as Asian tpeAsiaSat,
Nordic operator NSAB and Brazilian operator StaeOn

In 1998, the Issuer opened a second orbital latdtio Europe at 28.2°E, to serve the UK and IrelBxddH
markets. First transmissions began following thiadtl of ASTRA 2A in August 1998.

In 2001, the Issuer acquired a 100 per cent intenesseneral Electric GE) satellite communications unit
American Communications, for a consideration inhcasd shares, following which GE became a significa
shareholder in the Issuer. The acquisition inclutiédatellites serving the North American markstyell as
six other satellites covering Asia, Latin Americamd certain Oceanic regions. The transaction alcloded a
U.S. government services unit.

In 2003, the Group created a strategic partnersiap linked SES AMERICOM (North America’s largest
satellite operator at the time) with EchoStar (th&.'s second-largest DTH network) by which the @ro
procures satellites and then fully contracts thgaciy of the satellites to EchoStar.

In May 2004, SES's securities were listed on theokext Paris Stock Exchange in order to furtheilifate
trading in SES’s securities.

In 2004, SES acquired DPC from the Kirch Group. @eed SES Platform Services, this entity provides
broadcasters with playout, multiplexing and enagpsatellite uplinks as well as other media brosidca
services.

In 2006, SES extended its footprint to deliver globoverage through the acquisition of New Skie®Ifges.

This acquisition gave the Group global coveragel@@ per cent-owned satellites, thereby shiftisgsttategy
away from minority interests such as in AsiaSat &tat One. In a €1.2 hillion spin-off transaction2007,
these and certain other assets and cash werehltdnattito GE in exchange for its remaining sharehglih

SES, shares which were then cancelled.

In 2008, the Group began using a new orbital pmsitB1.5°E, to serve markets in Eastern Europerdipas
were initiated with the Sirius 2 satellite, renanf&iTRA 5A. Following its retirement from serviceparations
continued on ASTRA 2C and subsequently ASTRA 1GTRA 5B was launched on 22 March 2014 and
operates at 31.5°E.

In 2009, SES continued to expand despite the gletmiomic downturn, with robust demand for capanaitys
developing markets. In particular, the Group emteérdgo a partnership with Star Satellite Commuridzest
Company PJSCY@hSa) to offer DTH television in the Middle East and ri#o Africa. The Group also
announced its strategic investment in O3b.

By 2010, the Group had more than 40 satelliteparation and celebrated its 25-year anniversary.

In 2012, the Group expanded its fleet through shueth of three new satellites, SES-4, SES-5 andRASIF.
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The ASTRA satellite system has continued to expegeaudience growth in the 37 countries in its gegaigic
footprint coverage. A growing line-up of digitaldégision and radio channels has increased ASTR&Chrtical
reach. At the end of 2015, ASTRA reached approxipat56 million, or 61 per cent, of all television
households in its footprint. These households veckioadcasts via satellite, cable and IPTV, ofciisatellite
served approximately 64 million homes directly, hwitable (approximately 64 million) and IPTV
(approximately 28 million) serving the remainder.

In June 2013, the Group launched SES-6 and brauigtd service in July, replacing the NSS-806 suaaft at
40.5°W and doubling the available capacity at tirhttal position with an incremental 49 transpoisdSES-6

is home to Brazilian DTH Pay-TV provider Oi's neextended DTH package. In September 2013, SES and
Panasonic Avionic Corporation signed a major sttetlapacity agreement to use the SES-6 sateliteita
high-powered Ku-band mobility beams over the AitarDcean to deliver a complete entertainment and
communications package to aircraft.

SES-8 was launched on 3 December 2013 and entdedammercial service on 3 February 2014. It leenb
successfully co-positioned with SES’s NSS-6 saelit the orbital location of 95°E and is now fully
operational to serve markets in the Asia-Pacifigamr.

In addition, ASTRA 2E was launched on 30 Septen2Bd3 and entered into commercial service on 1 Febru
2014. ASTRA 2E delivers next generation broaddaSHT and broadband services in Europe, the MidaistE
and Africa, and carries Ku- and Ka-band payloadkeprime orbital location of 28.2°E/28.5°E.

The procurement of SES-10 was announced on 20 &gb2014. The Group has selected Airbus Defence and
Space (formerly known as Airbus Military, EADS Asin and Cassidian) to build this communications
satellite. The new satellite will expand SES’s dalitees in Latin America and the Caribbean througgh-
power beams tailored to provide DTH broadcastintgmrise and broadband connectivity services énetiitire
region at the orbital location of 67°W. With 55 higower Ku-band transponders, the satellite witvite
replacement capacity for the current satellites,ABland AMC-4, as well as incremental capacityhatG7°wW
slot.

In June 2014, SES won the Brazilian spectrum anidtiothe two orbital positions 48°W and 64°W.

The procurement of SES-12 was announced on 1720dl¢. Airbus Defence and Space has been selected to
build this new hybrid communications satellite éo\v& the fast growing DTH, Data, Mobility and Gaverent
markets in Asia. The new satellite will expand SE$apabilities to provide DTH broadcasting, VSAT,
Mobility and High Throughput SatellitdHT'S) data connectivity services in the Asia-Pacifigioa, including
rapidly growing markets such as India and IndoneHie spacecraft will be positioned at the welkbished
orbital slot of 95°E, providing incremental as wadl replacement capacity with excellent view angteess the
Asia-Pacific region. SES-12 will replace NSS-6 aill be co-located with SES-8.

On 4 September 2014, SES announced the continuatithstrategic partnership with EchoStar Corfioraat
the orbital position of 105°W with the procuremefithe new SES-11 satellite. SES-11 will be martufac
by Airbus Defence and Space based on the relialteskar E3000 platform. SES-11 will carry 24 Ku-tan
transponders as well as 24 C-band transponderssfdeecraft's Ku-band capacity will replace thesting
SES satellite AMC-15 at 105°W, an orbital positishere EchoStar has been SES'’s anchor customer Zince
December 2004. The spacecraft’'s C-band capacityvalide replacement capacity for AMC-18 at 105°W.

On 28 December 2014, ASTRA 2G was successfullydaed on ILS Proton from Baikonour in Kazakhstan.
ASTRA 2G was built by Airbus Defence and Space oulduse, France. ASTRA 2G also delivers next
generation broadcast, VSAT and broadband servicésiiope, the Middle East and Africa and carries &d
Ka-band payloads at the prime dual orbital locatib@8.2/28.5°E.
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On 16 February 2015, SES announced that it hademtdew satellites SES-14 from Airbus Defence apacg
and SES-15 from Boeing Satellite Systems to progidevth capacity in Latin America and North America
respectively. Both are powerful hybrid satellitesjng Ku-, Ka- and, in the case of SES-14, alsca@dbin
wide-beam and high-throughput technology and alpetectric propulsion system that enhances thellgas’
economic efficiency as a result of the enhancedopdythat can be carried as a result of the recluéti fuel
mass. Both satellites are due to be launched ii.201

In March 2015, Airbus Defence and Space announcedilti-year capacity agreement with SES to deliver
managed satellite communication services for catgocustomers in the mining, energy and humanitaria
sectors. Airbus Defence and Space will utilise cépan SES-5, with the potential to take additioka-band
capacity on ASTRA 2G, ASTRA 4A and NSS-12. In aiddit SES will provide teleport services from
Luxembourg.

SES’s commitment to developing its presence irMbbility vertical was boosted in March 2015, whelol@l
Eagle Entertainment3EE) contracted Ku-band wide-beam and HTS spot-begracity aboard SES-12, SES-
14 and SES-15. GEE will take advantage of the coatbtoverage over North and South America, thenfida
Ocean, Western Europe, the Middle East and Asi#i®do deliver in-flight connectivity and servicder
commercial airlines.

SES achieved important milestones in accelerativeg dommercial introduction of Ultra High Definition
(UHD). In addition to having three UHD demo channel&umrope via three orbital positions (19.2°E, 28.2°E
and 5°E) and in North America via 103°W, SES satweamulti-year contract to broadcast Europe’s first
commercial free-to-air UHD channel in May 2015.Jldy 2015, Sky Deutschland signed an additionahciap
agreement for UHD broadcasts.

SES continued to develop its business with goventsni@ Europe during 2015, notably with its investrnin
LuxGovSat, a jointly owned entity of SES and thexémbourg government. In February 2015, LuxGovSat
procured SES-16/GovSat-1 to provide dedicated amjlitfrequencies for governmental requirements over
Europe, the Middle East and Africa. The Luxembogayernment has also pre-committed to a significant
amount of the satellite’s capacity, which will soeppts NATO obligations.

SES Government Solutions has signed two new hogigdoad contracts, namely the Global-Scale
Observations of the Limb and Disk payload on SESxfid the Wide Area Augmentation Systems satellite
payload on SES-15.

In June 2015, StarTimes contracted additional dgpam SES-5 to provide an enhanced TV viewing
experience in Africa. StarTimes provides Englishglaage DTH content to viewers across the regianthe
SES-5 satellite located at 5 degrees East, amutlésytthe fastest-growing digital TV operator in i, with
more than 5 million Digital Terrestrial TelevisigDTT) and DTH subscribers across 16 countries mcAf

In September 2015, SES Platform Services unve#gdral innovative new products, which will helpsttape
the future of video distribution across multiplevides. These included FLUID HUB, which provides raged
cloud-based services on a variety of video platforiine service is already supporting over 20 vimtedemand
(VOD) portals for customers such as Fox Internaiddhannels Germany, Turner and the INSIGHT UHD
channel. In addition, LIQUID VOD distributes VOD mtent over satellite in areas underserved by teraks
alternatives and delivers premium content to ameging number of users, without incremental distion
costs.

In December 2015, Televisa in Latin America cortgdcthree C-band transponders on AMC-9 to broadcast
premium channels to millions of homes across Mexidoe combination of premium content and on-going
investment in seeding cable head-ends furthergttiens SES'’s video neighbourhood in Mexico.
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Recent Developments - most significant trends sintkee end of the 2015 financial year

In January 2016, SES announced the transmissiarr@tord number of TV channels through its sagefléet

as of 31 December 2015. SES’'s TV channel count drngwt0.8 per cent to 7,459 channels during 2015,
compared with an overall growth of around 2.4 partdor the rest of the industry. The superior tmwaent
was driven by the continued introduction of new HHiQefinition HD) channels across Europe and North
America, as well as the further expansion of SB&J0 business across emerging markets. Nearlye6@gnt

of all channels on the SES fleet are now broadnabte MPEG-4 compression standard. The penetrafibiD
channels across all markets continues to be anrtargodriver of growth for SES. The number of HDTV
channels served by SES's fleet of over 50 sateltirew by 18 per cent to 2,347 channels, represe8tl per
cent of the total TV channels on SES satellitexamtrast, the number of HDTV channels carried catellite

for the rest of industry grew by 13 per cent towdl&300 channels.

In February 2016, SES also signed important agretameith Panasonic and Gogo to provide capacity for
connectivity services. Panasonic Avionics signéohg-term contract for its highest bandwidth conmant to
date of high-powered, HTS spot-beam and wide-beanbdtd capacity, on the SES-14 and SES-15 satellite
Gogo has signed one of the largest satellite chpdeials ever struck in the aero market to meetigmp
demand for high-speed in-flight connectivity onvelaroutes over the Americas, contracting spot-beanth
wide-beam capacity aboard SES-14 and SES-15.

On 26 February 2016, SES announced that SES Phatarvices will merge with RR Media. In July 2016,
SES completed the merger of RR Media with SES @&latf Services. The combination of these two
complementary businesses will create a world-lgadiredia solutions provider. The new company, MX1,
enhances and expands SES’s capabilities to daelivermonetise a range of video services across limatar

and non-linear platforms. MX1 will provide a globaétwork and cloud-based technologies to delivéulla
suite of innovative digital video and media encetw solutions. The new combined company already
distributes over 1,000 TV channels, manages th@ptaof 440 TV channels and delivers syndicatedeamirto
more than 120 video on demand platforms arounelvtiréd.

On 4 March 2016, the SES-9 satellite was launchemGeostationary Transfer Orbit. On 1 June 20E5-S
was brought into commercial service increasing cigyaver key markets in Asia-Pacific. The satellito-
located with SES-7 at around 108.2°E, enables SH&ther expand technical reach and channel dourhis
video neighbourhood. In May 2016, SES announced uéti-gear, multi-transponder agreement with the
Philippines’ largest cable TV operator, Sky Calide,capacity on SES-9 for DTH broadcasting. Thetiaeied
capacity allows Sky Cable to complement existingleafferings with the deployment of a nationwid&HD
service, which will be available across more thaf @ities and municipalities.

On 29 April 2016, SES announced that it had agteducrease its stake in O3b to a controlling ieséiof 50.5
per cent. On 1 August 2016, SES acquired 100 petr. o O3b through the exercise of a call optiom. |
connection with the acquisition of O3b, on 31 M&A& SES raised gross proceeds of €908.8 millioouthtr
an issuance of 39,857,600 new fiduciary depositecgipts placed with institutional investors and iksuance
of 19,928,800 B shares of SES to existing B Shadehs (theCapital Rais@ and carried out an issuance of
€750,000,000 Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rate Réset&ecurities which settled on 10 June 2016 Kiyarid
Issuancg. For more information on O3b, see sectionO38’ below.

SES has continued to benefit from the transitiamfrStandard Definition (SD) to High Definition (HO)V
channel formats. Of the 7,463 total TV channelsatioast by SES's global fleet (30 June 2015: 7,183lper
cent are broadcast in HD (30 June 2015: 30.4 p#).CEhis represents a growth in HDTV channelsafllper
cent (year on year) to 2,442 HDTV channels. At 86e]J2016, 59 per cent of SES’s total TV channeds ar
broadcast in MPEG-4 (30 June 2015: 54 per cent).
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SES is also growing its commercial UHD portfolios Af 30 September 2016, SES broadcast 17 commercial
UHD TV channels (30 June 2015: none), includingr@dlional variations. In January 2016, SES andcdisi
Media unveiled UHD-1 for audiences of North Ameniceable operators and telcos. In May 2016, SES
announced an agreement for the world’s first UHDBrspchannel, Viasat Ultra HD. The new channebibe
launched in Scandinavia in August 2016, and bragtdca range of sporting events, including seletted
Champions League matches.

Via SES, 27 per cent of the world’s HD channels d46dper cent of all UHD channels available via lsitee
worldwide are being broadcasted.

On 28 October 2016, SES announced its resultshfomtne month period ending 30 September 2016. The
Group reported revenue of €1,490.1 million and atieg profit of €610.4 million for the period. Thiesults
also reflect the acquisition of RR Media (which veasjuired for a consideration of US$242 millionan3b

for the first time, with the Group reporting a demhygain of €495.2 million in connection with thismbsal of

its non-controlling interest in O3b. Se€&ifancial Overview - Consolidated income statenfentthe nine
months ending 30 September

Industry Overview and Trends
Overview

SES operates in th&SS sector of the satellite industry, which forms amegral part of the global
communications infrastructure. According to NSRigraue of FSS operators reached $13.7 hillion ir6201

Over the last several years, deregulation and fwaton have significantly reshaped the FSS sedtor
addition, the sector has seen an increase in efipartcing from countries such as China, FrancethrdJ.S.
that has contributed to the development of natigwkllite programmes. The sector has also undergon
consolidation, with regional and national operatoeing acquired by larger companies or seekingartnpr
with other providers.

There are currently three FSS operators in addito8BES that provide services globally. This igéasingly
important as broadcasters, enterprises and govetsraeek global connectivity. In addition, there amumber
of operators with fewer satellites that provideioagl and/or national services.

Satellite Communication

Satellite operators compete with terrestrial (idetg wireless) network operators (e.g., cable, Difflre optic,
microwave broadcasting and 3G/4G networks) in tlaekat for video, data and voice communication ses
Satellite services have several advantages ovee tmmpeting communication platforms, such as:

« the ability to extend beyond terrestrial networkl gqoints, or provide an alternative path to teriaist
infrastructure, thus avoiding points of congestiomunreliability;

» cost-effectiveness and efficiency in content disttion through the ability to broadcast high-qualit
signals (TV, radio and internet) from a single toma to many locations simultaneously;

» fast network deployments, with network performaeresily replicated across each site regardless of
geography or infrastructure, and efficient censeadi control and management;

» the ability to provide ubiquitous coverage ovemrgé geographic region allowing for the addition of
sites at a lower marginal cost. Unlike cable abdefiines, satellites can readily provide broadeast
communication services over large areas and toteelncations where the population density may not
be high enough to warrant the expense of builditegrastrial-based communications network;
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e superior end-to-end network availability comparedetrrestrial networks;

« sufficient bandwidth to support the introductionnaw technologies and video and data offeringd) suc
as HD and Ultra HD television; and

e rapid communications capabilities for disaster vecy.

Terrestrial alternatives, such as fibre optic cabieay be more advantageous than satellite in some
circumstances and can be used in conjunction sitllge to provide a hybrid network that takes @utage of

the inherent abilities of both technologies. Gelerm areas well served by terrestrial network$as point-to-
point communications, terrestrial alternatives mhgve a cost advantage, while more dispersed,
point-to-multi-point communications may be betterved by satellite.

In recent years, the growth in both linear and lear TV viewing and the demand for the delivefy o
broadcast and broadband network to subscribersighra single user interface have led to the dewsbop of
Hybrid Terrestrial-Satellite solutions. This trenfl hybridisation combines the satellite’s broadoasélity,
reach and economics with the interactivity of nioredr and terrestrial networks.

Supply and Demand for Fixed Satellite Services
Supply

The supply of satellite capacity is affected bynsigant requirements for financial, technical, ham natural
and other resources. For instance, there are tetimiumber of orbital locations and limited radieguency
spectrum available to commercial communicationslléat operators. As a result, a limited numbesatiellites
can be placed into service over any particular gaatic area. New entrants face the significanttahposts of
procuring a satellite and must maintain the finahand highly specialised technical resources requio
operate a satellite system and market its serviatiger regulatory requirements must also be setidfiefore a
new entrant can provide services to, from or withispecific country. As such the supply of satelli@pacity is
also constrained by a number of regulatory requérgsat national, regional and supra-national evel

Available supply of satellite capacity varies sfgantly by region, frequency and market demandhWwéspect
to video distribution, “neighbourhoods” develop whenany thousands or even millions of consumellisate
dishes or cable head-ends are pointed at a spewtfital location or locations. Due to the commaici
attractiveness of those neighbourhoods developed time as a result of significant investments atelite
operators, video distribution networks prefer touse expansion of satellite capacity from satallitcated at
the orbital location(s), or neighbourhoods, to whtiteir or their customers’ satellite dishes areaaly pointed.

Demand

Demand for satellite services is primarily driven édconomic growth, both generally and within a jcatar
geographic area, growth in product or service ntarkgrowth in demand for bandwidth-intensive amtlians,
technical advancements and improved regulatorysacte new and existing markets. In particular, [dseier
believes the following factors will drive FSS gréwih the next decade:

Proliferation of Video content and format

FSS operators are experiencing strong demand tbryideo distribution and contribution, evidencedthe
continued growth in the number of channels beirmgticast. Demand is also driven by the increasihgne of
high-quality display formats, including a signifidanumber of HDTV channels, which require two oreth
times more bandwidth than standard definition cleifor a given compression format. Demand for UAR)
is expected to develop, driven by the availabitifyUHD screens in the market and the heightenedsfdxy
DTH operators on premium quality which will enafflether differentiation among operators. In additian
increasing number of movies and digital cinemarene shot in UHD. Commercial UHD broadcasts staited
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2015 and are expected to become widespread by 2af20. Mobile and fixed telecommunication companie
are also turning to satellite as they face sigaiftcconsumer demand for video content, both asddroa to
complete triple-play bundles as well as embeddategllites in hybrid solutions.

Proliferation of Data-centric applications

The market for data-centric applications is expktteshow strong growth, with global industry reveracross
the Mobility, Enterprise and Government market igcets projected to nearly double between 2015 &@##2
with CAGR in each region of 6 per cent or more diher same period (source: Northern Sky Research).

Mobility. Applications such as wireless phone services,timegicommunications and aeronautical services are
fuelling demand for satellite bandwidth. Signifitaerchnology advancements are enabling the provisio
broadband connectivity to a wide range of commeéngéssenger aircraft and maritime vessels. The same
technologies are also able to furnish these linokm@anned and unmanned aeronautical platforms arad slaips
used by government and/or defence users. Rapidhyioveellular services in developing regions ipented to
transition demand for voice-only services to demfandiata and video services over time, resultmipcreased
network bandwidth requirements. Given the low petiein of fixed-line telephone services in devehgpi
markets and the introduction of smart phones, tatdad netbooks, internet access in these markaysbe
primarily served by satellite connectivity. Globdbbility revenues are projected to grow signifidgntvith a

20 per cent CAGR 2015-2024.

Enterprise networks and applicationSorporate VSAT networks are being widely impleteenin developing
regions and markets as economic growth and foreggie expands. Banking is among the sectors driiisy
growth, along with multinational corporations exgang their presence in the region.

The use of satellite networks has expanded in tg@ars to support oil and gas extraction and athsource
sectors such as mining. In more developed regiools as North America, oil and gas companies inarghs
rely on satellite since deposits are often locédedrom terrestrial infrastructure and the useeshote real-time
operations monitoring continues to increase. Denfandatellite capacity has been driven both byaginoin
this sector as well as an increase in the userahlialth-intensive applications by such operations.

Ka- and Ku-band satellite services support broadbaternet access for consumers and small businesbe
capabilities of today's high-throughput satelli@fow internet satellite providers (ISPs) to offégh-speed
internet access comparable to terrestrial altaresiti

A well-developed market vertical, Enterprise issfeen to deliver a 3 per cent revenue CAGR 2018-202

Government. Government digital inclusion projects to bring htband services to rural and remote
communities and those with limited terrestrial &sfiructure are an important and growing applicatieing led
by civilian agencies in both developed and develgpiations. These projects coincide with strongegoment
demand from national broadband programmes for narahectivity and universal mobile coverage oblays.

Demand for satellite capacity from defence andtamifiagencies around the world continues to grdve @.S.
government remains the single largest user of cawiaiesatellite communications capacity and mosthi$
use relates to U.S. Department of Defense opemation

The sustained growth in the Government verticaliggesting revenue CAGR of 7 per cent in the pe2{iith-
2024.
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Customers and Services
Overview

SES provides its services to customers worldwide|uding broadcasters, telecommunications companies
content and internet service providers, mobile fixetl network operators, network integrators antpomate

and government customers. As of 30 September 20485toup served over 700 broadcasters, enterprises,
institutions and governments in over 130 countries.

The Group’s services fall into two categories:

Infrastructure This category includes the provision of sateltittnsponder capacity and directly attributable
services, which accounted for 74.3 per cent an@ p2r cent of the Group’s revenue for the year énde
31 December 2015 and the six month period endeli3® 2016, respectively.

Services This category principally includes (i) the praeis of products through MX1, which provides a
complete range of linear and non-linear end-to1@edia solutions, (i) the Group’s HD+ platform,i)(iietail
broadband two-way internet access provided thr@ig8 Techcom (since 2015, following the merger o SE
Broadband Services with SES Techcom), (iv) engingeservices provided through SES Techcom andf8 S
Government Solutions (partially non-SES fleet mdiatevenue).

SES focuses on four market verticals:

Customer Segment Key Services Sold

Video DTH broadcasting including HDTV (7,463 chalsye
Video contribution and distribution/teleport seesc
Managed digital media services
Consumer TV platforms, e.g. HD+
Enterprise Wide-beam and GEO/MEO HTS capacity alaport services
Network/platform services (e.g. mobile backhaul)

Managed networks for consumer/SME applications. (§. AT networks,
broadband internet access)

Telcos and Mobile Network OperatioRNO)

Mobility Trans-oceanic and landmass wide-beam and GEO/MES e#pacity and
teleport services

Mobility network/platform services (e.g. aeronaaticonnectivity, maritime
connectivity)

Government Wide-beam and GEO/MEO HTS capacity and secure ddlepervices
communications link

C/Ku/Ka and Military frequency capacity

Fully managed end-to-end service to the end custamguding hosted
payloads
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Customers
Video vertical — Broadcasters

SES'’s satellites are the world’s leading audioviglistribution platform and enabled broadcastersldbver
7,463 television channels (including 2,442 HDTV mels and 26 UHD TV channels) as of 30 June 2016.
Approximately 317 million television households Vawide were reached at the end of December 2015. SE
provides DTH broadcasting, feeds for cable netwarkd digital terrestrial television networks, adlas full-
time video contribution services, HD+ and occasiase services, as described in more detail below.

For the year ending 31 December 2015 revenue dbtoap's Video vertical was €1,345.9 million, acrgase
of 7.5 per cent from the previous year (on a riggbbasis) and for the nine month ending 30 Septe®16
represented 69 per cent of the total revenue of. $Scorresponding analysis by vertical is avadafur
periods before 2015. Video vertical revenue inctide

e« DTH broadcasting, including HDTV and Ultra HD T\DTH service providers use the Group's
satellites as a distribution platform for their\dees, delivering television programming, audio and
information channels directly to customers’ homes.

* Video distribution and contributio Major broadcasters, cable networks and DTH serproviders
use the Group’s satellites for the full-time traission of television programming. Additionally, SES
provides certain broadcasters and DTH service gensi bundled, value-added services that include
satellite capacity, digital encoding of video chelsnand uplinking and downlinking services to and
from the Group’s satellites and teleport facilities

« HD+. HD+ is a platform for the reception of the encegbtand unencrypted free to air channels in HD
in Germany which SES broadcasts. The line up iredl encrypted free to air channels in HD and 30
non-encrypted free to air channels in HD. HD+ mad&velopment continued to progress with over
1.98 million subscribers at the end of June 2016.

e Occasional use service®ccasional use services comprise the sale ofitgpan a short-term basis,
to broadcasters, programmers and special evetits tiglders for the timely broadcast of video news,
sports and live event coverage on a short-termsbasabling broadcasters to conduct on-the-scene
transmissions using small, portable antennas.

Mobility and Enterprise verticals - Commercial Emigses

The Group’s global satellite fleet and ground isfracture, combined with its partner teleports ariaus
countries, ensure that SES customers enjoy hightgjeannectivity around the world. SES provides AIS
networks, broadband internet access, mobile bat¢klaamad many more services for corporate and
telecommunications customers worldwide. SES serksllence across four main pillars: Video, Entesgri
Mobility and Government.

Enterprise customers are located across the glubdanave a diverse range of goals. SES satellitesdetiver
e-learning solutions to rural communities in Nigeaihd provide e-banking services in Cameroon. drivtiddle
East, connectivity provided by SES satellites eesuseamless operations on remote oil and gas sites.
Broadband access enriches underserved communmnitieglia, while satellites connect schools in Mexito
addition, the European market remains strong, argtowing as Astra Connect services make it passin
remote and isolated rural homes to enjoy the sampectivity as urban communities. In 2015, the nereeof

the Group's Enterprise vertical was €307.6 milliandecrease of 5.1 per cent from the previous {@ara
reported basis) and for the nine months endingefietnber 2016 represented 12 per cent of therttahue

of SES. In the Enterprise vertical, 75 per centhef revenue comes from data services for majoragjlabd
regional telecommunications companies and MNOs.

89



In 2014, SES affirmed its commitment to the Mokiliharket by defining it as one of the four coreibass
areas. In 2015, SES delivered sound results, ast&h&ology seeks to differentiate itself in therke& The
SES fleet in GEO, combined with O3b’s satellitedMBO, offers a globally scalable and flexible seeviSES
tailors its solutions according to customer demémdensure the customer needs. This service hagyfirm
established SES's reputation in the Mobility marketboth aeronautical and maritime companies.tkReryear
ending 31 December 2015, SES's revenue from thallobertical was €52.9 million, an increase of.4per
cent from 2014 (on a reported basis) and for the months ending 30 September 2016 represented ept

of the total revenue of SES. SES has affirmedaitsraitment to Mobility by serving four largest gldlna-flight
service providers (Global Eagle, Gogo, PanasordcTdrales).

Government vertical

SES serves the diverse needs of governments adid pabtor organisations around the globe includimg
governments of the United States, Germany, theedritingdom, the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and the
Netherlands, offering secure and reliable commuioica links. The largest government customer isUtf@.
government. The Group delivers vital communicatilimiss for civil and military agencies, first regpters and
educational or medical purposes worldwide. For ytbar ending 31 December 2015 revenue of the Group's
Government vertical was €255.6 million, an increas48.8 per cent from the previous year (on airieol
basis) and for the nine months ending 30 Septe@iks represented 12 per cent of the total revehB&S.

Services Agreements

The Group provides its satellite transponder capanid related services under a variety of conttechs.
Satellite capacity contracts vary in length andteonhdepending on the type of customer. The Grocqrdracts
are up for renewal at various times in the futlitee Group’s contracts generally do not have bréakses and
therefore must be honoured in full.

BroadcastersContracts with broadcasters are generally longytevith typical durations of ten years (and up to
15 years in certain cases) for customers in Nonterca and Europe, and between five and ten years f
customers in developing markets. Such contractsoearetimes be for the whole of a satellite’s openat life
and can be for single or multiple transponders.

Commercial enterprisesContracts with commercial enterprises are gelyefalee to five years in length, and
the capacity contracted for will generally coverrsnthan one geographic region.

Government Contracts with government customers are generadlylonger than one year in length, as
government customers generally cannot pre-emptrauah budget allocation. The Group has multi-year
framework agreements with many of its governmestauers pursuant to which the customer agreeghbat
contract will be renewed as long as the agencyivesdahe necessary funds. SES has recently signegdar
agreements with U.S. government customers, siggadimove to consider longer-term contracts, tditaie
operational requirements and secure capacity oe fagourable terms.

Under the Group’s standard capacity allotment ages, customers must obtain operating licences fiteen
relevant regulatory authorities, comply with rediglas governing the content of audiovisual prograam
obtain the rights to operate their earth statiods@mply with the Group’s technical specificatiombe Group

may also require a customer to provide a banklrajuarantee as security for payment with regaalotted

capacity and in respect of the customer’s contedctbligations.

Principal Markets

The Group’s principal markets described below &poad to the Group’s four geographic customer-facin
commercial groups (Market/Business Verticals) desdr in ‘Description of the Issuer and Corporate
Governance—Thé&xecutive Committéebelow. These markets are served by the Groupdsvigg fleet of
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satellites, many of which cover more than one maf@r information on which markets are coverecagh of
the Group’s satellites, se8dtellite Fleetbelow.

Europe

SES, under the ASTRA brand, is a leading provideDDH transmission capacity in Europe. The Group’s
European market includes customers and operattormsighout Western, Central and Eastern Europe. Its
customers include pay-TV groups (e.g. Sky, Candirtgadcasters (e.g. BBC, RTL, ARD/ZDF), resellerg (
Globecast) and data network service providers (@idpus Defence & Space). SES offers a broad aofay
products and services in this market, includinguision broadcasting in DTH transmission and cabelsvork
redistribution.

The Group'’s fleet carries 2,556 television chanirelgSurope, reaching approximately 156 million henas of
31 December 2015.

All major cable networks in Europe retransmit peogming broadcast via SES satellites, and approgignét
million cable homes currently receive ASTRA-deliegrtelevision and radio channels. Approximately 64
million homes receive ASTRA transmissions direefly satellite. The HDTV market continues to grovd aas

of 30 June 2016, the number of HD channels delivereASTRA platforms had increased to 728.

In respect of complementary satellite service #ab; particularly in Europe, SES undertakes derta
professional services to support customers’ ussatdllite capacity. These satellite service congmmiclude

(i) MX1, which provides a complete range of lineand non-linear end-to-end media solutions, (i) SES
Techcom, offering a broad array of products andises addressing various areas of broadband irterne
connectivity by satellite as well as satellite ametwork systems engineering across Europe andHDi},
providing a platform that offers viewers in Germamytechnical access to TV channels broadcastindOn
quality.

The Americas

This market includes customers in North Americaluding the U.S. government, and in Latin Americathis
market, the Group is a leading provider of sateliiansponder capacity and associated servicesd lwasthe
number of orbital slots and transponders). SESigesvthese services to broadcasters, cable netws8&T
applications and DTH platform providers and carriearly 2,827 TV channels, out of which more thégbira
are broadcast in HD quality, as of 30 June 2016ddition, SES serves private network providerteriret
service providersl§Ps), mobile broadband providers, government ageneithscational institutions, telephone
companies and other business enterprises.

North America

The Group’s fleet reaches 84 million householdsNiorth America. The Group’s two largest U.S. cable
neighbourhoods, at the 101°W/103°W/105°W and 129344W/135°W orbital locations, reach more than 53
million cable households and provide feeds fortertdistribution to IPTV and DTH households. Thisludes
the DISH Network DTH via Ciel-2, but does not indduany households that may also be reached bgtiéate
re-transmission. Approximately three-quarters af thilised transponders serving the U.S. are daaticto
video content providers (cable television, broatcsvices and DTH). Due to the importance of these
neighbourhoods, virtually every cable head-enchim W.S. has antenna reception facilities dedictuetiese
prime orbital slots, which further increases thiigaof the slots and of the available transpondgacity. The
two neighbourhoods reach substantially all pawtsien households in the United States. In addjt®BS has
the most significant U.S. radio neighbourhood, dncation neighbourhood and one of the strongett-Esised
broadcast neighbourhoods. In addition, SES hol@® @er cent interest in Ciel Satellite Limited Rarship
(Ciel). Ciel operates the Ciel-2 BSS satellite whichvimlly contracted by DISH Network and supports DTH
satellite services in North America.
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U.S. government business is handled by a whollyeasubsidiary of SES. It provides raw satelliteawity to
the U.S. government and third-party resellers,alnd provides turn-key solutions to the U.S. gorent.

Revenue generated by SES Government Services eepeds9 per cent of the Group’s revenue in theé Hiadf
of 2016.

Latin America

The Group’s markets in Latin America comprise Mexi€entral America, South America and the Caribbean
The Group’s fleet currently reaches approximatélyrllion television households in this market.

As of 1 April 2014 SES also wholly owns the Mexictellite operator QuetzSat S. de R.L. de @QudtzSax
The QuetzSat-1 satellite, launched in Septembet,28vholly contracted by a subsidiary of EchoStar

Asia Pacific, India and the Middle East

This market includes key markets such as India,Pthiéippines, Thailand, South Korea, Indonesia,thaen,
Australia, the Pacific Islands, Saudi Arabia, Kuwdie UAE and Lebanon. The Group’s fleet currenglyches
over 44 million television households in the AsiacHic region. Customers served (directly and iectiry)
include, among others, DishTV, one of the large$HDoperators in Asia, Bharti Airtel, one of the dizg
telecommunications companies in the world, Hughesmirks, a leader in the provision of VSAT servjces
Tata Communications, one of the largest telecomaoations companies in India and PLDT, the leading
telecommunications provider in the Philippines. &ty provided to DishTV and Airtel is contractdadugh
Antrix Corporation Limited, an Indian governmentdheompany based in India. SES provides capacithim
region for provision of services to pay and fre&toDTH service operators and VSAT services tokivam e-
government and e-education institutions as wetlilband gas operations. SES is the leader in Aaicfié both

in terms of the number of channels and the numbesubscribers reached by DTH operators using SES'’s
capacity across the region. In the Middle EastGhmup predominantly provides data services.

Africa

This market comprises all 54 countries in Africlene SES provides transponders and value-addedesefor
DTH, video contribution and distribution, VSAT neiiks, mobile networks, internet trunking and braatth
and corporate and government networks.

The Group’s fleet currently reaches eight milliefevision households in this market, excluding YiabL

The Group’s satellite service provisioning compariiave been very successful in Africa in recentyedES’s
service entity, which is branded under the name IM>Xomplements the satellite bandwidth activité¢SES
with necessary and highly professional ground sermieeds of the customer and thus allows the cesttin
concentrate on running a consumer-oriented business

Product Development and Management
Overview

In order to ensure an effective client-solutionsdahapproach, SES is building differentiated cdipakiin four
market verticals where satellites have a predontinsage. Each vertical is addressed by a functignualp that
develops and deploys commercial solutions and tgavirket” strategies in their respective verticals.
Furthermore, these groups will ensure that develgmdutions are fully leveraged across SES’s prizdéc
services portfolio. The groups act in close coltation with the various sales, business developnaeiait
engineering teams of SES.
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SES has three service provisioning companies whrehorganised and structured as individual entéied
which play a key role in the execution of the markartical strategies:

 MXL1 Offering specialised DVB ground and OTT servisash as professional content management,
play-out, encryption, encoding, multiplexing andedide uplinks to various satellites for and orhbaH
of television broadcasters. These services areigedwvprincipally in Europe, Africa and Asia. The
MXZ1 suite of services includes Smartcast, an inseodeveloped software platform for decentralised
playout offered currently in 60 locations around ttorld.

e SES TechconOffering a broad array of products and serviagelr@ssing various areas of satellite and
network systems engineering and infrastructureupetThese services are provided globally. SES
Techcom also offers broadband internet connectibitysatellite via the SES Broadband solution.
These services are provided principally in Eurdiféca and the Middle East.

« HD+. Providing a broadcast platform from satellitethat Astra 19.2°E position, independent from TV
operators, offering viewers access to HD channelsavdedicated receiver or an HD+ conditional-
access module and Smart Card. HD+ is active in Geym

Satellite Fleet
Network and Technology
Network

The Group’s global network is comprised of 53 disl as well as ground facilities, including tedeis and
leased fibre, which support the Group’s commersiivices and the operation and control of its lszl
Features of the Group’s network include:

e prime orbital locations, reflecting a valuable ait of coordinated fixed satellite spectrum right

e 99.9999911 per cent space service availability ahmercialisable transponders on the SES fleet
throughout 2015;

« flexibility, subject to contractual restrictions Eome cases, to relocate satellites to other brbita
locations, such as when there are changes in depateins or requirements of new customers;

» design features and steerable beams on many ofGtbhap’'s satellites, enabling the Group to
reconfigure capacity to provide different areasmferage and to operate in different frequency sand
and

* multiple satellites serving each region, allowingdilternatives if a satellite anomaly should occur
Satellite Systems

All of the Group’s satellites are geo-synchronoatellites and are located approximately 22,300 snite
35,700 kilometres, above the equator. Geo-synclusosatellites can receive radio frequency commtioita
from an origination point, and distribute thosensilg to a single or multiple receivers within tlow@rage areas
of the satellites’ transmission beams.

Geo-synchronous satellites send these signals udiffagent parts of the radio frequency spectrurhe T
spectrum available for use at each orbital locatimtudes the frequency bands listed below in whiobst
commercial satellite services are offered today:

e C-band - low power, broad beams that require uselafively large reception antennae; the spectrum
least susceptible to weather-related transmissigrairments.
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e Ku-band - high power, narrow to medium size beamadlifating use of smaller antennae which are
favoured by businesses and private end customptinal for DTH applications; generally highly
reliable and seldom affected by weather-relatecaimpents.

« Ka-band — very high power, very narrow beams faatitig use of very small antennae; considered to
be less reliable due to substantial weather-relagesmission impairments. The Ka-band is optimised
for applications such as broadband services.

» Ka-band (Gov) — specific part of the Ka-band resdrfor governmental applications.

e X-band — medium power with medium size beams useligively for governmental applications like
communications on the move.

e L-Band - low power with broad beams used for glataligation satellite systems.

All of the Group’s station-kept satellites are desid to provide capacity using the C-band and/eb&mud. An
increasing number of satellites also carry Ka-baaydoads.

HTS are satellites configured to optimise the amd frequencies, typically Ku-band or Ka-band,fuemuency
re-use. This is achieved by the re-use of parth@favailable frequencies in segregated spot beamadling
higher data rates to be offered at a lower cosbjghan traditionally configured satellites. Hage typically
used to offer broadband internet connectivity whereestrial connectivity is limited or absent gltther. SES
has taken a prudent approach to serving this maakleing Ka-band payloads on replacement satefites
limited incremental investment. These payloadsctviaire initially on ASTRA 2E, ASTRA 2F, ASTRA 2Gdn
ASTRA 5B, offer connectivity at speeds of up to Bb/s into the markets they cover. Additional HTS
opportunities continue to be evaluated and mayberporated in the payload of future satellites. InJuly
2014, SES announced the procurement of SES-12pbadhsatellite for the Asia-Pacific region, whichllw
benefit from the dual innovations of an HTS paylead all-electric propulsion.

A geo-synchronous satellite is identified as gdastary (or station-kept) when it is operated inaasigned
segment of the geo-stationary arc, which is desaghlly a specific range of latitudes and longitudeso-
stationary satellites revolve around the eartmaregular velocity that corresponds to that ofgheth’s rotation
and thus appear to stay above a fixed point oedinth’s surface at all times.

Geo-synchronous satellites that are only statigat-ke longitude are said to be in inclined orbiheTdaily
north-south motion of a satellite in inclined orekceeds the specified range of latitudes of isggagd station-
keeping box, and the satellite appears to osciiiely, moving above and below the equator every. d\n
operator will typically operate a satellite in im&d orbit toward the end of its service life bezagignificant
amounts of propellant will be saved by not coninglithe north-south position of the satellite, #fere
substantially extending the service life of theeBi¢. The kinds of services and customers thataecess an
inclined orbit satellite have traditionally beemiied due to the movement of the satellite relatvea fixed
ground antenna. However, recent innovations nowwalthe use of inclined orbit capacity for certain
applications. As a result, if these applicatioressarccessfully introduced, the Group anticipatas demand for
inclined orbit capacity may increase over the riewtyears. As of the date of this Prospectus, 1@®Group’s
satellites were operating in an inclined orbit, hwihost continuing to earn revenue beyond SES'sinalig
estimated life for each of these satellites.

In-Orbit Satellites

The Group’s operations and engineering staff areolied from the design stage through to the
decommissioning of each satellite procured. Theu@semployees work at the manufacturers’ and laars
sites to monitor progress, which enables the Gtoupaintain close technical collaboration withdtmtractors
during the process of designing, manufacturing landching a satellite. Extensive monitoring of bastation
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operations and constant satellite control and nétwperations support ensure consistent operatoumedity, as
well as timely corrections when problems ariseadtdition, the Group has established contingencygspfar
technical problems that may occur during the lifietiof a satellite.

These features also contribute to the resiliendb®iGroup’s network, which enables the Group wuen the
continuity of service that is important for its tarmers and to retain flexibility in the event tlitateeds to move
customers to alternative capacity. The design B of some of the Group’s satellites enablegoitmeet
customer demand and respond to changing markettioorsd

As of 30 June 2016, the Group’s fleet of 53 sdedlhad 1,550 36-MHz equivalent transponders avail@r
transmitting in the C-, Ku- and Ka-band. The averagstem transponder utilisation for the Groupislites,
which represents the percentage of the Group’s totailable transponder capacity that is in usehat is
reserved at a given time (including guaranteedrvatiens for service), was 72.8 per cent and 6@r7cent as

of 31 December 2015 and 30 June 2016, respectidlg. main factors resulting in the trends in system
utilisation over this period were primarily relatéa growth in demand for digital, especially HDletgsion
services, as well as from the supply added by neadgched satellites.

End of Design Life

End of design life is the point beyond which sus@gisoperation of the satellite is no longer codeby the
manufacturers’ qualification programmes and relighpredictions. Various elements are consideredatellite
design, such as the length of the mission, equipnediability and redundancy schemes, limited téems and
impacts of the space environment, as well as redyower generation levels. Satellites that hasehred the
end of their design lives may be de-orbited andquan a “graveyard orbit” beyond the geostatioratyit, or
in some instances, may remain in operation, asaimynsases those satellites are launched with enadtoard
propellant to enable station-keeping, or inclinebitooperations, beyond their design lives. Satdlitypically
have design lives between 12 and 15 years.

SES'’s 53 operational satellites have depreciabs Ibetween 10 and 19.5 years, with an averagedapte
life currently of 14.7 years. Twenty of the sateli have already reached the end of their deptediéd) for the
other satellites the average remaining deprecldeles 8.3 years.

For details of the end of design life of each $itdelsee the table inFleet’ below.
Network Operations and Current Ground Facilities

The Group has satellite operations centres in BetZGrand Duchy of Luxembourg), Princeton (Newsés,
Gibraltar and Woodbine (Maryland), from which theo@ controls and operates each of its satelliteb a
payloads (with the exception of QuetzSat-1, SE$d the YahLive payload, which are operated by third
parties) and manages the communications servigestich each satellite is used. These centressaititi
network of ground facilities, including earth steit$ that provide tracking, telemetry and contrbr&C)
services for the Group's satellites. This netwddoancludes teleports, leased fibre and networfopmance
monitoring systems. Through these ground facilitiee Group continually monitors signal qualitydeavours
to protect bandwidth from any interference and itadms customer-installed equipment and analysestry
from the Group’s satellites in order to monitoritretatus and track their location. In the evest tne centre is
unavailable or disabled, each other centre hasliiliy to provide instantaneous restoration ofve®s on
behalf of the other.

Capacity Sparing and Backup and General Satellitk Rlanagement

As part of the Group’s satellite risk managemérg, Group continually evaluates and designs plansitigate
the risks posed to its fleet. The Group attemptait@mate the risk of in-orbit failure by carefubnwdor selection,
stringent satellite design and test requirements ative procurement oversight and high-qualityoiibit
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operations. The impacts of such failures on custaeevice and related revenue are mitigated bynaorbit
backup strategy where customers on an impairedligatan be transferred to another satellite ia fleet. The
Group maintains some form of backup capacity farthesatellite designated as being in primary opegati
service, which may include:

» designated reserve transponders on the satellitethmr on-board backup systems or designed-in
redundancies;

e co-location of satellites at the same orbital posit
e an in-orbit spare satellite; or
* interim restoration capacity on other satellites.
SES also has satellite control backup capabilitisiig European and U.S.-based satellite operataamtres.
For information on the insurance policies the Grobfains for its fleet, see sectiomSurancé below.
Fleet
Geostationary satellite fleet

The Group’s global fleet of 53 geostationary sieslcould enable the Group to offer coverage tp&Sent of
the world’s population, delivering reliable and &ex connectivity. This vast coverage enables brastdes to
deliver thousands of hours of television conterdrgvday, companies to provide broadband netwotkslio
remote locations and governments and military degdions to establish secure communications netsvork

The table below summarises the orbital locatioagdiency, launch date, manufacturer, end of de#igramhd
coverage of each of the Group’s existing satellites

Orbital End of Current
No. Satellite Location Frequency Launch Date  Manufacturer  Design Life Coverage
1 AMC-1 129°W C- and Ku- 08-Sep-96 Lockheed ** North America
band Martin
2 AMC-2 85°W C- and Ku- 30-Jan-97 Lockheed ** North America
band Martin
3 AMC-3 67°W Ku-band 04-Sep-97 Lockheed ki Mexico,
Martin Caribbean,
Central America
4 AMC-4 67°W Ku-band 13-Nov-99 Lockheed ** Latin America
Martin
5 AMC-6 72°W Ku-band 21-Oct-00 Lockheed ** North America
Martin
6 AMC-7 135°W C-band 14-Sep-00 Lockheed *x North America
Martin
7 AMC-8 139°W C-band 19-Dec-00  Lockheed > North America
Martin
8 AMC-9 83°wW C- and Ku- 07-Jun-03 Alcatel Jul-18 North America
band
9 AMC-10 135°W C-band 05-Feb-04 Lockheed Mar-19 North America
Martin
10 AMC-11 131°W C-band 19-May-04  Lockheed Jun-19 North America
Martin
11 AMC-15 105°W Ka- and Ku- 14-Oct-04 Lockheed Nov-19 North America
band Martin
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Orbital End of Current
No. Satellite Location Frequency Launch Date  Manufacturer  Design Life Coverage
12 AMC-16 85°W Ka- and Ku- 17-Dec-04 Lockheed Jan-20 North America
band Martin
13 AMC-18 105°W C-band 08-Dec-06 Lockheed Jan-22 North America
Martin
14 AMC-21 125°W Ku-band 14-Aug-08 Thales Alenia  Sep-23 North America
Space
15 ASTRA 1D 47.5°W Ku-band 01-Nov-94 Boeing * Americas
Satellite
Systems
16 ASTRA 1F 44 5°E Ku-band 09-Apr-96 Hughes e Boeo
17 ASTRA 1G 63°E Ku-band 02-Dec-97  Boeing * Europe
Satellite
Systems
18 ASTRA 1H 55°E Ka- and Ku- 18-Jun-99 Boeing * Europe
band Satellite
Systems
19 ASTRA 1KR 19.2°E Ku-band 20-Apr-06 Lockheed Jun-21 Europe
Martin
20 ASTRA 1L 19.2°E Ka- and Ku- 04-May-07 Lockheed Jun-22 Europe
band Martin
21 ASTRA 1M 19.2°E Ku-band 05-Nov-08  Airbus Dec-23 Europe
Defence &
Space
22 ASTRA 1IN 19.2°E Ku-band 06-Aug-11 Airbus Sep-26 Europe
Defence &
Space
23 ASTRA 2A 113.5°E Ku-band 30-Aug-98  Boeing * Asia
Satellite
Systems
24 ASTRA 2B 39°E Ku-band 14-Sep-00  Airbus *x Europe
Defence &
Space
25 ASTRA 2C 60°E Ku-band 16-Jun-01 Boeing * Middle East
Satellite
Systems
26 ASTRA 2D 57°E Ku-band 19-Dec-00  Boeing * Europe
Satellite
Systems
27 ASTRA 2E 28.2°E/28.5°E Ka- and Ku- 29-Sep-13 Airbus Nov-28 Middle East,
band Defence & Europe
Space
28 ASTRA 2F 28.2°E/28.5°E Ka-and Ku-  28-Sep-12 Airbus Nov-27 Africa, Europe
band Defence &
Space
29 ASTRA 3A 87°wW Ku-band 29-Mar-02 Boeing * North America
Satellite
Systems
30  ASTRA3B 23.5°E Ka-and Ku-  21-May-10  Airbus May-25' Africa, Middle
band Defence & East, Europe,
Space
31 ASTRA 4A 5°E Ka- and Ku- 18-Nov-07 Lockheed Dec-22 Africa, Europe
(formerly band Martin
known as
Sirius 4)
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Orbital End of Current
No. Satellite Location Frequency Launch Date  Manufacturer  Design Life Coverage
32 ASTRA 5B 31.5°E L-, Ku- and 22-Mar-2014  Airbus May-29 Europe, Russia
Ka-band Defence &
Space
33 Ciel-2 129°W Ku-band 10-Dec-08 Thales Alenia  Jan-24 North America
Space
34 NSS-5 50.5°E C- and Ku- 23-Sep-97 Lockheed *x Africa, Europe,
(formerly band Martin Indian Ocean,
known as Asia
NSS-803)
35 NSS-6 95°E Ka- and Ku- 17-Dec-02 Lockheed *x Africa, Europe,
band Martin Russia, South
Asia, Asia
Pacific, Indian
Ocean, Pacific
Ocean
36 NSS-7 20°W C- and Ku- 16-Apr-02 Lockheed ** North America,
band Martin Latin America,
Africa, Europe,
Atlantic Ocean
37 NSS-9 177°W C-band 12-Feb-09  Orbital Mar-24 Russia, Asia
Sciences Pacific, Pacific
Corporation Ocean
38 NSS-10 (also  37.5°W C-band 03-Feb-05 Alcatel Mar320 North America,
known as Latin America,
AMC-12) Africa, Europe,
Atlantic Ocean
39 NSS-11 108.2°E Ku-band 02-Oct-00 Lockheed ** South Asia, Asia
Martin Pacific, Pacific
Ocean, Indian
Ocean
40 NSS-12 57°E C- and Ku- 29-Oct-09 Space Systems Dec-24 Africa, Europe,
band Loral Russia, South
Asia, Asia
Pacific, Indian
Ocean
41 NSS-806 47 .5°W C- and Ku- 28-Feb-98 Lockheed e North America,
band Martin Latin America,
Europe
42 QuetzSat 1 77°W Ku-band 29-Sep-11  Space Systems Oct-26 Mexico, North
Loral America, Central
America
43 SES-1 101°W C- and Ku- 24-Apr-10 Orbital May-25 North America
band FSS and Sciences
Ka-band BSS Corporation
44 SES-2 87°W C- and Ku- 20-Sep-11 Orbital Oct-26' North America
band FSS and Sciences
Ka-band BSS Corporation
45 SES-3 103°W C- and Ku- 15-Jul-11 Orbital Aug-26° North America
band FSS and Sciences
Ka-band BSS Corporation
46 SES-4 22°W C- and Ku- 14-Feb-12 Space Systems Mar-27 North America,
band Loral Latin America,
Africa, Europe,
Atlantic Ocean,
Middle East
47 SES-5 5°E L-, C-, Ka- 10-Jul-12 Space Systems Jul-27 Africa, Europe,
and Ku-band Loral Atlantic Ocean
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Orbital End of Current
No. Satellite Location Frequency Launch Date  Manufacturer  Design Life Coverage
48 SES-6 40.5°W C- and Ku- 03-Jun-13 Airbus Jul-28 North America,
band Defence & Latin America,
Space Europe, Atlantic
Ocean
49 SES-7* 108.2°E Ku-band 16-May-09 Boeing Jun-24 South Asia, Asia
Satellite Pacific
Systems
50 SES-8 95°E Ku-band FSS 3-Dec-13 Orbital Jan-29 South Asia, Asia
and Ka-band Sciences Pacific
BSS Corporation
51 YahSat 1A* 52.5°E Ku-band 22-Apr-11 Thales Alenia May-26 Middle East,
Space Africa, Europe,
Southwest Asia
52 ASTRA 2G 28.2°E Ka- and Ku- 28-Dec-14 Airbus Dec-29 Africa, Europe
band Defence &
Space
53 SES-9 108.2 °E Ku-band 04-Mar-16  Boeing Apr-31 Asia Pacific
Satellite
Systems

(1) For ASTRA 3B, the end of fuel life is currentigtimated to be Sep-2024
(2) For Ciel-2, the end of fuel life is currentlgtenated to be Oct-2023

(3) For NSS-10, the end of fuel life is currenttimated to be Feb-2020

(4) For SES-2, the end of fuel life is currentlyieated to be Jul-2026

(5) For SES-3, the end of fuel life is currentlyiested to be Aug-2024

*

*k

Only the Ku-band payload is owned by the Group.
These satellites have reached the end of thesgigh lives and have been fully depreciated.

The table below sets out the seven satellitesatesscheduled for launch between the date of ttusp@ctus
and the end of 2020. The seven new satellitesimgtiease available capacity by 127 net (36 MHz \ejant)
transponders. In addition, three of these satsl(iBE=S-12, SES-14 and SES-15) will carry a tot&éléofGHz of
HTS capacity in aggregate.

Orbital End of Current
No. Satellite Location Frequency Launch Date  Manufacturer  Design Life Coverage
1 SES-16 67°W Ka- and Ku- Q1 2017 Airbus 2031 Latin America
band Defence &
Space
2 SESs-11 105°W C- and Ku- H1 2017 Airbus 2031 North America,
band Defence &
Space
3 SES-13 95°E Ka- and Ku- Q4, 2017 Airbus 2033 Asia-Pacific
band Defence &
Space
4 SES-14 47.5°W C- and Ku- Q4, 2017 Airbus 2033 Latin America
band Defence &
Space
5 SES-18 129°w Ku- and Ka- Q2, 2017 Boeing 2033 North America
band Satellite
Systems
6 SES- 21.5°E X-band and H1, 2017 Orbital ATK 2033 Europe/MENA
16/GovSat-1 military Ka-
band
7 SES-17 To be Ka-band H2, 2020 Thales Alenia 2035 Americas
confirmed Space France
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(6) As of the date of this Prospectus the launcjusece between SES-10 and SES-11 has still tonakzied

(7) As of the date of this Prospectus the launcjusece between SES-10 and SES-11 has still tonakzied

(8) SES-12, SES-14 and SES-15 are to be positiose) electric orbit raising, with entry into ses@itypically four to six months after
launch

(9) Procured by LuxGovSat

O3b fleet

The table below summarises the frequency, launth, daanufacturer, end of design life and currenecage
of each of the 12 MEO satellites of O3b.

End of Design Current

No. Satellite Frequency Launch Date Manufacturer Life Coverage

1 O3b Sat 1-4 Ka-band 25.06.2013 Thales 2025 Equatorial +-
45°

2 O3b Sat 5-8 Ka-band 10.07.2014 Thales 2026 Equatorial +-
45°

3 O3b Sat 9-12 Ka-band 18.12.2014 Thales 2026 Equatorial +-
45°

The table below sets out the eight satellitesdahatscheduled for launch between the years 2012Git@i

End of Design Current
No. Satellite Frequency Launch Date Manufacturer Life Coverage
1 O3b Sat 13-16 Ka-band H1, 2018 Thales 2030 Equatorial +-
45°
2 O3b Sat 17-20 Ka-band H2, 2019 Thales 2031 Equatorial +-
45°

Investment Programme
Current investment programme

SES has implemented a substantial multi-year invest programme to expand and renew its existirey té
satellites and its network of teleports.

Six satellites (SES-10, SES-11, SES-12, SES-14;18E81d SES-16/GovSat-1) are scheduled for laumch i
2017 and are expected to increase available cgdacit27 net (36 MHz equivalent) transponders;dditon,
three of these satellites (SES-12, SES-14 and S 84ll carry a total of 36 GHz of HTS capacityaggregate
with a seventh new satellite (SES-17 — scheduledafinch in 2020) adding incremental Ka HTS capduit
the Americas. This new capacity is also expectednttance opportunities for both customers and usbes
majority of the additional capacity on these neteltites is intended to serve fast-growing econaniieAsia,
Africa, the Middle East and the Americas, whengilt enable new services and improve coverage.

The financing of ongoing satellite procurement pangmes is through a mix of available resources) flasv
from operations, and drawings under existing fugdirrangements where needed.

Investment activities over the previous three years

For 2013 the Board of Directors of the Issuer ditlapprove any satellites procurements.
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SES-10

In February 2014, SES announced that it has sdlg&itbus Defence and Space to build SES-10. The new
satellite will expand SES'’s capabilities in LatimA&rica and the Caribbean through high-power beaittsed

to provide DTH broadcasting, enterprise and broadbzonnectivity services in the entire region. IB%
comprehensive coverage includes Mexico, Central iiaeand South America, as well as the Caribbeae. T
satellite is scheduled to be launched in the fogrtarter of 2016 and will be positioned at the 676khital
position, pursuant to an agreement between the @m@®mmunity (Bolivia, Colombia, Ecuador and Penu)
SES, which provides for use of the Andean Commism@ymon Bolivar 2 satellite network.

SES-12

In July 2014, SES announced the procurement of BE$e deliver both replacement and new capacitye T
new hybrid communications satellite will be built Airbus Defence and Space to serve the fast ggpBifiH,
data, mobility and government markets in Asia. 929s scheduled to be launched in the fourth quafe
2017 and will expand the Group’s capabilities toyisie DTH broadcasting, VSAT, mobility and HTS data
connectivity services in the Asia-Pacific region.

SES-11

In September 2014, SES announced the continuatide strategic partnership with EchoStar Corparatat
the orbital position of 105°W with the procuremefithe new SES-11 satellite. SES-11 will be martufac
by Airbus Defence and Space. The satellite is mdnio be launched in the fourth quarter of 2016 afid
cover North America.

SES-14 and SES-15

In February 2015, SES announced that it had ordbee8ES-14 hybrid satellite to capture growth oppuoties
across the Americas and the North Atlantic regidre new satellite will be built by Airbus Space dbefence,
is scheduled for launch in the last quarter of 284d will operate at 47.5/48°W.

In February 2015, SES announced that it had ordae&ES-15 hybrid satellite to provide growth adtyan
North America. SES-15 is being built by Boeing ahe to be launched in the second quarter of 2Qwilll
open up a new orbital location, 129°W to serve Ndéinerica. The satellite will be equipped with decéric
propulsion system for orbit raising and in-orbit moauvres and will solidify SES’s positioning in the
aeronautical mobility and government markets, mtiogj fresh capacity and coverage over major airlmges
across the continent.

SES-16/GovSat-1

In February 2015, SES announced the procuremeant radw satellite, SES-16/GovSat-1, by LuxGovSat, an
entity jointly incorporated by SES and the Luxemigpgovernment. The satellite is being built by Hagellite
manufacturer Orbital ATK, Inc. and is scheduledlanch in mid 2017. SES-16/GovSat-1 is a multigiois
satellite using dedicated military frequencies @&t and military Ka-band) to provide high-powered &ully
steerable spot beams for multiple government-spegifssions. The satellite will cover Europe, thédtie
East and Africa.

SES-17

In September 2016, SES announced the procurem@&E®f17, to deliver incremental Ka HTS capacitye Th
new communications satellite will be built by Thalklenia Space to serve the fast growing data, libwhind
government markets in the Americas. SES-17 is sdbddo be launched in 2020. The satellite is etqubto
generate an internal rate of return of over 10cpet. (based on an assumed design life of 15 yeat®n a post
tax, pre-financing basis).
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O3b Networks (satellites 13-20)

0O3b has procured an additional eight satellitescemmmodate rapidly-expanding demand, with fouelkats
expected to be launched during the first half cf&0and the remaining four satellites expectedettabinched
in the second half of 2019. These procurementsindgtiease the size of the current fleet from 12Qsatellites
(including three satellites currently flying asarbit back-up).

Capital Expenditure

SES expects to continue to invest in satelliteth o replace existing satellites before their ehtife, and to
make available new capacity at new or existing tathpositions to meet growing demand. Total capital
expenditure for satellites (including O3b) for thear of 2016 is expected to be approximately €7d0om
Projected capital expenditure for 2017 is €770iaml|l €550 million for 2018, €530 million for 2018nd €550
million for 2020, calculated using a EUR/USD exchamate of 1.10. The majority of projected futuagital
expenditure relates to satellite investment andbised on the Group’s current launch and servicedsd in
respect of procured satellites. The Group is targed reduction in normalised capital expenditur@® per
cent between 2014 and 2018 (which is based on ithepG current fleet of satellites and procurecléists), of
which 16 per cent has already been delivered. Toasis targeting a 15 to 20 per cent reductionanmalised
capital expenditure between 2018 and 2022 (basembidain assumptions in relation to efficienciasirfleet
scale, design and scope synergies).

Future Satellites

The Group expects to replace other existing stdsllias necessary, with satellites that satisfyomer
requirements and demonstrate a compelling econ@tianale. The Group periodically conducts evahratito
determine the current and anticipated value ofGhaup’s existing and planned satellites and alsdegthe
Group in redistributing satellite resources as apipate.

Procurement Contracts

The Group regularly enters into satellite constamcicontracts to procure satellites from manufaatr The
typical time required to manufacture and launclatellte is approximately 30-36 months (but canetakore
time depending on the complexity of the satellifd)ese contracts generally provide for paymentetmade at
certain milestones. In addition, the manufactureryrhave to pay damages to the Group in the evert th
construction of the satellite is not completedioret

Launch Agreements

All current SES satellite procurement programmasl(iding SES-16/GovSat-1 and except for SES-1Ae ha
been assigned to a launch provider (ArianespacgpaceX). The Issuer enters into launch agreements f
time to time and has not entered into a multi-yEgeement with a launcher provider.

Satellite Health

The Group'’s fleet is diversified by manufactured aatellite type, which reduces the likelihood adlegspread
technical problems and therefore any substantightiee impact on the Group’s customers and operatibhe
anomalies experienced to date have had little teng- impact on the overall transponder availabilitythe

Group'’s fleet, due to an ability to deploy backitgnsponders or satellites to ensure adequateamaeAll of

the Group’s satellites have been designed to wititsin expected rate of equipment failure with adex
redundancy to meet or exceed their orbital desigrs with a probability of 75 per cent or more. Ta®up has
contingency plans in place that are tailored toumlmer of factors, including the mission, the sgate
importance of the satellite, the location of théebide and the type of anomaly. After anomaliegSShas
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usually been able to restore service on the affesttellite, provide alternative capacity on anotaellite in
its fleet or provide capacity purchased from anogiaellite operator.

Satellites Operating Beyond the End of Their Desiifg

Several of the Group’s satellites are operatinghdythe end of their design lives and have expee@mertain
anomalies. Such anomalies could materially imphet ability of the satellites to perform currentfoture
missions.

Some satellites have already completed the primasgions for which they were designed and have been
redeployed for secondary missions until the enthefr propellant lives. Satellites in secondarysitiss are
used for various reasons, such as developing néitabriocations, safeguarding spectrum rights and/o
providing redundant capacity for satellites in theimary missions.

These satellites’ respective technical capabilitlesnot generally need to be fully utilised in agarg their
secondary missions, which potentially mitigatesdfiects of further technical failures.

Solar Array Circuit Failures

Eleven of the Group’s Lockheed Martin A2100 saiedli(AMC-4, AMC-6, AMC-7, AMC-8, AMC-10, AMC-
11, AMC-15, AMC-16, NSS-6, NSS-7 and NSS-11) hayaeeienced and will continue to experience tecHnica
problems with their solar array circuits. The extefthe problem varies depending on the satdilite may
reduce the operational life of the satellite anel tlumber of transponders that can be used. Whilleeiusolar
array power losses may result in a reduction ofl@hig capacity on the affected satellites, theyraot expected
to result in a catastrophic loss of any of thelk&e

NSS-6, NSS-7, NSS-11 AMC-11 satellites experierfoether solar array degradation in 2016, whichHart
impaired power generation. This degradation hasdexdreduction in commercial capacity in the passome
satellites such as AMC-10 and AMC-16. Such failuwasany of the affected satellites can also imB&S's
ability to maintain pricing levels and to place newgtomers on the satellite.

All of the satellites with solar array issues itk lseing used for their primary missions, withetexception of
AMC-4 and NSS-7, which are being used for secondasgions. As mitigation, SES-8, launched in Decgmb
2013, is acting as a partial replacement for NS@t6 SES-12 fully replacing NSS-6. Risks on NSSwidre
mitigated by the launch of the On Station Delivier2016 of SES-9 as a replacement for the satehitgertain
amount of inter-satellite backup capability existsnitigate losses of capacity on satellites inth8. Western
Arc including AMC-7, AMC-8, AMC-10 and AMC-11. AMC- was relocated in June 2015 from 137°W to
135°W where it is collocated with AMC-10, actingaabackup for this satellite. Additionally, certainstomers
were proactively moved from the U.S. Western Arcsaétellites in the U.S. Centre of the Arc. Padtsrien
AMC-6 were mitigated by transferring the majoritiyits C-band traffic to other satellites. Mitigatiof future
risks on AMC-6 by transferring its Ku-band traffic other satellites is currently under consideratio

Risks on AMC-15 are mitigated by the ongoing camsgion of SES-11, which is due to be launched myea
2017 and will act as a replacement satellite.

NSS-12, built by Space Systems Loral, has alsoreqpeed solar array power losses. However, thiseiss
deemed to be less severe than the Lockheed MagiO@® solar array issue. The Group does not bekeve
specific mitigation plan is needed at this point.

Other Anomalies

The Group’s Lockheed Martin A2100 satellites hale® &xperienced battery cell failures, leading tecduced
battery capacity. However, except for AMC-8 and ANIE, these anomalies have so far not resultedyimah
reduction of payload capacity. Available capaaty AMC-8 and AMC-18 have been reduced during the
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eclipse season due to battery problems. RisksM@-A8 are mitigated by the ongoing constructiosBS-11,
which is due to be launched in early 2017 and adgtlas a replacement satellite. Risks on AMC-8tigated
by the availability of in-orbit satellites AMC-7.

Several of the Group’s other satellites (AMC-4, A&V 1G, ASTRA 1H, ASTRA 1M, ASTRA 2B, NSS-7,
SES-3, QuetzSat-1 and NSS-10) have experienceduganther anomalies including the matters described
below.

Technical failures have resulted in a reductiothoperational life of ASTRA 1H. SES considerd thare is
no risk of a recurrence of these issues on th&lisat

Technical failures have resulted in a reductioth@operational life of SES-3.

Available capacity on ASTRA 1G has been reduceihduhe eclipse season due to battery problems RIST
1G’s primary mission has in any event been comglefere is no risk of a recurrence of these issuethis
satellite.

As indicated above, AMC-4, NSS-7 and ASTRA 2B hesmpleted their primary missions and as a result no
mitigation is in place.

ASTRA 1M, which is a key asset at the 19.2°E privnigital position, has currently lost redundancyitm
propulsion subsystem. Further technical problemsthan propulsion system could result in the losshef
satellite. However, such an event is judged unfileld the risk is mitigated by the additional cafyaat this
orbital position provided by ASTRA 2F, which wasutehed in September 2012 and the deployment of
additional backup capacity provided by ASTRA 2Einiehed in September 2013 (ASTRA 2F and ASTRA 2E
are co-located at 28.2°E).

QuetzSat-1 has experienced the loss of redundandis idata handling equipment and further technical
problems with this sub-system could result in theslof the satellite. However, SES believes thatrigk has
been mitigated by the uploading of a software patthich allows the partial restoration of the on-aba
redundancy.

NSS-10 (AMC-12) has a failed Star Tracker leadiaglass of redundancy. This Attitude Control System
hardware is used to measure yaw attitude. The lisatehanufacturer is exploring other techniques for
determining yaw attitude as mitigation in the eviwet second Star Tracker fails.

Insurance

SES maintains launch and initial in-orbit insurardice., one policy typically covers the launch ard initial
period (usually one year) after the launch), ad a®lthird party liability insurance for its sattds. SES also
maintains in-orbit insurance for its satellitestthave book value. The insurance policies genexalytain
exclusions from losses resulting from:

e military or similar action;
e any anti-satellite device;

» electromagnetic and radio interference (exceppfysical damage to a satellite directly resultirayrf
this interference);

« confiscation by any governmental body;
» insurrection and similar acts or governmental actmprevent such acts;

* nuclear reaction or radiation contamination;
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« wilful or intentional acts of the insured causihg toss or failure of satellites; and
e terrorism.

Insurance policies also contemplate technical margnd deductibles relating to the propellantitifet and
solar array power generating capability of the|btee.

The Group generally purchases insurance with réfiasurers having S&P’s and AM-best ratings ofok-
better. The Group may, in limited instances, ugataad or less than A- rated insurers.

It is the Group’s policy to obtain launch insurarfoe its satellites. Launch plus one year1) insurance
provides coverage from the moment of launch umé gear in orbit thereafter, in an amount equahé&ofully
capitalised cost of the satellite, which generalbludes the construction costs, the L+1 insurgreeium, the
cost of the launch services, project managemerts,coen-reusable ground segment costs and capdalis
interest (but may exclude any unpaid incentive pants to the manufacturer and portions of the ground
segment which may be reused in case of launchdilu

Upon expiration of their L+1 policies, the Grouatellites, excluding certain satellites owned tigio joint
ventures, are insured through the Group’s fleetirarsce policy. SES has adopted a policy of limisetf-
insurance by which SES self-insures a chosen dibtiieind external insurance covers losses in exafete
deductible up to a certain limit of insurance. hibinsurance premiums are paid to a wholly owseldsidiary
and only a portion of the risk is reinsured withegral insurance companies.

In-orbit insurance coverage, which may initially fl& an amount comparable to launch insurance devel
generally decreases over time and is typically dasethe declining book value of the satellite. Breup does
not currently insure against lost revenue in thenéwf a total or partial loss of a satellite.

As of 30 June 2016, one satellite in orbit was cedey an L+1 policy and 32 of the satellites ie Broup’s
fleet with book value were covered by in-orbit ireswce.

The Group also procures in-orhit third party ligghiinsurance for all its satellites. Such insumig renewed
annually and provides a yearly combined singletlsh€500 million of coverage.

Sales and Marketing

The Group’s global headquarters are located ind®ef{Grand Duchy of Luxembourg). It operates waiitie
through dedicated regional teams in local saleshnteal, marketing and customer support officeskéy
locations around the world for the markets it serve

SES'’s regional presence is expanding to be claséne customers in geographical areas where thepGeo
deemed to have growth or development potential. Gtaup’s multi-functional teams enable SES to beano
aligned with market trends and better positionedbtid long-term business relationships with spate
customers. SES uses a range of direct and wholdistdibution methods to sell its services depegdipon the
region, applicable regulatory requirements andornst application.

The Issuer believes that its global presence coedbivith its way of working differentiates it frome Group’s
competitors. In video services, SES has a histbiwyooking with the consumer electronics industryfaoilitate
the development of new broadcast technologies.deivelopment of DTH and HDTV and the recent launfch o
Sat>IP, a technology that brings satellite telewisio every screen in the home including tabletgtdps and
mobile phones, are clear examples. With this amprothe Group is taking the initiative to keep Hite
applications at the cutting edge of home entertaimtmin enterprise services, the Group’s globalegepce
allows it to respond to market trends and develp solutions, including mobility services for aeaatical and
maritime where demand for data services continmgsaw.
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SES combines local experience close to its custoamed a commercial approach focused on takingiivié in
its markets. Its collaborative way of doing busmdslivers solutions that facilitate success fastamers and
market partners.

O3b

O3b operates a constellation of 12 High Througigatellites HTS) in a Medium Earth OrbitMEO) around
8,000 kilometres from Earth. O3b delivers low-cd8hre in the sky” connectivity to businesses ahdir end
consumers. The system is designed to provide washelidth and high throughputs so as to offer fillre-
connectivity for trunking and backhaul services fetecommunications and ISPs, with a focus on snerg
maritime, government and mobile backhaul services.

Since beginning commercial operations in Septeni@drd, O3b has become the fastest growing satellite
network in terms of capacity contracted. As of 38pt8mber 2016, O3b had a contract backlog of
approximately €300 million. Since O3b is now ayutbnsolidated subsidiary of the Issuer, its cattbacklog

is reported as part of the Group’s contract backBagsed on its reported revenue for the nine maerkling 30
September 2016 (and assuming it meets its expatsafdr revenue generation through the end ofittem€ial
year), O3b is believed to be on track to have regeof over $100 million in the financial year engli8l
December 2016.

O3b’s initial constellation of MEO satellites ratathe globe approximately four times per day aratufe
steerable 700-km diameter Ka-band beams. Each tseemnnected to a high-throughput teleport, witHtiple
layers of redundancy, to give operators a relidhigh-speed service. O3b provides throughputs awddtency
backhaul compatible with all forms of last-mile @ibns, including 2G, 3G, 4G, WIiMAX and LTE, which
allows O3b to deliver high-quality voice and dafBb is the first operator able to deliver 1.2 Gitmlper
second of bandwidth over a single transponder.Hitte-throughput O3b service provides uncongested)es
hop connectivity to a global IP backbone.

0O3b’s corporate headquarters are located in ther@aslands, Jersey, and its operational headepgaate in
The Hague. It also has an engineering office in &daas, Virginia and sales offices in Dubai, Singapo
Washington, D.C. and Rio de Janeiro.

O3b Satellite Fleet

0O3b’s constellation is considerably closer to thetle (approximately 8,000 kilometres) than a gdmstary

orbit (approximately 36,000 kilometres). As a résthle signal delay is significantly reduced anddmparable
with that of terrestrial fibre networks. O3b’s tatgservice area is located between 45°N and 45°theof
Equator, with a specific focus on emerging markets insufficiently connected regions in developedtkats.

The satellites are capable of delivering up toGkps of throughput per beam, with ultra-low latefyess

than 150 milliseconds, a significant improvemengrogeostationary connectivity. O3b'’s satellite beaamne

steerable, which allows for greater flexibilityadverage.

O3b's first four satellites experienced payload raalles which caused the satelltes to be declared a
constructive total loss for insurance purposesrédtuiy, three of the four satellites have been nerddfrom
operations, and are classified as back-up satellitee fourth satellite was less affected by thensaly and is
currently part of the operational O3b constellation

The second group of four satellites was launchetlip 2014 and as of the date of this Prospectssstdtond
group of four satellites is operating nominally. tiVieight satellites in orbit, O3b started full coential
operations on 1 September 2014.
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The third group of four satellites was successfldlynched on 18 December 2014. O3b plans to havehad
20 satellites by 2020 (including three satellitggn§y at in-orbit back-up). To fulfil this plan, ®3expects to
launch an additional four satellites in each offttet half of 2018 and the second half of 2019.

03b’s satellites utilise the same reaction whedblabalstar 2, which has experienced early-liferaakes with
approximately 10 per cent of its reaction wheel8b@as implemented a robust screening and testapgs
that is aimed at reducing the likelihood of simitaoblems within its fleet and is also developidtware to
allow the system to be operated even with multigheel anomalies on a single satellite.

Customers and Products

O3b serves more than 40 customers across 31 cemilaind is growing its customer base. Over 50 per afe
O3b’s customers have upgraded their initial sere@amitments.

O3b offers a suite of products to customers adioe®e market verticals: Enterprise, Mobility andv&mment.

Enterprise

Enterprise is O3b’s largest vertical, accounting7® per cent of its revenue in 2015. Key Entegadgstomers
include Our Telekom, Digicel Group, SpeedCastghiitimor Telecom and Norfolk Telecom. Producteoéi
under the Enterprise vertical include:

Mobility

Trunk. O3b’s IP trunking product features flexible, direonnectivity to the global internet with high

speed and performance through latency comparablentphaul fibre. Its scalable data rates from
100Mbps to 1.2 Ghps. O3b’s trunk product can bdayen rapidly and has full in-orbit redundancy
and fully redundant ground network architecture.

Cell. O3b's cell offering is its mobile backhaul produshich features the lowest cost per bit passed
through the network and high voice quality and dioad speeds over satellite. O3b is the first stgell
system fully compliant with ITU and 3GPP performarspecifications (G1010 and G114). O3b’s
MEO download speeds for end users are up to fmedtigreater than networks backhauled over GEO.

0O3b’s Mobility vertical accounted for 24 per cemite revenue in 2015. This vertical includes eygugoducts
aimed at oil and gas customers and maritime predairhed at cruise operators. Key Mobility customers
include Royal Caribbean Cruises and RigNet.

Products offered under the Mobility vertical inctud

Energy.O3b’s energy products have latency of less thanniiiseconds, which provides the highest
quality voice and video in the satellite industand unlimited bandwidth through O3b’s system
designed for availability of unlimited bandwidthr ftong-term IT roadmap planning. O3b’s energy
products also provide higher data rates and logntat, which results in faster internet access. grey
also capable of supporting cloud-based applicataons real-time monitoring of process, safety and
security sensors and systems on remote platforms.

Maritime. O3b’s maritime products feature high-capacity tigtgput, enabling high-speed terminals
capable of delivering data rates up to 500Mbps shaport more users with higher data rates and
offload business processes from ships to shorecgatiaes. This product is advantageous for crinse |
operators by providing broadband connectivity diyeto passengers’ own mobile devices. Low round-
trip latency of less than 150 milliseconds allowsfaster internet response time and higher thrpugh
per session. O3b’s satellites also feature stextmams that can follow a ship on its cruise ardhtgp

in real time if a ship’s course changes.
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Government

0O3b’s Government vertical accounted for 6 per adrits revenue in 2015. In this vertical O3b offsecure
solutions for fixed government sites and matritinsers. O3b’s affordable, scalable bandwidth up tbtayond
1Gbps meets existing government requirements aerl@ests and emerging requirements within existing
budgets. O3b offers latency of less than 150 radlisids, which provides the highest quality voice @deo in

the industry. Key customers in the government gattinclude the U.S. National Oceanic and Atmosigher
Administration and other customers of SES Governretutions. O3b’s government products are capable
providing reachback in support of cloud-based a@gfithns, big data and analysis of ISR sensor datasapport
real-time, secure HD video conferencing and seifsenls. They can also support military and commercia
encryption without spoofing.

Principal Markets and Opportunities

0O3b has a vast coverage area, including emergingetsaand insufficiently connected regions in depel
markets. O3b’s principal markets and opportunfibegyrowth within each region are described below.

Asia Pacific

0O3b has become the largest satellite provider @ Racific Region by Gbps sold. The Pacific Regisn i
characterised by demand for low-latency capacigrtov economies. In recent years, this need hasased as
a result of an increase in new mobile licencesdaaued. Present fibre routes are increasingkisgdackup
capacity. Asia has also experienced an increa364G services and increased data demand in samdries,
including Thailand. The geography of some of thentdes in the region, such as Indonesia, hasdedliance
on satellite for high-capacity IP Trunking.

The Issuer believes that there is further poterftinlO3b in the Asia Pacific region because of thgion’'s
fragmented fibre infrastructure and high connettidosts, particularly in areas outside hubs sukhHang
Kong, Singapore, Tokyo and Seoul, where thereniseal for 3G cellular backhaul across large distance

Americas

Large areas across Latin America are characteligddw population densities, poor fibre infrasturet and
high connectivity costs. O3b has as a result pealiahillions of consumers and businesses with reljdbw-
cost, low-latency broadband connectivity for thretftime. In addition, the Issuer believes thatehie potential
for O3b in rural areas of the United States thatetuly have limited connectivity to cellular toveer

Upgraded 3G and new 4G networks in Latin Americeehiad to an increase in data usage in recent years
Further, events like the 2014 FIFA World Cup in Brar the 2016 Summer Olympics increased the rieed
coverage, particularly in remote areas in the regio

Africa & Middle East

Currently, approximately 20 per cent of trunkingffic across the Middle East and Africa is deligknga
standard geostationary satellites, which is gelyeodflered at a price several times higher than titered by
O3b. O3b’s services deliver higher-capacity, lovegency and lower-cost broadband access to milliains
African and Middle Eastern consumers, businessoftmel organisations. In addition, mobile networlerators
have begun deploying more 3G in response to atsiifirds high growth in data revenues. In the Midghst,
Pakistan is currently preparing for 3G and in Itaqking demand is growing. There is also an insirea
Enterprise demand, especially in the energy ingustr
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O3b’s Future Growth Investment

Going forward, O3b expects to continue to investsatellites, including launch, insurance and céipid
interest of satellites nine to 20, resulting inoatoof $80 million per satellite. O3b’s satellitesve an expected
design life of 12 years. Normalised CapEx (appt@@0 operational satellites with a design lifel@fyears) is
anticipated to be $130 million.

0O3b’s committed CapEx for the period 2016 to 2020detailed in the table below.

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

(€ in millions)

Committed CapEx 170 100 30 10
Ground CapEx 25 15 15 10 10
Total 195 115 45 20 10

Acquisition of O3b

On 1 August 2016, SES acquired 100 per cent of @Bbonnection with the acquisition of O3b, SESriear
out the Capital Raise and the Hybrid Issuance.

On completion, SES consolidated approximately $illibn of O3b net debt since SES will, going fomga
account for O3b as a fully consolidated subsidiary.

SES has also taken over the non-SES shareholder t083b for an approximate value of $95 million.
O3b debt and debt optimisation
COFACE loans

0O3b had $680.0 million of loans outstanding fronalBs and Arianespace which are guaranteed to thatef

95 per cent by COFACE as at 31 December 2015. i®fthount, as at 31 December 2015, $580.0 millias w
at fixed rates of between 3.97 per cent and 4.98eet and $100.0 million was at floating rateseither
LIBOR + 1.95 per cent or LIBOR + 2.50 per cent. Ddlawdowns under the COFACE loans are generally
disbursed directly to either the satellite manufeat or the launch service provider. The drawn COEAoans
mature in 2021. In 2015, O3b secured an additi$a84.0 million COFACE loan facility increasing thatal
such facility to $864.0 million. No drawings wereade on this additional COFACE loan as at 31 Decembe
2015.

Mezzanine loans

Two mezzanine loans of, in aggregate, $145.0 miNiere obtained by O3b in 2010 with an aggregateuam
outstanding, including accumulated interest thereo$275.8 million as of 31 December 2015 (31 Ddoem
2014: $239.7 million). As of 31 December 2015, thezzanine Tranche A loan of $194.3 million inclugin
accrued interest (2014: $168.0 million) was beaititigrest of 10 per cent, with specified rate iases up to 16
per cent at 1 January 2022. As of the same daen#zzanine Tranche B loan had an outstandingantalint
of $81.5 million (2014: $71.7 million) was beariimgerest of 8 per cent at the end of 2015, witicHieel rate
increases up to 14 per cent at 1 January 2022.

SES has entirely repaid this debt on 23 August 2016
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Original Term Loans

In 2010, O3b negotiated $115.0 million of Origineérm Loans comprising an $85.0 million development
financial institutions PFlI) commercial tranche and a $30.0 million DFI stanttianche. As at 31 December
2015, $115.0 million was outstanding on these Ipatéch bore interest of between 7.52 per cent&f@ per
cent and will mature in 2021. The 2015 financingrédased the available Term loans by $31 millioi$1d6
million. This additional Term loan facility was ndtawn as of 31 December 2015.

Contingent Loans

In 2010, certain O3b investors agreed to provideaa of US$50.0 million to O3bContingent Loar). The
granting of the Contingent Loan was triggered ey dielay of the launch of O3b’s satellites five tigl eight
that created an anticipated lack of liquidity agged by O3b management which would impair O3b'titaltd

run its business or meet certain cash paymentnaqgants.

The Contingent Loan has no specified interestaatkis repayable at the lender’s request only afterf O3b’s
operating costs, borrowing costs and capital exipamed have been paid, and all outstanding amoahts
principal and interest under the COFACE loans, raeire loans, Original Term Loans, and the Sharenold
Support Facility have been repaid.

As the Contingent Loan bears no interest and hafixad repayment term, the loan balance reflecesftir

value of the loan at 31 December 2015 and 201g.nteasured at fair value using an estimated marteriest
rate. The loan discount, which was the $31.7 mmilliifference between the fair value of the loan tred$50.0
million received at the time the loan was fundedswthen treated as an additional equity contributiom the
participating shareholders. Net of this discouhg toan principal is $18.3 million — to which acauated

interest of $6.0 million has added resulting inarying value of $24.3 million as at 31 Decembed 20
compared to $21.5 million as at 31 December 2014.

As SES has taken over the non-SES shareholderngenti Loan, this loan is now an intra-group loatwben
SES Finance Services A.G. and O3b.

Shareholder Support Facility

The $100.0 million Shareholder Support Facili§SE was obtained in conjunction with a refinancing
undertaken by O3b in 2014. As of 31 December 20Ese was $120.3 million outstanding under the SSF.

The SSF bears interest at 15 per cent per anntienest is accrued and added to the outstandingipaihof the
SSF on 15 June and 15 December of each year. Ting@pal and accrued interest is due in October 2024
subject to full discharge of all senior debt andznamine debt obligations. $20.3 million of interbas been
accrued and added to the SSF as of 31 December(201%: $3.9 million).

In consideration for their participation in the S$P3b agreed to issue 6,885 Series G preferenceshad
7,821 Series G preference share warrd@&-(Fee Sharésto a group of O3b investors. The SSF Fee Shares
were valued at $10.5 million, and this amount veax®rded as a deferred financing cost during 2014.

As SES has taken over the non-SES shareholder &8F-this loan is now an intra-group loan betweES S
Finance Services A.G. and O3b.

Financing synergies arising from the O3b acquisitio

On completion of the acquisition, SES consolidaapgroximately $1.2 billion of O3b debt since SEH,wi
going forward, account for O3b as a fully consdiédhsubsidiary. Based on current exchange rateshen
assumption of a full refinancing of O3b debt by émal of the 2016 financial year and the Group raaiirtg an

average interest rate across its financing arrapgesrof approximately 4 per cent until 2021, theuprexpects
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to achieve financing synergies resulting from tlequésition of approximately €60 million in 2017 sing to
approximately €65 million in 2021. As of 30 Septemni2016, O3b had approximately USD 905 million of
indebtedness outstanding.

Strategic Investments
Investment in YahLive
Overview

The Group, through its subsidiary SES Finance $.aholds a 35 per cent interest in Al Maisan Siatel
Communications LLC, UAEAI Maisan), a company formed in 2009 with YahSat based ino Bhabi. YahSat
holds the remaining 65 per cent interest.

Al Maisan operates under the brand naviaHLive’ and was formed to create a DTH satellite platfannthe
Middle East, North Africa and Western Asia. YahLigean independent company and is utilising 23 kneb
transponders, which were successfully launched ahLie 1A in April 2011, providing capacity for DTH
broadcasting in Middle East, North Africa and WastAsia.

Shareholders’ Agreement

YahLive is governed by a shareholders’ agreemetwdsn SES Finance S.a r.l and YahSat dated 1 Qctobe
2011. Under the agreement, SES has the right toiatpihree of the company’s five board members &nd
appoint its chief executive officer. The contralsarg under such righténtrol) may not be transferred by SES
Finance S.a r.l to another party. However, corghalll transfer to YahSat in the event of a charfgmuotrol at

the SES level, cessation of business by SES Findrcel or SES Finance S.a r.I's shareholdingniglbelow

25 per cent.

In the event that financing is needed for any payser expenditure contemplated in YahLive's inmestt
plan, and one party does not agree to third-pargnting, both parties shall contribute the reqligeounts in
the form of shareholder loans in proportion torttsbiareholdings in the company.

The shareholders’ agreement also contains customamyisions in relation to competition, rights ofst
refusal, tag along rights, transfers to third gartind change of control.

Accounting

Because SES has management control of YahLive, BBS consolidates the company's results into its
financial statements.

Other Investments

For a complete list of the Group’s minority invesims, see note 22 to the SES Annual Report folydiae
ended 31 December 2015.

Financing structure of the Group

The Group has a well balanced financing structuith access to various sources of funding, includimeg
Eurobond markets, the U.S. Dollar bond markets, mengial paper markets and bank financing. As of 30
September 2016, the Group had a debt profile witlnaerage maturity of 8 years and an average ¢&¥4

per cent per annum. The Group’s liquidity positisas €1,780 million as of 30 September 2016, talking
account cash and cash equivalents of €580 millnfas80 September 2016 combined with the Grouglg fu
undrawn syndicated multi-currency loan facilityrségl in January 2014.
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Potential annualised revenue from investments

SES is continuing to invest in new satellite progmaes as a key driver of sustainable future growtch
programme plays an important role in scaling up 'SESpabilities in its four market verticals, padiarly in
emerging markets. In addition to SES-9, which extténto commercial service in 1 June 2016, SESsplan
launch six new satellites by end-2017, expectdddease available capacity by 127 net (36 MHz \ejant)
transponders. These growth investments are expéztgdnerate incremental annualised revenue ofdsstw
€250 million and €300 million (excluding O3b), whahan average “steady-state” utilisation of arodBder
cent by 2021. The Issuer estimates that by 2021 v@Blyenerate €400 to €450 million of potentiahamlised
revenue, on the basis of a EUR/USD exchange ratel6fand assuming 17 operational satellites atigtstate
utilisation. The foregoing estimates are calculdate@ manner consistent with the recognition pphes for
revenue being used with those adopted in the Gsofiipancial reporting and the Group believes thathie
context of the industry in which SES operates ibfimssistance to investors to give an indicatibrfiuture
potential annualised revenue based on its satellEstment pipeline.

Competition

The Group competes in the communications markethferprovision of satellite communications servites
broadcasters, content and ISPs, mobile and fixaslank operators and corporate and governmentabmests
worldwide. Communications services are providedngisvarious communications technologies, including
satellite networks, which provide services as asitulte for, or as a complement to, the capalilititerrestrial
networks. The Group’s main competitors are othejomiternational satellite operators, such as |$ate
Eutelsat and Telesat as well as many regional tpseractive across Asia, the Middle East, Latin Ao
Africa, North America and Europe. All these proviglef FSS provide a combination of point-to-muliigand
point-to-point services. The Group also faces cditipe from suppliers of terrestrial communicatiaregpacity
which may be transcontinental, regional, natiomahetropolitan in scope, and delivered via fibréigdeased-
line or coaxial cables, as well as via microwavetays. All of the above may also be provided bgeiters,
who purchase FSS or non-satellite capacity andribseil it in the market.

In Europe, the Group’s principal competition isnfréerrestrial distribution technologies and compgsatellite
operators. SES’s main competitor in the Europeatespnarket is Eutelsat, a French satellite operé&itbrer
competitors include smaller operators in the regioch as HispaSat, Telenor, Hellas Sat, Arabsaksatiand
Spacecom.

In North America, the Group’s principal satellitenepetitor is Intelsat, with Telesat, Eutelsat anche others
also providing capacity in the market. DTH telesisiin North America has long been a service pravibg
vertically integrated companies such as DirecTV &icHoStar, both of whom own their own satelliteefte
SES supplies EchoStar and affiliated companies twéhsmission capacity to supplement that of Eciuast
own fleet.

In the rest of the world, there are several ottved| established, regional satellite operators twpete with
SES, the most prominent being StarOne of Brazila®at, APT and China Satcom of China, MEASAT of
Malaysia, ISRO of India, RSCC of Russia, JSAT gbala Arabsat of Saudi Arabia and SingTel-Optus of
Singapore/Australia. Competitors vary accordinthtregion being served.

A more recent development has been the widesprsadfuexport credit financing from China’s EXIM Ban
COFACE and the U.S. Ex-Im Bank to fund nationaklite programmes. Russian satellite manufacturexe
also offered attractive terms and vendor finant¢mgleveloping countries. Together, they have engetda
second wave of national satellite programmes imt@s such as Venezuela, Kazakhstan, Vietham,ridige
Pakistan, Ukraine, Belarus, Bolivia, Laos, Sri Lardnd several others. This is adding to the supipbatellite
capacity in many regions of the world.
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Please also see sectidndustry Overview and Trentlabove.
Property, Plant and Equipment — SES (excluding O3land excluding RR Media Ltd.)
Offices

The Group’s administrative headquarters are locetedixembourg. These headquarters also house forie o
Group’s main offices and one of the prime satefifjerations centres. The land that underlies thesgéings is
partially owned and partially leased on a long-tdrasis from the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg goverrnmen
pursuant to a lease that expires in 2029. The Grdap has additional key offices in The Hague (the
Netherlands), Princeton (New Jersey), McLean (Yiedi Washington (DC), Unterfohring (Germany),
Johannesburg (South Africa) and Singapore. In,tttal Group has more than 60 offices and satalteices
centres in nearly 40 countries around the workljlastantial majority of which it leases.

Assets
The Group’s principal assets are its satellitestateports and its ground network.

The Group uses a worldwide ground network to ogeitatsatellite fleet and to manage the communinati
services that it provides to its customers. Theigdanfrastructure network is mainly composed o&CTsites
and communications systems monitoripM) sites. Excluding SES Government Solutions sités,rtetwork
comprises 30 TT&C sites worldwide, of which sevee awned by the Group and 23 are leased from third
parties. The network also comprises 28 CSM sitaslifding SES Government Solutions sites). The earth
service stations in the Group’s ground network ftfexcommercial TT&C and beam-monitoring servicese T
Group owns teleports in the United States, LuxemipoGermany and Gibraltar and leases facilitiemate
than 50 other locations for satellite/commercia¢ragpions worldwide (excluding SES Government Sohdi
sites and SOHO (Small Office / Home Office) typéaafs). The Group also contracts with the ownersoohe

of these facilities for the provision of additionsdrvices. The Group’s network also consists of ldased
communications links that connect the teleporitstsatellite operations centres.

The leases relating to the Group’s teleports, goaftpresence and office space expire at varionesti SES
does not believe that any such properties are inhailly material to the Group’s business or operatj and
expect that the Group could find suitable propsrt@replace such locations if the leases werearmwed at
the end of their respective terms.

Property, Plant and Equipment — O3b
Offices

O3b’'s main administrative headquarters are locatedThe Hague (the Netherlands), with corporate
headquarters located in Jersey in the Channeldslarhe Hague office premises are leased from NdesS
Satellites BV, a related party under the same comownership as O3b. O3b also has additional affice
Washington DC, London, Dubai, Singapore and Ridateeiro, Brazil, with a Network Operations Cengard
backup Satellite Operations Center) and warehoufnijjties in Virginia, USA (Manassas) and a Siteel
Operations Center (and backup Network OperatiomgeCein Luxembourg. O3b leases all of its premesed
does not own any real estate.

Assets
The Group’s principal assets are its satellitestaleports (TT&C and data) and its ground network.

The Group uses a worldwide ground network to ogeitatsatellite fleet and to manage the commurnati
services that it provides to its customers. Thaugdoinfrastructure network is mainly composed afendata
gateway sites (four of which are also TT&C sitasil the NOC and SOC sites. O3b utilises space atimxi
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gateway facilities/antenna farms owned and operdigdthird party operators under Teleport Service
Agreements, except for the facility at Sunset Be&tdowaii, the owner/service provider of which (N8kies
Satellites BV) is a related party under the sammnaon ownership as O3b. O3b owns all equipment éocat
the gateway sites. The Group also contracts wighathvners of some of these facilities for the priovisof
additional services. O3b’s network also consisthefleased communications links that connectdteports to
the NOC and SOC.

The leases/agreements relating to the Group’sdekeppoints of presence and office space expinegbus

times. O3b does not believe that any such propgegie individually material to the Group’s business
operations, and expects that the Group could fintdisle properties to replace such locations ifldases were
not renewed at the end of their respective terms.

Property, Plant and Equipment (RR Media Ltd.)
RR Media Ltd. now jointly operates with SES PlatfioBervices GmbH under the brand “MX1".

RR Media Ltd. owns teleports in Israel (at Emek Ha&nd in the US (in Hawley, Pennsylvania). Thenpany
leases teleport facilities in Nave llan (Israeljl Bucharest (Romania).

RR Media’s main offices are at Airport City in Istaand its UK subsidiary also has offices in London
Employees

As of 30 September 2016, the Group employed 1,88Riduals worldwide (counted in full time equivate
(FTEs) rounded to whole numbers), including 492, 537, &1& 386 FTEs in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg,
the rest of Europe, the United States and theofdbe world, respectively.

SES negotiates union contracts with Teamsters Uhawal 111 for U.S.-based union members. The Group
maintains good employee relations and has not exed any material labour-related work stoppages.

Arrangements involving the employees in the capibéthe Issuer

SES offers several stock-based compensation ple@sployees and executives. The purpose of thes jdaio
enhance the competitiveness of the Group in aitigaeind retaining the best global executive talant] to
position SES as a global employer of choice.

Moreover, the plans are designed to make sureStE8temployees and executives become shareholdtrs of
Issuer, feel a sense of ownership and benefit fhain contribution to increasing shareholder value.

Executives are eligible to participate in two platitee Equity Incentive Compensation PI&IGP) and the
Long Term Incentive PlarLTIP). Under the EICP, stock options are granted amyaalmarket value to all
eligible executives. Options vest in quarters deer years and have a 10-year life. Under the LEHres are
granted in the form of restricted shares and perdmice shares annually at market value to all édigib
executives. The shares cliff vest after three ye®Eesting of the performance shares is contingenthe
employees’ positive personal performance and thgelsachieving positive economic value added.

Employees are eligible to participate in the Stéglpreciation Rights $TAR) Plan. Under this plan, stock
options are granted annually at market value. @pti@st in thirds over three years and have a sgsanlife.

Intellectual Property

SES has a significant portfolio of internationaltgpas managed by its patent board and internatjonal
registered trademarks and service marks to opésateisiness worldwide. The Group protects its pebary
business information, products, services and branii a variety of ways, including relying on trasiecret,
patent and trademark laws, entering into confidgdityi and non-disclosure agreements, including
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confidentiality and data protection clauses in caroial agreements and following internal corporzdéicies
and procedure in relation to intellectual property.

SES is not aware of any breach of its intellechraperty by any party and, to its knowledge, is inéinging
the intellectual property of others.

Environmental Matters

The Group’s operations are subject to various lamgregulations relating to the protection of theimnment.
The Group, as an owner or operator of propertyiarmdnnection with current and historical operasiat some
of its site